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 1           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  We'll be on the record. 

 2   Good morning.  It is approximately 9:30 in the morning 

 3   on Thursday, February 2nd, 2012. 

 4           This is the time and place set for an 

 5   evidentiary hearing, in Docket UT-111254, a complaint 

 6   filed by several carriers, collectively referred to as 

 7   the joint CLECs against Qwest/CenturyLink. 

 8           My name is Marguerite Friedlander, and I am the 

 9   administrative law judge presiding over this matter. 

10           So the first thing we're going to do this 

11   morning is take appearances.  Since we have your contact 

12   information on file, there's no need to repeat any of 

13   that information.  Just let me know your name, spelling 

14   the last name, and who you represent. 

15           We'll begin today with Mr. Merz. 

16           MR. MERZ:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Thank you. 

17   Gregory Merz, M-E-R-Z, representing Integra Telecom and 

18   PAETEC, P-A-E-T-E-C, all caps. 

19           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

20           Ms. Giles? 

21           MS. GILES:  Good morning, Your Honor.  I'm 

22   Lauren Giles, G-I-L-E-S, representing tw telecom. 

23           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

24           Mr. Goodwin? 

25           MR. GOODWIN:  Thank you, Your Honor.  Tim 
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 1   Goodwin, G-O-O-D-W-I-N, for CenturyLink. 

 2           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

 3           Ms. Anderl? 

 4           MS. ANDERL:  Thank you, Your Honor.  Lisa 

 5   Anderl, A-N-D-E-R-L, for CenturyLink. 

 6           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

 7           Ms. Cameron-Rulkowski? 

 8           MS. CAMERON-RULKOWSKI:  Representing commission 

 9   staff, Jennifer Cameron-Rulkowski.  My last name is 

10   spelled C-A-M-E-R-O-N, hyphen, R-U-L-K-O-W-S-K-I, 

11   assistant attorney general. 

12           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you.  Okay. 

13           I don't think there's anyone I've missed.  So at 

14   this time how would the parties like to address the 

15   evidence?  I will entertain a motion to admit the 

16   evidence at this time. 

17           MS. ANDERL:  So moved, Your Honor. 

18           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  And hearing no 

19   objections, then the evidence is admitted en masse. 

20           (All exhibits were admitted.) 

21           Okay.  Have the parties conferred on whether 

22           they'd like to give opening statement at this 

23           time? 

24           MS. ANDERL:  Your Honor, we did not do that in 

25   Colorado, and had understood that it was not the 
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 1   practice here.  We're happy to go directly to 

 2   cross-examination. 

 3           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  Excellent.  Thank 

 4   you. 

 5           So I have the first witness as Lauren Nipps. 

 6           MR. MERZ:  Lyndall Nipps. 

 7           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  I'm sorry.  I apologize. 

 8           MS. GILES:  He's my witness. 

 9           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Lyndall Nipps. 

10           Ms. Giles, would you like to introduce your 

11   witness? 

12           MS. GILES:  I'd like to call Lyndall Nipps to 

13   the stand. 

14           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  If you'd like to remain 

15   standing and raise your right hand at the witness stand. 

16                         LYNDALL NIPPS 

17           Witness herein, having been first duly sworn on 

18   oath, was examined and testified as follow: 

19           THE WITNESS:  I do. 

20           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  You can be seated. 

21           THE WITNESS:  Thank you. 

22           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Please proceed. 

23                      DIRECT EXAMINATION 

24   BY MS. GILES: 

25       Q.  Mr. Nipps, could you state and spell your last 
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 1   name for the record, please. 

 2       A.  First name is Lyndall, L-Y-N-D-A-L-L, last name 

 3   Nipps, N-I-P-P-S. 

 4       Q.  By whom are you employed, Mr. Nipps? 

 5       A.  tw telecom. 

 6       Q.  Are you representing tw today? 

 7       A.  I am. 

 8       Q.  Could you identify your exhibits, please. 

 9       A.  The first exhibit is my direct testimony, which 

10   is LN-1T, like Tom. 

11           The second exhibit is LN-2, which is my exhibit 

12   LN-1 of my direct testimony. 

13           LN-3 is the next exhibit, which is my 

14   Exhibit LN-2 of my direct testimony. 

15           And lastly LN-4T, like Tom, which is my rebuttal 

16   testimony. 

17       Q.  Are these true and complete copies of your 

18   prefiled testimony in this matter? 

19       A.  Yes, they are. 

20       Q.  And if I were to ask you these questions today, 

21   would your answers be identical? 

22       A.  Yes, they would be. 

23           MS. GILES:  I now tender the witness for 

24   cross-examination. 

25           THE WITNESS:  Thank you. 
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 1           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

 2           Ms. Anderl? 

 3           MS. ANDERL:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

 4                       CROSS-EXAMINATION 

 5   BY MS. ANDERL: 

 6       Q.  Let's see.  I think I have five or six too many 

 7   things in front of me.  Just take a minute here. 

 8           Good morning, Mr. Nipps. 

 9       A.  Good morning. 

10       Q.  So my name is Lisa Anderl, and I'm an in-house 

11   attorney for CenturyLink, and I'm going to be asking you 

12   some questions. 

13       A.  Okay. 

14       Q.  We did this in Colorado last week. 

15       A.  Right. 

16       Q.  But I think because the judge and others were 

17   not there, we can't take any shortcuts. 

18           Let me begin with some questions about your 

19   background.  Can you tell me a little bit about your 

20   educational background? 

21       A.  Sure.  I have a bachelor's in business 

22   management. 

23       Q.  Do you have an IT background at all? 

24       A.  I do not have an IT background. 

25       Q.  Now, in your direct testimony, you list your 



0077 

 1   specialties as including preordering, ordering -- I'm 

 2   sorry, ordering, provisioning and billing, among other 

 3   things. 

 4       A.  Correct.  That comes from my experience when I 

 5   worked for Pacific Bell and in particular I was the 

 6   director of the local wholesale operations center at 

 7   that time, interfacing with CLECs. 

 8       Q.  Okay.  And during that time, you were not 

 9   responsible for repair functions? 

10       A.  Not repair, no.  That was a separate department. 

11   I interfaced with them, but I did not directly have 

12   responsibility for that. 

13       Q.  Now, you state in your testimony that tw has not 

14   experienced any instability with MEDIACC.  Is that still 

15   true today? 

16       A.  Yes. 

17       Q.  From whom did you obtain that information? 

18       A.  My IT department. 

19       Q.  From whom in the IT department? 

20       A.  Matt Beynom, B-E-Y-N-O-M, and John Wright, 

21   W-R-I-G-H-T. 

22       Q.  And can you just tell me a little bit about what 

23   positions that each of those gentlemen hold? 

24       A.  Sure.  John Wright is the vice-president of that 

25   organization, and Matt Beynom works on his staff. 
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 1       Q.  Are those the two people in IT that you 

 2   conferred with and relied on in preparation for your 

 3   testimony here? 

 4       A.  Those people as well as my -- we refer to them 

 5   as the access management team.  They're the local 

 6   exchange carrier interface group. 

 7       Q.  Did you confer with your IT professionals about 

 8   the implementation of the MTG interface? 

 9       A.  Yes. 

10       Q.  What did you discuss with them? 

11       A.  I discussed with them that CenturyLink had tried 

12   to move forward with an MTG implementation, and we 

13   talked about different aspects of that, and what our 

14   experience was with MEDIACC today, and just other 

15   various and sundry discussion items about that. 

16       Q.  Did you discuss with them what it would take for 

17   tw to begin using the MTG interface? 

18       A.  What I discussed with them was if it could be 

19   done on a basis that would work within the 30-month 

20   window of the settlement agreement, and we talked about 

21   just general options that, you know, whether or not 

22   there was any failure going on with MEDIACC and whether 

23   we had any instability issues to worry about, et cetera, 

24   and then just the overall components of the settlement 

25   agreement standard. 
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 1       Q.  So you didn't discuss necessarily with them what 

 2   it would take to implement the MTG interface on a 

 3   technical scale? 

 4       A.  Not on a technical scale, no. 

 5       Q.  Okay.  Did you discuss with them how long it 

 6   might take for you to convert from MEDIACC to MTG if you 

 7   wanted to do that? 

 8       A.  Not at this point, because we weren't at that 

 9   level of moving forward yet. 

10       Q.  Did you discuss with them whether the MTG 

11   interface, which is an XML-based interface, is 

12   preferable to the MEDIACC system, which is a CMIP-based 

13   interface? 

14       A.  Not so much in a state of preference, but just, 

15   you know, discussing electronic bonding in general and 

16   our experience with electronic bonding and that overall 

17   relationship to the business. 

18       Q.  And so tw is electronically bonded with 

19   Qwest/CenturyLink for trouble administration.  Right? 

20       A.  In the Qwest Legacy territory, that is correct. 

21       Q.  What about in the Legacy CenturyTel or Embarq 

22   territory? 

23       A.  In the Embarq territories we are not 

24   electronically bonded, and had actually requested during 

25   the course of last year earlier to be electronically 
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 1   bonded. 

 2       Q.  Mr. Nipps, as an exhibit to your testimony, you 

 3   included a portion of the interconnection agreement 

 4   between Qwest and tw, and that's your LN-3. 

 5       A.  Yes. 

 6       Q.  Is tw contending in this docket that Qwest is in 

 7   violation of any of those provisions that you attached 

 8   as LN-3? 

 9       A.  As it relates to the overall maintenance and 

10   repair gateways, that was the real intent of this, and 

11   in particular we were talking about 12.12 -- pardon me, 

12   12.2.2.1, and just talking about the overall interface 

13   in the process, and the availability and reliabilities 

14   of those things.  As it relates to the settlement 

15   agreement, yes, that's what I was talking about with 

16   this. 

17           So the settlement agreement refers to no changes 

18   to be made within the OSS interface, and the 

19   interconnection agreement calls out the definition of 

20   that relationship in those paragraphs. 

21           Did I answer your question? 

22       Q.  Not really, but I was going to take another run 

23   at it. 

24       A.  Okay.  Sorry. 

25       Q.  So we understand that tw is contending a 
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 1   violation of merger settlement agreement, but 

 2   specifically are there provisions in the interconnection 

 3   agreement that is attached as LN 3 that tw is contending 

 4   a violation of? 

 5       A.  A violation of the interconnection agreement, 

 6   no. 

 7       Q.  Okay.  Thanks. 

 8           So in the non-Qwest territory then does tw use a 

 9   graphical user interface to submit trouble reports to 

10   Embarq or CenturyTel or CenturyLink in the Legacy 

11   CenturyTel territory? 

12       A.  What we had asked for, in I believe the April of 

13   2012 time frame, was to be able to electronically bond 

14   with CenturyLink, to be able to get access to something 

15   that's known as mean time to repair, or MTTR trouble 

16   reporting. 

17       Q.  So how do you currently report trouble in those 

18   areas where you're not electronically bonded? 

19       A.  On the CenturyLink and on the Embarq Legacy 

20   territories, we're not electronically bonded for those 

21   specific items. 

22       Q.  So you use the graphical user interface? 

23       A.  Right. 

24       Q.  Now, with regard to the use of MEDIACC, do you 

25   do that directly or do you do that through a vendor? 
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 1       A.  We do that through a vendor, Synchronoss, 

 2   S-Y-N-C-H-R-O-N-O-S-S. 

 3       Q.  I'm glad you had to spell that. 

 4           What services do they provide to you? 

 5       A.  They function as a vendor for us to develop, 

 6   test and implement. 

 7       Q.  Do you have an XML interface with any other 

 8   incumbent local exchange carriers in other parts of the 

 9   country? 

10       A.  We do. 

11       Q.  For trouble administration? 

12       A.  Yes. 

13       Q.  Who are those? 

14       A.  To my knowledge, AT&T and Verizon. 

15       Q.  Do you know when you converted to an XML 

16   interface with AT&T and Verizon? 

17       A.  I don't know the dates. 

18       Q.  When the technical specifications for the MTG 

19   interface were released, did you review them? 

20       A.  No. 

21       Q.  Do you know when they were released? 

22       A.  Not specifically, no. 

23       Q.  Do you know if they were shared with your IT 

24   department? 

25       A.  I don't know if they were or not.  I don't 
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 1   believe technical specs were, but I'm not a hundred 

 2   percent certain of that. 

 3       Q.  Does tw participate in the CMP meetings? 

 4       A.  It does. 

 5       Q.  And in the ordinary course of business, if 

 6   technical specifications had been released through CMP, 

 7   would they likely have been shared with your IT 

 8   department? 

 9       A.  They would go through the normal internal 

10   routing process for that I'm sure. 

11       Q.  Are you the person who represents tw at the CMP 

12   meetings? 

13       A.  I am not. 

14       Q.  Do you know who does? 

15       A.  I do. 

16       Q.  Who's that? 

17       A.  Her name is Shelly Pedersen, P-E-D-E-R-S-E-N. 

18       Q.  So you've not consulted with Synchronoss in 

19   terms of how long it would take them to enable you to 

20   have an XML interface with MTG? 

21       A.  No.  Because our understanding was that MEDIACC 

22   was stable, and there was no need to proceed at this 

23   point in time. 

24       Q.  Now, let me ask you a couple of questions about 

25   MEDIACC.  Have you read the CenturyLink testimony that 



0084 

 1   states that MEDIACC will continue to be available during 

 2   the applicable 30-month period in the merger settlement 

 3   agreement? 

 4       A.  I have. 

 5       Q.  And if the Washington Commission allows 

 6   Qwest/CenturyLink to implement MTG in the state of 

 7   Washington, will you convert to MTG prior to the end of 

 8   that period? 

 9       A.  It would not be likely.  I would hope that that 

10   would not be the case, because I think that -- I'm 

11   concerned if there is indeed instability issues with 

12   MEDIACC, if there's focus on developing MTG instead, how 

13   those resources would be cross-functionally supported. 

14       Q.  So it's tw's intent to use MEDIACC during the 

15   entire period of its availability concurrent with the 

16   terms of the settlement agreement? 

17       A.  Yes. 

18       Q.  And so for tw's purposes, MTG will not replace 

19   MEDIACC until after the time period of the settlement 

20   has expired? 

21       A.  That's correct. 

22       Q.  And MTG -- MEDIACC will not be retired then, 

23   assuming it functions as we've committed to do, until 

24   after the time period in the settlement has expired? 

25       A.  I'm sorry, did you say MTG would not be retired? 
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 1       Q.  I may have.  I meant to say MEDIACC. 

 2       A.  I'm sorry.  Ask the question again.  MEDIACC 

 3   would not be retired until? 

 4       Q.  After the terms -- the time period specified in 

 5   the settlement agreement. 

 6       A.  Yes. 

 7       Q.  And you've read the Integra merger settlement 

 8   agreement -- 

 9       A.  Right. 

10       Q.  -- that tw opted into it? 

11       A.  Yes.  With some auxiliary items, February 4th of 

12   2011. 

13       Q.  You did not negotiate the Integra settlement? 

14       A.  I did not negotiate the Integra settlement. 

15       Q.  You did not negotiate the tw settlement? 

16       A.  I did not directly negotiate the tw settlement, 

17   that's correct. 

18       Q.  Mr. Nipps, you were a witness in the merger 

19   hearings as well, were you not? 

20       A.  Yes. 

21       Q.  Now, let me just back up here.  You have a 

22   pretty good understanding of what the history of MTG 

23   was, do you not? 

24       A.  Prior -- I'm not sure I understand the context 

25   of your question.  Do you mean during the time of the 
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 1   settlement agreements over the merger itself? 

 2       Q.  Well, let's just kind of go through it then. 

 3   You were aware that MTG was initially to be introduced 

 4   by Qwest during the 2007, 2008 time period? 

 5       A.  I have read that it was, yes.  I came onboard -- 

 6   just to be specific, I came onboard with tw telecom in 

 7   May of 2007. 

 8       Q.  Okay. 

 9       A.  So some of the before-that-time-frame items I 

10   may not be familiar with. 

11       Q.  But you're aware that Qwest had issued a CR, or 

12   change request, to retire MEDIACC and implement MTG? 

13       A.  I was aware of it peripherally, but at the end 

14   of the day, the concern that I still have would be that 

15   I was on conference calls in which CenturyLink 

16   repeatedly stated there had not been a decision made by 

17   OSS platforms in a post merger environment, so I'm not 

18   sure that I would have personally given any weight to 

19   the CR that was pending at the time during an actual 

20   merger itself, subject to change of condition. 

21       Q.  Do you think that the implementation of MTG is a 

22   merger-related OSS integration or migration? 

23       A.  I have to assume it is because it has occurred 

24   post the merger and settlement agreements themselves, 

25   and given my prior statement that I was on calls which 
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 1   CenturyLink said there had not been a decision made 

 2   about which systems or system it would use on OSS 

 3   platforms, then I assumed the MTG decision was made in a 

 4   post merger environment. 

 5       Q.  Do you know when the CR to implement MTG was 

 6   most recently issued? 

 7       A.  I don't recall the date, no. 

 8       Q.  Would you accept subject to check that it was in 

 9   November of 2010? 

10       A.  Sure. 

11       Q.  Have -- 

12       A.  I'm sorry, yes. 

13       Q.  And that was premerger.  Right? 

14       A.  November 6th of 2010 was the merger, the initial 

15   merger with Integra, so if it was in that time frame, it 

16   would have been coinciding or prior to. 

17       Q.  You said November 6th of 2010 was the merger 

18   with Integra.  Did you mean settlement agreement? 

19       A.  I mean -- sorry -- settlement agreement.  My 

20   apologies. 

21       Q.  So then would you accept subject to your check 

22   that the merger between Qwest and CenturyLink took place 

23   on April 1st of 2011? 

24       A.  Yes. 

25       Q.  So November of 2010 was premerger.  Is that 
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 1   right? 

 2       A.  Yes.  I'm sorry, I'm sorry.  Yes. 

 3       Q.  And the conference calls that you were on where 

 4   CenturyLink stated that it had not made any OSS platform 

 5   decisions, were those specifically in reference to the 

 6   Legacy CenturyTel and Embarq territories? 

 7       A.  The comment that I recall was that a decision 

 8   had not been made for either of those scenarios. 

 9       Q.  So is tw telecom asking the commission in this 

10   case to help the implementation of MTG? 

11       A.  tw telecom thinks that the commission should ask 

12   CenturyLink to adhere to the terms and conditions of its 

13   settlement agreement and would be concerned that if MTG 

14   continued in development that the resources wouldn't be 

15   focused on the potential instability that it has cited 

16   for MEDIACC. 

17       Q.  To date you have not seen any evidence of that 

18   instability? 

19       A.  None. 

20       Q.  As long as Qwest/CenturyLink complies with the 

21   provisions of paragraph 12 of the merger settlement in 

22   terms of the steps that it has to take and the timeline 

23   that it would take before retiring MEDIACC or replacing 

24   it with MTG, then tw's interests would be satisfied? 

25       A.  Correct. 
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 1           MS. ANDERL:  Thank you, Your Honor.  I have no 

 2   further questions for this witness. 

 3           THE WITNESS:  Thank you. 

 4           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

 5           Redirect, Ms. Giles? 

 6           MS. GILES:  No, Your Honor. 

 7           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  And I have no 

 8   clarification questions. 

 9           MS. GILES:  If I may, Your Honor.  If there's 

10   nothing further for this witness, if he may be excused, 

11   we'd appreciate it. 

12           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Staff had not indicated that 

13   they wanted to cross-examine this witness, but you're 

14   certainly welcome to. 

15           MS. CAMERON-RULKOWSKI:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

16   Staff doesn't have any cross-examination questions for 

17   Mr. Nipps. 

18           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  Thank you. 

19           Mr. Nipps, you are excused. 

20           THE WITNESS:  Thank you. 

21           MS. ANDERL:  Your Honor, may we have just like 

22   two minutes off the record? 

23           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Sure, sure. 

24           (A break was taken from 9:55 a.m. to 9:57 a.m.) 

25           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  We're back on the record. 
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 1           Mr. Merz, if you'd like to introduce your 

 2   witness. 

 3           MR. MERZ:  Thank you, Your Honor.  We would like 

 4   to next call Justina Blanchard to the witness stand. 

 5           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  If you'll go ahead and raise 

 6   your right hand. 

 7                       JUSTINA BLANCHARD 

 8           Witness herein, having been first duly sworn on 

 9   oath, was examined and testified as follow: 

10           THE WITNESS:  I do. 

11           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  Thank you.  You can 

12   sit down. 

13           Mr. Merz, if you'd like to proceed. 

14           MR. MERZ:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

15                      DIRECT EXAMINATION 

16   BY MR. MERZ: 

17       Q.  Good morning, Ms. Blanchard. 

18       A.  Good morning. 

19       Q.  Would you please state your name and spell both 

20   your first and last name. 

21       A.  Justina Blanchard, J-U-S-T-I-N-A, last name 

22   B-L-A-N-C-H-A-R-D. 

23       Q.  By whom are you employed? 

24       A.  I'm employed through PAETEC, which is now a part 

25   of Windstream. 
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 1       Q.  Do you have in front of you direct testimony 

 2   that's been prefiled in this case? 

 3       A.  Yes, I do. 

 4       Q.  Is your direct testimony marked as hearing 

 5   Exhibit JB-1T? 

 6       A.  Yes, it is. 

 7       Q.  And you have two exhibits to that testimony.  Is 

 8   that right? 

 9       A.  That is correct. 

10       Q.  And those have been marked as hearing exhibits 

11   JB-2 and JB-3.  Correct? 

12       A.  That is correct. 

13       Q.  Ms. Blanchard, do you have any corrections to 

14   your direct testimony? 

15       A.  Yes, I do. 

16           MR. MERZ:  Your Honor, I don't know how you want 

17   her to handle that, if you want her to make that on the 

18   copy of the testimony or exactly how you want her to 

19   reflect those corrections, or if just reading them into 

20   the record would be adequate. 

21           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  I think we can read them 

22   into the record if they're not numerous.  If they're 

23   numerous, we'll probably need to have a revised copy. 

24           MR. MERZ:  Okay. 

25           THE WITNESS:  Okay.  The changes are on page 1, 
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 1   line item 3, where the business address is listed, it 

 2   should reflect 1450 North Center Point Road, in 

 3   Hiawatha, Iowa, 52233. 

 4           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  I'm sorry.  Could you repeat 

 5   that?  The street address. 

 6           THE WITNESS:  1450 North Center Point Road, 

 7   that's two words, in Hiawatha, Iowa, 52233. 

 8           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

 9           THE WITNESS:  There is also a change on line 6, 

10   where it states I'm employed at PAETEC.  PAETEC is now a 

11   part of Windstream. 

12           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Is that all one word as 

13   well? 

14           THE WITNESS:  Yes. 

15   BY MR. MERZ: 

16       Q.  Do you have any other corrections? 

17       A.  Yes, I do.  On page 2, line item No. 2, where it 

18   states in some states such as Colorado, Colorado should 

19   be striked, replacing Washington.  Also on line No. 4, 

20   Washington should replace Colorado in that statement as 

21   well. 

22           In line items No. 5 and 6, if I can just go 

23   ahead and read what it should state.  "Thus in addition 

24   to competing in the Denver MSA" should be replaced with 

25   "Seattle MSA, PAETEC offers services in the 
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 1   Battleground, Longview, and Vancouver rate centers." 

 2           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  I think because the changes 

 3   are getting pretty numerous, why don't we go ahead and 

 4   have an errata filed with the commission, and that way 

 5   we'll have it on record in addition to what's been read 

 6   into the record so far. 

 7           MR. MERZ:  We'll certainly do that, Your Honor. 

 8   Thank you. 

 9           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

10   BY MR. MERZ: 

11       Q.  Does that take your of your corrections? 

12       A.  Yes, it does take care of corrections. 

13       Q.  I could also note for the record exhibits to 

14   your testimony have been marked as hearing Exhibits JB-2 

15   and JB-3, they're actually referred to in your testimony 

16   as JB-1 and JB-2.  Is that right? 

17       A.  That is correct.  And that would be on 

18   page No. 4.  I apologize.  That's also another 

19   correction. 

20       Q.  Well, I don't know that that's a correction. 

21   It's a difference in the way that we numbered the 

22   exhibits, but for our purposes, the hearing exhibit 

23   number is JB-2 and JB-3.  Correct? 

24       A.  Correct. 

25       Q.  With those corrections, then, Ms. Blanchard, is 
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 1   your testimony true and accurate to the best of your 

 2   knowledge? 

 3       A.  Yes, it is. 

 4           MR. MERZ:  Your Honor, Ms. Blanchard is now 

 5   available for cross-examination. 

 6           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you, Mr. Merz. 

 7           Ms. Anderl? 

 8           MS. ANDERL:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

 9                       CROSS-EXAMINATION 

10   BY MS. ANDERL: 

11       Q.  Good morning. 

12       A.  Good morning. 

13       Q.  I'm Lisa Anderl, in-house attorney for 

14   CenturyLink.  I'll be asking you some questions this 

15   morning. 

16           Let me just ask you some questions about your 

17   current and past job responsibilities, because I'll 

18   confess that at the hearing in Denver I was still a 

19   little unclear. 

20       A.  Okay. 

21       Q.  You're currently employed as a project 

22   manager II? 

23       A.  That's correct. 

24       Q.  What responsibilities does that job encompass? 

25       A.  I basically have responsibilities to manage 
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 1   large projects within the IT departments. 

 2       Q.  And related to wholesale or repairs specifically 

 3   or just more generally? 

 4       A.  Back-end systems generally. 

 5       Q.  And is it your current job responsibilities then 

 6   that provide you the information and experience to give 

 7   this testimony that you've given today, or is it a prior 

 8   role that you were playing? 

 9       A.  That would be the prior role, which was June of 

10   last year, and it's six years prior to that. 

11       Q.  And you were a senior manager in the network 

12   operations center? 

13       A.  That is correct. 

14       Q.  Or the NOC? 

15       A.  Yes. 

16       Q.  N-O-C? 

17       A.  Otherwise known as the NOC. 

18       Q.  What did you do there? 

19       A.  I was responsible for overseeing the network 

20   operations center, which was -- their responsibilities 

21   included handling all trouble tickets and repairs for 

22   customers. 

23       Q.  Now let's go to the discussion you have in your 

24   testimony about the trouble tickets that starts on 

25   page 4. 
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 1       A.  Okay. 

 2       Q.  I just wanted to confirm with you that the 

 3   average of 155 POTS -- that's capital P, capital O, 

 4   capital T, small S, plain old telephone service -- 155 

 5   POTS trouble tickets a month is region-wide for PAETEC 

 6   within the Legacy/Qwest operating region? 

 7       A.  For the Legacy/Qwest only, yes. 

 8       Q.  I don't know if you're in all 14 states. 

 9       A.  Yes. 

10       Q.  How did you calculate that average? 

11       A.  It's basically the 105 tickets is the average 

12   for POTS-based tickets within a given month's time.  Out 

13   of those 105 tickets, we average eight transactions per 

14   ticket. 

15       Q.  I'm sorry.  I just want to correct.  Did you 

16   mean to say 155? 

17       A.  Yes, I'm sorry. 

18       Q.  You said 105. 

19       A.  I'm sorry.  It's 155.  My apology. 

20       Q.  But how did you calculate the average of 155? 

21   How much data did you look at to calculate that 155? 

22       A.  That is polling all of our data on ticket counts 

23   within a six-month period, and giving the average of the 

24   155. 

25       Q.  An average of eight transactions per trouble 
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 1   ticket, how did you calculate the eight? 

 2       A.  This is the same thing.  Pulling our automation 

 3   numbers within our system to say how many tractions were 

 4   averaged on each ticket, and the average came out to 

 5   eight. 

 6       Q.  And what's a transaction? 

 7       A.  That would be communications through us and 

 8   Qwest through the EBTA system. 

 9       Q.  So that EBTA is all caps? 

10       A.  Yes.  And that's the electronic bonded trouble 

11   ticket. 

12       Q.  So it's electronic bonding trouble 

13   administration? 

14       A.  Yes. 

15       Q.  So the transaction isn't all a manual event, is 

16   it? 

17       A.  No.  In this case it was based on the electronic 

18   bonding.  So if the electronic bonding wasn't there, it 

19   then would revert to a manual interaction. 

20       Q.  So why does it say eight transactions? 

21       A.  It depends on the tickets.  We basically bond 

22   over the ticket when it first opens.  Qwest will bond 

23   back, saying we've received your tickets.  They then 

24   will notify us what the commitment is for dispatch.  The 

25   commitment might change the end result of what the 
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 1   dispatch was from the tech's findings.  I mean, all 

 2   those things play a part in it. 

 3       Q.  So opening the trouble ticket is two 

 4   transactions; one from you to us, and one from us to 

 5   you? 

 6       A.  That's correct. 

 7       Q.  And then closing the ticket is at least one 

 8   transaction? 

 9       A.  Correct. 

10       Q.  So that's three out of the eight.  And there may 

11   be then notifications or questions that go back and 

12   forth during the middle period when the trouble is being 

13   addressed? 

14       A.  Yes.  There might be, you know, again, a 

15   commitment of when a tech is going to arrive on site, 

16   maybe that got pushed out for some other reason, and the 

17   commitment has changed. 

18       Q.  And you say that 12 percent of your transactions 

19   have no manual intervention at all? 

20       A.  That's correct. 

21       Q.  So 88 percent of the tickets, of 155 tickets, 

22   have at least one or more manual interventions? 

23       A.  That's correct. 

24       Q.  And that manual intervention is generally a 

25   telephone call? 
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 1       A.  Yes.  Since we are linked up, and our automation 

 2   is actually dependent on what we would receive back from 

 3   Qwest, a ticket can fall out of automation for, you 

 4   know, whatever reason. 

 5       Q.  And how did you calculate the average of ten to 

 6   fifteen minutes per phone call? 

 7       A.  That's actually doing a case study.  Again, this 

 8   was back in my prior role, which was seven months ago, 

 9   so the data isn't, you know, from yesterday.  But that's 

10   basically taking the average hold time or talk time with 

11   Qwest when we do make a call, as well as later in the 

12   testimony you'll also see the average hold time of 30 

13   minutes. 

14       Q.  If Qwest were to tell you that the average 

15   transaction time for a POTS ticket is five minutes, 

16   would that be unusually short in your view, or would 

17   that be something that was within the realm of 

18   possibility? 

19       A.  If on an average, I would say that would be 

20   unusually short. 

21       Q.  What takes ten to fifteen minutes during these 

22   calls? 

23       A.  That's having the discussions with them, they 

24   are docketing on their system, we're docketing on ours, 

25   we're reading through the ticket.  They might have to 
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 1   put us on hold to call dispatch to tell us when the tech 

 2   is going to arrive or why he's late or whatever the 

 3   scenario is for that ticket. 

 4       Q.  I want to ask you a little bit about how you 

 5   calculated the people hour savings. 

 6       A.  Uh-huh. 

 7       Q.  And the way I would do it based on your 

 8   testimony -- and I'm just going to walk you through it 

 9   one step at a time and maybe you can stop me if I'm 

10   wrong -- the first thing I would do would be to take 12 

11   percent and multiply it -- or no.  The first thing I 

12   would do is take 155 POTS tickets and multiply it by 

13   eight transactions -- 

14       A.  That's correct. 

15       Q.  -- to get the total number of transactions. 

16       A.  Correct. 

17       Q.  Would you accept subject to your check that 

18   that's 1,240? 

19       A.  Yes. 

20       Q.  And then to determine how many of those get 

21   resolved on a fully automated basis, you'd take 12 

22   percent of that? 

23       A.  The 12 percent is basically there as an example 

24   that 12 percent of all of our POTS tickets go through 

25   with no human intervention.  It really doesn't have any 
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 1   basis on the calculation throughout the rest of the 

 2   testimony.  So we took the 155 average tickets times the 

 3   average of eight transactions per ticket, coming out to 

 4   the 1240 which you stated, and off that 1240 we are 

 5   averaging ten minutes per call if we were to go 

 6   manually, coming out to 12,400 minutes, dividing that 

 7   into 60 minutes per hour is where the over 200 man-hours 

 8   comes from. 

 9       Q.  But you're saying that you already do 88 percent 

10   of these tickets with some manual intervention? 

11       A.  Some. 

12       Q.  But maybe not all eight of the transactions? 

13       A.  Yes.  It might just be one transaction. 

14       Q.  I see.  So would you accept, subject to your 

15   check, that if you took the 12 percent and applied 12 

16   percent to 1,240, you would get approximately 149 

17   transactions? 

18       A.  Yes. 

19       Q.  And then if you take that 149 transactions and 

20   multiply those transactions by 15 minutes each -- 

21           MR. MERZ:  Your Honor, I'm just going to object, 

22   because I understood Ms. Blanchard to say that's not the 

23   way it was done.  So she's just asking for a math 

24   exercise here that I don't know that it's relevant.  So 

25   I object on relevance grounds. 
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 1           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Ms. Anderl? 

 2           MS. ANDERL:  Well, I'm just asking the witness 

 3   to help me understand and to explain her testimony.  And 

 4   if the 12 percent isn't relevant, I don't know why they 

 5   included it in the testimony.  I think I have an 

 6   opportunity to explore this. 

 7           MR. MERZ:  My point isn't that the 12 percent 

 8   isn't relevant, it is that Ms. Blanchard already said 

 9   that number wasn't part of the calculation that she 

10   used.  I think she's able to explain the calculation, 

11   but it's unfair to ask her to just do this math that 

12   doesn't appear to be related to what her testimony is 

13   about. 

14           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Ms. Blanchard, could you 

15   clarify if the 12 percent was used in your calculation? 

16           THE WITNESS:  It's not used in the calculation. 

17   It's basically there as an example, stating the 12 

18   percent, from all the POTS tickets, 12 percent go 

19   through with no human intervention whatsoever. 

20           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  I'm going to sustain it. 

21   Thank you. 

22           MS. ANDERL:  Your Honor, all I was attempting to 

23   do, and I'll try another question on this, is to explore 

24   where the 12 percent, whether it was used or not, 

25   whether it maybe should have been used in the 
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 1   calculation. 

 2   BY MS. ANDERL: 

 3       Q.  So, Ms. Blanchard, would you agree that one way 

 4   to look at the savings could be to look at the number of 

 5   tickets that are fully automated and see what would 

 6   happen if they became fully manual? 

 7       A.  Yes.  And I think on the next page of the 

 8   testimony, when you get into the ticket counts, and 

 9   transactions for circuit tickets, which of course the 

10   volume is much higher, I think it identifies, you know, 

11   how -- a larger number of people-hours that it would 

12   take, because, you know, the POTS world, as we all know 

13   in telecommunications, is dwindling compared to where it 

14   was since cell phones have come out. 

15       Q.  So if you were going to look at just how much 

16   resources you save based on the number of tickets that 

17   are fully automated, then you would look at the 12 

18   percent? 

19       A.  Correct. 

20       Q.  So just to clarify then, if those eight 

21   transactions average per ticket, if even one of those 

22   was a phone call, then it would fall into the 88 

23   percent? 

24       A.  That's correct. 

25       Q.  Now, are you familiar with how PAETEC interfaces 
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 1   with Verizon for repair tickets? 

 2       A.  Yes. 

 3       Q.  How is that? 

 4       A.  It is through a graphical user interface. 

 5       Q.  That's in territory that is not overlapping 

 6   Qwest territory.  Is that right? 

 7       A.  That's correct. 

 8       Q.  Is that a different part of PAETEC? 

 9       A.  There is another network operations center that 

10   does handle that ticket load, yes. 

11       Q.  Do you have any idea of what the volume of 

12   trouble tickets is for Verizon? 

13       A.  No, I don't have a count per se of what their 

14   ticket load is, but I can tell you that the Qwest 

15   territory that the NOC that I was overseeing combined 

16   with the AT&T territory does -- is pretty equivalent to 

17   the Verizon territory. 

18       Q.  Do you know why PAETEC is using a graphic user 

19   interface instead of electronic bonding with Verizon? 

20       A.  I do not. 

21       Q.  PAETEC has on staff people who are paid to use 

22   the CEMR interface.  Is that right? 

23       A.  That's correct. 

24       Q.  What do they use it for? 

25       A.  We basically only use CEMR if MEDIACC goes down 
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 1   for whatever reason, and in my six years in the NOC 

 2   there might have been one instance, if that.  CEMR has 

 3   been -- MEDIACC has been very reliable.  Our e-bonding 

 4   has not gone down with the exception of maintenance and 

 5   that type of thing. 

 6       Q.  Do you have an opinion about whether or not 

 7   MEDIACC is stable? 

 8       A.  Yes. 

 9       Q.  Is it? 

10       A.  I believe it's stable.  Again in the six 

11   years -- and I still use it today simply because I was 

12   still in my position so long, I'll get escalations from 

13   customers and have to go into the ticket system.  I've 

14   yet to see it fail.  As I said, there was one time we 

15   had to use the graphical interface, which was CEMR. 

16       Q.  So PAETEC has not recently encountered any 

17   problems with MEDIACC? 

18       A.  None whatsoever, no. 

19       Q.  If the Washington Commission allows 

20   Qwest/CenturyLink to implement MTG in this state, would 

21   PAETEC intend to convert to MTG early or remain on 

22   MEDIACC during the term of the merger commitments? 

23       A.  I mean, that question would probably be better 

24   directed towards Chris, who is over IT, but I would 

25   anticipate we would have to remain as is, because we 
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 1   don't have the resources to move forward for that 

 2   development at this time. 

 3       Q.  So if you remained as is, and MEDIACC continued 

 4   to function in the future as it has in the past, then 

 5   MTG would not replace MEDIACC for you at this time.  Is 

 6   that right? 

 7       A.  Correct. 

 8       Q.  PAETEC isn't claiming that MEDIACC can never be 

 9   replaced, are you? 

10       A.  No. 

11       Q.  And so long as Qwest follows the timelines and 

12   performance duties set forth in the settlement agreement 

13   to retire or replace MEDIACC, that would address 

14   PAETEC's concerns? 

15       A.  Yes, as long as we had the time to develop and 

16   be able to talk to the system without losing any of our 

17   existing automation. 

18       Q.  Sure. 

19       A.  And that the testing, as far as test loads and 

20   so forth, was equivalent to what we have today with 

21   MEDIACC. 

22           MS. ANDERL:  I have no further questions for 

23   this witness.  Thank you. 

24           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you, Ms. Anderl. 

25           Mr. Merz, did you want to redirect? 
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 1           MR. MERZ:  Just one brief point of 

 2   clarification, Your Honor, and it regards this question 

 3   about your calculation of the person-hour savings and 

 4   this 12 percent. 

 5                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

 6   BY MR. MERZ: 

 7       Q.  As I understand it, the 80 percent aren't manual 

 8   tickets, they're a combination of some manual 

 9   intervention and some automated intervention? 

10       A.  Yes. 

11       Q.  And so in calculating the person-hours savings, 

12   you also have to take into account the degree to which 

13   you also realized a savings in that remaining 88 

14   percent.  Is that right? 

15       A.  That's correct. 

16           MR. MERZ:  Nothing further, Your Honor.  Thank 

17   you. 

18           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

19           I have no clarification questions, so unless 

20   staff wishes to cross-examine the witness. 

21           Staff, would you like a moment off the record? 

22           MS. CAMERON-RULKOWSKI:  We would like a brief 

23   moment off the error. 

24           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  That's fine. 

25           (Pause in proceedings.) 
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 1           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Does staff wish to 

 2   cross-examine Ms. Blanchard? 

 3           MS. CAMERON-RULKOWSKI:  No, Your Honor.  Thank 

 4   you. 

 5           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  That's fine.  Thank you so 

 6   much.  I have no clarification questions.  The witness 

 7   is dismissed. 

 8           MR. MERZ:  Just to be clear, Ms. Blanchard can 

 9   be excused from the hearing? 

10           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  That's fine. 

11           MR. MERZ:  Thank you. 

12           THE WITNESS:  Thank you. 

13           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Mr. Merz, did you wish to 

14   call your next witness? 

15           MR. MERZ:  Yes.  We'd call Christopher Hansen to 

16   the stand. 

17           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

18           If you'll just raise your right hand. 

19                      CHRISTOPHER HANSEN 

20           Witness herein, having been first duly sworn on 

21   oath, was examined and testified as follow: 

22           THE WITNESS:  I do. 

23           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Be seated. 

24    

25    
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 1           Go ahead, Mr. Merz. 

 2                       DIRECT EXAMINATION 

 3   BY MR. MERZ: 

 4       Q.  Good morning, sir. 

 5       A.  Good morning. 

 6       Q.  Could you spell both your first and last names. 

 7       A.  Christopher, C-H-R-I-S-T-O-P-H-E-R, last name is 

 8   H-A-N-S-E-N. 

 9       Q.  Mr. Hansen, by whom are you employed? 

10       A.  I'm employed by PAETEC, now Windstream. 

11       Q.  You have filed in this case both direct and 

12   rebuttal testimony.  Is that right? 

13       A.  Yes. 

14       Q.  And you should have there in front of you a 

15   notebook which contains your direct testimony.  Has that 

16   testimony been marked as hearing Exhibit CH-1T? 

17       A.  Yes. 

18       Q.  It has attached to it what's been marked as 

19   hearing Exhibits CH-2 and CH-3.  Is that correct? 

20       A.  Yes. 

21       Q.  You also have there your rebuttal testimony 

22   which has been marked as hearing Exhibit CH-4T.  Is that 

23   right? 

24       A.  Yes. 

25       Q.  Just to be clear on the record, the exhibits 
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 1   attached to your direct testimony are referenced in that 

 2   testimony as CH-1 and CH-2, although they've been 

 3   assigned different numbers, official numbers for the 

 4   purpose of the commission record.  Is that right? 

 5       A.  Yes. 

 6       Q.  Mr. Hansen, do you have any corrections to 

 7   either your direct or your rebuttal testimony? 

 8       A.  Yes.  I just have a few. 

 9           The first one is in my direct testimony, page 1, 

10   line three.  The same changes as before, the 1 Martha's 

11   Way address should now be 1450 North Center Point Road, 

12   and the second one is in the next question, line six, 

13   just stating that PAETEC is now a part of Windstream. 

14           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  I'm sorry to interrupt, but 

15   so is PAETEC no longer a part of McLeod? 

16           THE WITNESS:  McLeod was purchased by PAETEC, so 

17   it was a part of PAETEC, but now PAETEC has been 

18   purchased by Windstream. 

19           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  What is PAETEC doing 

20   business as?  Windstream? 

21           THE WITNESS:  I think it is PAETEC, a Windstream 

22   company. 

23           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay. 

24           THE WITNESS:  For now. 

25           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  Thank you. 



0111 

 1   BY MR. MERZ: 

 2       Q.  Do you have any other corrections to either your 

 3   direct or rebuttal testimony, sir? 

 4       A.  In my rebuttal testimony, I would just add on 

 5   page 1, line seven, that PAETEC is now a Windstream 

 6   company also. 

 7       Q.  With those corrections, is the direct and 

 8   rebuttal testimony true and accurate to the best of your 

 9   knowledge? 

10       A.  Yes, it is. 

11           MR. MERZ:  Your Honor, Mr. Hansen is available 

12   for cross-examination. 

13           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

14           Ms. Anderl? 

15           MS. ANDERL:  Yes.  Thank you, Your Honor. 

16                       CROSS-EXAMINATION 

17   BY MS. ANDERL: 

18       Q.  Good morning, Mr. Hansen. 

19       A.  Good morning. 

20       Q.  My name is Lisa Anderl.  I'm an attorney for 

21   Qwest/CenturyLink, and I'll be asking you some questions 

22   this morning. 

23           Mr. Hansen, did you negotiate the Integra merger 

24   settlement agreement? 

25       A.  No, I did not. 
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 1       Q.  One of the exhibits that's attached to your 

 2   testimony is an excerpt from the interconnection 

 3   agreement between Qwest and McLeod or PAETEC.  Is that 

 4   correct? 

 5       A.  Yes, yes. 

 6       Q.  And is PAETEC in this case contending that Qwest 

 7   is in violation of any of the provisions of that 

 8   interconnection agreement? 

 9       A.  No, we are not. 

10       Q.  Thank you. 

11           Mr. Hansen, you're familiar with some of the 

12   discovery responses that PAETEC provided to 

13   Qwest/CenturyLink in response to the discovery questions 

14   we asked you? 

15       A.  Yes. 

16       Q.  And did you assist in the preparation of some of 

17   those responses? 

18       A.  Yes, I did. 

19           MS. ANDERL:  Your Honor, I'd like to distribute 

20   a proposed exhibit.  I'm not sure how we're going to be 

21   numbering the cross exhibits. 

22           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Sure. 

23           MS. ANDERL:  How many does the bench need? 

24           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  I'll need two copies, but of 

25   course the exhibit will actually have to be filed with 
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 1   the record center.  I just need two for my purposes. 

 2           MS. ANDERL:  Okay. 

 3           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

 4           Let me go ahead and get an exhibit number 

 5   assigned to this.  So this exhibit will be designated as 

 6   CH-5C. 

 7           MS. ANDERL:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

 8           (Exhibit CH-5C was offered.) 

 9   BY MS. ANDERL: 

10       Q.  Looking at what's been marked for the record as 

11   Exhibit CH-5C, do you see request 1-4? 

12       A.  Yes. 

13       Q.  Did you assist in the preparation of that 

14   response? 

15       A.  Yes, I did. 

16       Q.  Does the attached invoice reflect a true and 

17   correct copy of the confidential attachment one that is 

18   referenced in the response? 

19       A.  Yes. 

20           MS. ANDERL:  Your Honor, we move the admission 

21   of Exhibit CH-5C.  We're only referring to the request 

22   1-4 even though there's other material on page. 

23           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  Are there any 

24   objections? 

25           MR. MERZ:  No objection. 
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 1           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  So admitted.  Thank 

 2   you. 

 3           (Exhibit CH-5C was admitted.) 

 4           MS. ANDERL:  Thank you. 

 5   BY MS. ANDERL: 

 6       Q.  Mr. Hansen, is the identity of the vendor that 

 7   is reflected in this invoice confidential? 

 8       A.  No, it is not. 

 9       Q.  So we can say for the record that the vendor is 

10   Monfox, M-O-N-F-O-X, LLC? 

11       A.  Yes. 

12       Q.  What services, without going into confidential 

13   information, what services does Monfox provide to 

14   PAETEC? 

15       A.  Monfox provides a piece of software that 

16   converts CMIP protocol into XML protocol for purposes of 

17   electronic repair. 

18       Q.  And the CMIP protocol is the MEDIACC protocol. 

19   Is that right? 

20       A.  Yes. 

21       Q.  And the XML protocol is the protocol that PAETEC 

22   uses? 

23       A.  Yes, yes. 

24       Q.  So did Monfox develop the software that performs 

25   this function? 
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 1       A.  Yes, it did. 

 2       Q.  So for purposes of electronic bonding with 

 3   Qwest, you outsourced that function? 

 4       A.  Yeah, I don't know if I'd call it outsourcing, 

 5   but we purchased this piece of software from them. 

 6       Q.  And then this is just basically an annual 

 7   license or support fee? 

 8       A.  Yes.  That's what this invoice represents.  It's 

 9   annual maintenance and support cost. 

10       Q.  Do you have any other costs associated with the 

11   CMIP to XML protocol, external costs? 

12       A.  No.  This will be -- 

13       Q.  Then there were probably internal resources 

14   dedicated to that as well, or not? 

15       A.  When we first implemented it? 

16       Q.  Sure. 

17       A.  Yes.  Yes, we had internal resources, had to do 

18   some development to take that XML, convert it into our 

19   internal XML format, and have our system process those 

20   transactions. 

21       Q.  Then what about on an ongoing basis, are there 

22   internal costs? 

23       A.  Just for support. 

24       Q.  Based on your experience to date, is MEDIACC 

25   stable? 
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 1       A.  Yes.  We don't -- we experience very few outages 

 2   related to MEDIACC. 

 3       Q.  Let me just ask you this question, because I 

 4   don't really understand how it would work.  If PAETEC -- 

 5   let me just back up.  Have you reviewed the tech specs 

 6   for the MTG XML interface? 

 7       A.  Yes. 

 8       Q.  You made some suggestions to Qwest with regard 

 9   to some things that PAETEC thought weren't in there that 

10   should be? 

11       A.  In the XML or you're referring to the CMIP 

12   proposal? 

13       Q.  No.  The MTG XML. 

14       A.  Yes, yes, we made a few suggestions based on our 

15   experience and our level of automation that could help 

16   both companies, that we would like to have included. 

17       Q.  Okay.  And do you know if Qwest included those? 

18       A.  I do not know that. 

19       Q.  Do you know that they didn't or just don't know? 

20       A.  No, I don't know.  I haven't -- I don't believe 

21   I've seen the final tech specs to know if that has been 

22   included or not. 

23       Q.  Now, PAETEC has experience converting from a 

24   CMIP system protocol to an XML for our functions.  Is 

25   that right? 
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 1       A.  For our functions? 

 2       Q.  Yes. 

 3       A.  Or for other carriers? 

 4       Q.  Other carriers? 

 5       A.  Other carriers? 

 6       Q.  Yes. 

 7       A.  Yes, we've converted from the CMIP interface to 

 8   a new XML interface with AT&T.  I don't know the exact 

 9   date.  I think it was in the 2007 time frame. 

10       Q.  Would that experience help you if you were to 

11   decide to convert from CMIP to XML for Qwest? 

12       A.  It would certainly help, but it -- you just 

13   can't copy it.  It would still take some significant 

14   development work.  The XML is very similar, but each 

15   company can take the TML XML standard format and 

16   customize it to its own need, so we have to do 

17   development related to that, and also the basic web 

18   services providing that -- the XML transactions are 

19   fundamentally different in a way that AT&T and 

20   CenturyLink are going to implement them, and also we 

21   would need to do internal development to handle our -- 

22   how our internal automation works related to that 

23   interface, the new interface. 

24       Q.  Is it correct to describe XML as a language? 

25       A.  Yeah, at a high level it is.  It's a messaging 
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 1   format, yes. 

 2       Q.  If PAETEC already speaks XML, and has to convert 

 3   to CMIP through this Monfox software, why can't you use 

 4   that XML to interface with MTG, which is going to speak 

 5   XML? 

 6       A.  It is -- there needs to be two separate -- 

 7   separate interfaces, two separate logic streams.  The 

 8   XML being used will be very similar, but there will be 

 9   differences in the formatting, depending on what 

10   Qwest -- or CenturyLink, I'm sorry, does differently, 

11   and values in the XML messages may be different.  You 

12   know, the TML XML standard is just a template, so those 

13   differences do have to be accounted for. 

14       Q.  PAETEC has said that it could devote IT 

15   resources to start working on an XML interface by July 

16   of this year? 

17       A.  No sooner than that. 

18       Q.  No sooner than that. 

19       A.  That would be at the earliest. 

20       Q.  Do you have a preference as between XML and 

21   CMIP? 

22       A.  In this case we have the CMIP interface up and 

23   running.  If there were no proposed changes, we would 

24   not be interested in making that change.  We have no 

25   problems with it, we have software support and 
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 1   maintenance for it, so in this case we would have no 

 2   preference over implementing XML or CML. 

 3       Q.  If you had to start building a system from the 

 4   ground up, would you have a preference? 

 5       A.  If we started from scratch, yes, we would start 

 6   with XML. 

 7       Q.  Now, Mr. Hansen, could you turn to page 6 of 

 8   your direct testimony, CH-1T. 

 9       A.  Okay. 

10       Q.  Do you see footnote two?  There you have a cite 

11   to the ATIS website. 

12       A.  Yes. 

13       Q.  You did not include that document that is at the 

14   end of that link with your testimony, did you? 

15       A.  I do not believe so, no. 

16       Q.  Would you recognize it if I showed it to you? 

17       A.  I believe that would be -- yeah, I would. 

18       Q.  Okay. 

19           MS. ANDERL:  Your Honor, I'm going to distribute 

20   another exhibit.  It's going to be marked I guess as 

21   CH-6. 

22           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  That's fine.  Thank you. 

23           The exhibit has been marked as CH-6. 

24           (Exhibit CH-6 was offered.) 

25           MS. ANDERL:  Thank you, Your Honor. 
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 1   BY MS. ANDERL: 

 2       Q.  Mr. Hansen, do you have a copy of the exhibit in 

 3   front of you that's now been marked as CH-6? 

 4       A.  Yes, I do. 

 5       Q.  Do you recognize that as the ATIS standard that 

 6   is at the end the link that you cited in footnote two? 

 7       A.  Yes.  It appears to be that -- it appears to be 

 8   the standards document. 

 9       Q.  Mr. Hansen, that document was approved by the 

10   Wireless Technologies and Systems Committee.  Is that 

11   right?  Is that what it says? 

12       A.  Yes, that's what it says. 

13       Q.  Is there another part of ATIS that works 

14   specifically on CLEC to ILEC interconnection standards? 

15       A.  I couldn't tell you. 

16       Q.  Are you familiar with the Telecom Management and 

17   Operations Committee, or the TMOC? 

18       A.  No, I'm not familiar. 

19       Q.  Can you point me, Mr. Hansen, to any place in 

20   this document where either trouble administration or 

21   repair is referenced in this standard? 

22           MR. MERZ:  Your Honor, I'll just note for the 

23   record it's obviously a very lengthy document with a lot 

24   of small and very technical print.  I don't know if the 

25   witness is being asked to kind of review this in detail 
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 1   at this point or precisely what he's being asked to do. 

 2           MS. ANDERL:  Well, Your Honor, if we need to 

 3   take this up after a break, that's fine, but he cited it 

 4   in his testimony, I think it's fair to ask him about it. 

 5           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  I agree.  So if there was an 

 6   objection, it was overruled. 

 7           THE WITNESS:  Should I take the time now to 

 8   review it? 

 9           MS. ANDERL:  That would be fine. 

10           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Mr. Hansen, if you do need 

11   some additional time to review, to look for the repair 

12   and maintenance, that's fine. 

13           THE WITNESS:  Yes, please. 

14           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  We'll go off the record for 

15   a moment.  Thank you. 

16           (A break was taken from 10:40 a.m. to 10:51 a.m.) 

17           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  We're go back on the record, 

18   and we were having cross-examination from Ms. Anderl. 

19           MS. ANDERL:  Yes.  And I think there was a 

20   question pending, that the witness was going to take 

21   some time to look at to Exhibit CH-6 and see if he could 

22   answer. 

23   BY MS. ANDERL: 

24       Q.  Do you need me to repeat the question? 

25       A.  Yes, please, if you would. 
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 1       Q.  I don't know if I can do it exactly, but I think 

 2   that the question generally was can you point me to 

 3   anything in this standard that addresses either trouble 

 4   administration or repair. 

 5       A.  No, I cannot.  This document is a high level how 

 6   to invoke CMIP protocol-type document.  It doesn't get 

 7   into the details of how to use -- you know, of the 

 8   detailed repair or EBTA-type transactions. 

 9       Q.  Let's see.  Are you generally familiar with 

10   standards as part of your job responsibilities? 

11       A.  Generally, at a high level. 

12       Q.  Does PAETEC participate in ATIS? 

13       A.  No, we do not. 

14       Q.  So you're not a member? 

15       A.  No. 

16       Q.  But you agree it is a standards body that 

17   establishes standards generally accepted for 

18   telecommunications in the United States? 

19       A.  Yes, that's my understanding. 

20           MS. ANDERL:  Your Honor, did I move 

21   Exhibit CH-6?  I don't think I did. 

22           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Not yet. 

23           MS. ANDERL:  I would move its admission. 

24           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Are there any objections? 

25           MR. MERZ:  No objections. 
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 1           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you.  So moved. 

 2           (Exhibit CH-6 was admitted.) 

 3   BY MS. ANDERL: 

 4       Q.  Mr. Hansen, from an IT perspective, do you think 

 5   it's reasonable for CenturyLink to be concerned about 

 6   MEDIACC? 

 7       A.  Yes, given what I've been told and what I've 

 8   heard, their hardware is out of date and software is 

 9   unsupported and out of maintenance, so there's definite 

10   concern. 

11       Q.  And is it reasonable for CenturyLink to be 

12   proactive in terms of addressing that concern? 

13       A.  Yes, proactive measures should be taken to 

14   address that concern of an unstable MEDIACC; what those 

15   practical measures are I think are a big difference.  I 

16   think that MEDIACC should have been kept up to date over 

17   the years.  I think it's been out of date for quite a 

18   while now.  I think it should have been kept up to date 

19   so that we didn't have to come to the point to where we 

20   would need to do an estimated six-month project to get 

21   to a back-up in a case of a failure. 

22       Q.  Do you think it's prudent for a company to have 

23   a back-up plan in case of an OSS failure? 

24       A.  Yes, I do. 

25       Q.  Have you reviewed the Qwest/CenturyLink disaster 
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 1   recovery plan for MEDIACC? 

 2       A.  Yes, I have. 

 3       Q.  And does PAETEC have a back-up plan in case of a 

 4   MEDIACC failure? 

 5       A.  In case of a MEDIACC failure? 

 6       Q.  Yes. 

 7       A.  As a business? 

 8       Q.  Yes. 

 9       A.  I believe they would -- well, they would have to 

10   go manual.  They would have -- I guess a MEDIACC 

11   failure, that would mean CEMR was unavailable also, so 

12   they would have to go manual, and that's what they do 

13   when there is an outage today, they get on the phones 

14   and do manual ticketing. 

15       Q.  If MEDIACC stays in place for the 30 months set 

16   forth in the merger settlement agreement, and functions 

17   as it has in the past, would PAETEC believe that 

18   CenturyLink is violating the merger settlement 

19   agreement? 

20       A.  It's my understanding that it would be, because 

21   it is -- if it stays up the whole time? 

22       Q.  Yes. 

23       A.  It's still my understanding that it would be 

24   because it's -- providing an MTG is serving as the 

25   back-up, and would be the replacement in case of a 
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 1   failure. 

 2       Q.  And I'm going to direct you to an exhibit that 

 3   is attached to Bonnie Johnson's testimony, which is 

 4   Exhibit BJJ-3.  And I can provide you a copy of it.  It 

 5   is the merger settlement agreement.  I wanted to ask 

 6   you, I'll bring it up there in just a minute, but I 

 7   wanted to ask you what provision of the merger 

 8   settlement agreement you believe that would be in 

 9   violation by having MTG as a back-up. 

10           MS. ANDERL:  Your Honor, may I approach the 

11   witness? 

12           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Sure. 

13   BY MS. ANDERL: 

14       Q.  Mr. Hansen, I've handed you Exhibit BJJ-3, and 

15   it's open to paragraph 12 of the merger settlement 

16   agreement between Qwest and CenturyLink and Integra. 

17           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  I'm not sure you mean BJJ-3. 

18   That is the chronology. 

19           MS. ANDERL:  I'm sorry.  I'm looking at the tab, 

20   not the exhibit list.  It's BJJ-5. 

21           MS. CAMERON-RULKOWSKI:  You mean the joint CLECs 

22   or the Integra settlement agreement? 

23           MS. ANDERL:  BJJ-4.  Four.  This is very 

24   confusing. 

25           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  You said paragraph 12? 
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 1           MS. ANDERL:  Yes. 

 2           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

 3           THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry. 

 4   BY MS. ANDERL: 

 5       Q.  I think I had it open to the right page, 

 6   Mr. Hansen, I think I just described the exhibit 

 7   incorrectly.  In that notebook it is probably tabbed as 

 8   BJJ-3.  Do you have it? 

 9       A.  Yes. 

10       Q.  Do you see that paragraph 12 addresses OSS? 

11       A.  Yes, I see paragraph 12. 

12       Q.  Are you generally familiar with the provisions 

13   of that paragraph? 

14       A.  At a very high level.  I was not involved in 

15   writing this or interpreting it. 

16       Q.  And so when you say it's your understanding that 

17   Qwest would still be violating that merger settlement 

18   agreement by having MTG available even if MEDIACC didn't 

19   fail, how did you come to that understanding? 

20       A.  Through consulting with my legal department and 

21   giving their -- them giving their interpretation of 

22   this. 

23       Q.  And so can you independently then point me to a 

24   provision that you think we'd be in violation of? 

25       A.  I'm not sure if I could or not.  I would have to 
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 1   review this. 

 2       Q.  Are you aware of whether there is any provision 

 3   in that merger settlement agreement that prohibits 

 4   Qwest/CenturyLink from having an additional OSS system 

 5   beyond that which was available in 2011? 

 6       A.  It was my understanding that there wouldn't be 

 7   any new systems that would be integrated, that would be 

 8   possible to integrate with. 

 9       Q.  Does it say in there any place that you are 

10   aware that Qwest cannot add a system? 

11       A.  I would have to read it. 

12           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Mr. Hansen, do you need a 

13   minute? 

14           THE WITNESS:  Yes, please.  I'm sorry, I wasn't 

15   prepared to -- 

16           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  That's okay. 

17           THE WITNESS:  -- talk about the settlement 

18   agreement. 

19           (Pause in proceedings.) 

20           THE WITNESS:  So I think my understanding is 

21   that MTG was -- and I know your question was if MEDIACC 

22   stayed up the whole time.  Right? 

23           MS. ANDERL:  Yes, it was. 

24           THE WITNESS:  Okay.  My understanding was that 

25   MEDIACC was in risk of having a catastrophic failure, an 
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 1   unrecoverable failure, so that in that case it would, 

 2   MTG would be deemed as the replacement of MEDIACC. 

 3   BY MS. ANDERL: 

 4       Q.  So the violation would occur if MEDIACC failed? 

 5       A.  Yes, I believe so. 

 6           MS. ANDERL:  A couple more exhibits that we're 

 7   going to go through here.  Your Honor, I'm going to 

 8   distribute another data request response to be marked as 

 9   Exhibit CH-7. 

10           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

11           (Exhibit CH-7 was offered.) 

12   BY MS. ANDERL: 

13       Q.  Mr. Hansen, do you have that exhibit in front of 

14   you? 

15       A.  Yes. 

16       Q.  Do you recognize that as a -- what I'm looking 

17   at is the very bottom of the page that says "Request 

18   No. 1-7: Is MEDIACC," and then immediately goes to the 

19   next page. 

20       A.  Yes. 

21       Q.  And then so you see the question there, and the 

22   objection below it, and then the response below that. 

23       A.  Yes. 

24       Q.  Did you assist in the preparation of this 

25   response? 
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 1       A.  I'm sorry.  Can I have a second to look at it? 

 2           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Sure, sure. 

 3           (Pause in proceedings.) 

 4           THE WITNESS:  Yes, I did have input into this. 

 5   BY MS. ANDERL: 

 6       Q.  Does this appear to be a true and correct copy 

 7   to the best of your knowledge of the request No. 7 and 

 8   the joint CLEC response? 

 9       A.  To the best of my knowledge, yes. 

10           MS. ANDERL:  Your Honor, I'd move CH-7. 

11           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  Any objections? 

12           MR. MERZ:  No objection, Your Honor.  Thank you. 

13           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  So moved. 

14           (Exhibit CH-7 was admitted.) 

15   BY MS. ANDERL: 

16       Q.  Mr. Hansen, I just wanted to ask you about this 

17   response, because in the response on the second page it 

18   says that the joint CLECs don't believe MEDIACC is 

19   outdated.  Do you see that? 

20       A.  Yes. 

21       Q.  I thought I heard you say in response to my 

22   questions a few moments ago that MEDIACC was outdated. 

23       A.  All right.  Maybe I should clarify.  MEDIACC 

24   hardware and software that are on MEDIACC are outdated 

25   from what we have been told by CenturyLink.  The 
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 1   function that it performs and how it performs is not 

 2   outdated.  The CMIP protocol, I don't consider it to be 

 3   outdated.  We have no problems with it, we can get 

 4   maintenance and support on it.  I think that's what this 

 5   is referring to.  It says the -- we do not believe 

 6   MEDIACC is outdated. 

 7       Q.  Okay.  Thank you for that clarification. 

 8       A.  You're welcome. 

 9           MS. ANDERL:  Your Honor, I have one more exhibit 

10   that I'd like to mark as CH-8. 

11           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  This two-page exhibit has 

12   been marked as CH-8. 

13           (Exhibit CH-8 was offered.) 

14   BY MS. ANDERL: 

15       Q.  Mr. Hansen, I'm going to ask you some questions 

16   about this document in a few minutes, but I do just want 

17   to go back right now and ask you one more question about 

18   Monfox. 

19       A.  Okay. 

20       Q.  Would you use Monfox to develop the XML-to-XML 

21   interface when and if you do start to use the MTG 

22   protocol -- or the MTG interface, rather? 

23       A.  No, we would not.  Monfox does not provide that 

24   type of interface, the XML to XML, and we have the 

25   in-house experience to do that, so it would be preferred 
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 1   that we use in-house resources. 

 2       Q.  Mr. Hansen, looking at what's been marked as 

 3   Exhibit CH-8.  This is an ATIS news release dated 

 4   June 17th, 2004.  I don't know if you've ever seen it 

 5   before, but I did want to ask you a few questions about 

 6   the statements contained in this. 

 7       A.  Okay.  Should I review it first? 

 8       Q.  Why don't you just take a quick look at it. 

 9       A.  Okay. 

10       Q.  Do you have an understanding outside of what's 

11   in this document what a service neutral e-business 

12   framework is? 

13       A.  Service neutral -- 

14       Q.  It's kind of in the headline there.  "ATIS 

15   releases Telecom standards work plan for service neutral 

16   e-business framework." 

17       A.  I believe what it would refer to is that these 

18   e-business services would not be specific to any one 

19   certain function of Telecom Company.  There wouldn't be 

20   one directed towards repair, a different one for LSRs, a 

21   different one for ASRs, that sort of thing. 

22       Q.  Do you understand from reviewing this press 

23   release that ATIS has identified certain barriers to 

24   electronic data interchange? 

25           MR. MERZ:  Your Honor, I'm going to object on 



0132 

 1   grounds of lack of foundation.  I don't believe this 

 2   witness has said that he knows anything about this 

 3   document, other than the fact that he's read it. 

 4           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Ms. Anderl? 

 5           MS. ANDERL:  Well, I could ask him that same 

 6   question without the document.  He's said that he's 

 7   familiar with ATIS standards, and that, you know, this 

 8   is a standards body that promulgates standards for the 

 9   industry.  I'm just wanting to explore whether he is 

10   familiar with -- 

11           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  I think he can answer if 

12   he's familiar with it. 

13           MR. MERZ:  And that's a different question, and 

14   I wouldn't object to that question. 

15           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay. 

16           MS. ANDERL:  What was that question? 

17   BY MS. ANDERL: 

18       Q.  Mr. Hansen, are you familiar with whether or not 

19   ATIS has identified certain barriers to electronic data 

20   interchange? 

21       A.  No.  Before bringing this up, I have not -- was 

22   not aware of that. 

23       Q.  Can you take a look at the third bullet point, 

24   please, which is on page 2. 

25       A.  The one that starts "with a lack of"? 
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 1       Q.  No.  I'm sorry.  "Multiple solutions inhibiting 

 2   the uniform implementation of new services." 

 3           In that third bullet point there, would you 

 4   agree that ATIS has identified that there are barriers 

 5   to the implementation of new services that include -- 

 6           MR. MERZ:  Your Honor, I object on grounds of 

 7   lack of foundation, and also object to reading from a 

 8   document that's not in evidence. 

 9           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Well, we can put it in 

10   evidence right now. 

11           MR. MERZ:  If it's going to be offered, then I'd 

12   object on grounds of lack of foundation.  I don't think 

13   this witness is sufficiently familiar with it to be able 

14   to identify it and provide a foundation for its 

15   admission. 

16           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  I guess I need to ask you, 

17   Mr. Hansen, if you are comfortable identifying and 

18   discussing this news release. 

19           THE WITNESS:  I could -- well, I won't be able 

20   to talk as to what ATIS was trying to get to.  I could 

21   maybe -- if there was some specific questions on whether 

22   I agree with it or not.  I mean -- 

23           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  I guess, Mr. Merz, 

24   what are you specifically objecting to with regards to 

25   foundation? 
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 1           MR. MERZ:  Well, that we have a witness here 

 2   that's being asked about a document that I think he's 

 3   just seeing now for the very first time, and Ms. Anderl 

 4   is reading from the document and asking him if he's 

 5   aware of ATIS having drawn some conclusion or made some 

 6   pronouncement.  I just don't think there's any 

 7   foundation for this witness to be talking about this 

 8   particular document.  If she has general questions about 

 9   what ATIS has done or not done, he can obviously answer 

10   those to the extent he can, but I don't think it's 

11   appropriate to ask him in the context of this document. 

12           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  Well, I'm going to 

13   overrule the objection as long as the questions are 

14   limited to what's specifically stated in this news 

15   release and not asking the witness about ATIS and what 

16   went into their decisions. 

17           MS. ANDERL:  Thanks, Your Honor.  And we can 

18   establish a foundation for admission of this document 

19   through Ms. Albersheim if that's necessary so that the 

20   document is in the record and this part of the 

21   transcript is clear. 

22           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  That's fine. 

23   BY MS. ANDERL: 

24       Q.  So, Mr. Hansen, are you aware of ATIS having 

25   determined that it's appropriate to move forward toward 
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 1   the next generation of OSS interconnection standards? 

 2       A.  I had no previous knowledge of this data 

 3   interchange work plan. 

 4           MS. ANDERL:  Then nothing else, Your Honor. 

 5           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

 6           MS. ANDERL:  We would either offer this exhibit 

 7   now as Exhibit CH-8 or establish foundation and offer it 

 8   later. 

 9           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Mr. Merz, did you still want 

10   to voice your objection? 

11           MR. MERZ:  We would maintain our objection on 

12   grounds of lack of foundation with this witness. 

13           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  All right.  Well, then with 

14   this witness.  Well, then I'll hold the motion to move 

15   into evidence until we have established 

16   Ms. Albersheim's -- 

17           MR. MERZ:  Just so it's not a surprise, my 

18   position at that time is that if there were direct 

19   evidence that they wanted to offer, that should have 

20   come in on a prefiled basis, not now at the hearing.  I 

21   think, you know, what was expected was the parties would 

22   offer their direct evidence and prefile that so everyone 

23   had an opportunity to review it and consider it and 

24   determine whether there were cross-examination issues 

25   that needed to be raised. 
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 1           So, you know, I don't want people to be 

 2   surprised, but when it comes up with Ms. Albersheim, I 

 3   will object to it then as well, but for a different 

 4   reason. 

 5           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Well, I believe the only 

 6   reason that we would be entertaining a motion for this 

 7   to come into evidence then is because you've raised the 

 8   objection to begin with for foundation.  I don't believe 

 9   that this is a direct exhibit.  I believe that it's 

10   still a cross-examination exhibit for Mr. Hansen. 

11           MR. MERZ:  If it's to be a cross-examination 

12   exhibit for Mr. Hansen, I believe there needs to be some 

13   showing that Mr. Hansen is sufficiently familiar with 

14   the document to be asked questions about it.  So my 

15   objection as to offering with Mr. Hansen is that 

16   foundation hasn't been established.  My objection with 

17   respect to Ms. Albersheim is it is unfair surprise 

18   because the document should have been prefiled at the 

19   time of Ms. Albersheim's testimony. 

20           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Ms. Anderl? 

21           MS. ANDERL:  Well, I guess to some extent, Your 

22   Honor, the fact that the witness is not familiar with it 

23   is part of the point.  And could we have filed it as 

24   direct?  Yes.  Do I think that there will likely be an 

25   opportunity for me to admit it through Ms. Albersheim on 
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 1   redirect?  I think that would be a fair opportunity.  I 

 2   don't know where Mr. Merz is going to go on his 

 3   cross-examination, but if he does a line of 

 4   cross-examination much as he did in Colorado, these 

 5   types of issues were discussed. 

 6           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  And given Mr. Hansen's 

 7   reference to ATIS, and the industry standards, I think 

 8   for the purposes that Ms. Anderl has outlined as far as 

 9   indicating that Mr. Hansen is unfamiliar with this 

10   document, it should be -- there's a foundation there, 

11   and so if Ms. Anderl moves now, given the fact that this 

12   is intended to demonstrate Mr. Hansen's lack of 

13   familiarity with this document, then I'm willing to 

14   entertain that motion, despite the objection. 

15           MS. ANDERL:  I will move the document. 

16           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Are there any other 

17   objections to admission of this document? 

18           Okay, hearing none.  So admitted for that 

19   purpose. 

20           (Exhibit CH-8 was admitted.) 

21           MS. ANDERL:  That concludes my cross for this 

22   witness as well. 

23           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

24           Mr. Merz, redirect? 

25           MR. MERZ:  Thank you, Your Honor.  Just a few 
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 1   briefs points. 

 2                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

 3   BY MR. MERZ: 

 4       Q.  You had some questions by Ms. Anderl regarding 

 5   whether the Integra settlement agreement had been 

 6   breached.  Were you involved in the negotiation of the 

 7   Integra settlement agreement? 

 8       A.  No. 

 9       Q.  Is there a joint CLEC witness that will be 

10   testifying today that is in a better position than you 

11   are to testify regarding the Integra settlement 

12   agreement? 

13       A.  Yes, there will be. 

14       Q.  Who is that witness? 

15       A.  Doug. 

16       Q.  Mr. Denney? 

17       A.  Mr. Denney, yes. 

18       Q.  I'd like you to refer to hearing Exhibit BJJ-5, 

19   which is actually under tab four in that big notebook 

20   that you have in front of you.  Do you recognize that 

21   document as the settlement agreement that PAETEC entered 

22   into with CenturyLink and Qwest? 

23       A.  I'm sorry.  BJJ-4, is that the one? 

24       Q.  It's hearing Exhibit BJJ-5, but it's under 

25   tab four in Ms. Johnson's testimony. 
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 1           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  If it would be helpful for 

 2   counsel to approach the witness, that's fine. 

 3           MR. MERZ:  This is the one. 

 4           THE WITNESS:  Okay. 

 5   BY MR. MERZ: 

 6       Q.  Do you have it there now, sir? 

 7       A.  Yes, sir. 

 8       Q.  Do you recognize that as the settlement 

 9   agreement that PAETEC and actually other CLECs entered 

10   into with Qwest and CenturyLink? 

11       A.  It appears to be, yes. 

12       Q.  If you go to page 3 of 7.  It says in the upper 

13   right-hand corner page 3 of 7. 

14       A.  Okay. 

15       Q.  If you look at the paragraph that refers to 

16   functional equivalency, if you would just read the first 

17   sentence to yourself. 

18           MS. ANDERL:  Your Honor, I object.  This is 

19   outside the scope of my cross. 

20           MR. MERZ:  Well, her cross concerned a violation 

21   of the settlement agreement, and the point here is that 

22   there's also another settlement agreement that PAETEC 

23   has entered into, and there's also an issue as to 

24   whether that settlement agreement has been violated. 

25           MS. ANDERL:  But this witness answered questions 
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 1   with regard to violations of settlement agreements, and 

 2   these documents are in the record.  I think that this is 

 3   something that could be addressed on the brief, but this 

 4   is not a document that I asked this witness about, nor 

 5   did he point me to it when I discussed violations of the 

 6   settlement agreement with him. 

 7           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  And I would have to say that 

 8   Mr. Hansen was asked about the other settlement 

 9   agreement and not about PAETEC.  It was a different 

10   exhibit.  So I'm going to have to sustain the objection. 

11   BY MR. MERZ: 

12       Q.  You also, Mr. Hansen, talked about the 

13   appropriateness of Qwest having a back-up plan for 

14   MEDIACC.  Is that right? 

15       A.  Yes, I did. 

16       Q.  In your view, will MTG be an effective back-up 

17   plan for PAETEC? 

18       A.  No, it will not be.  It will require resources 

19   being pulled off of current projects and put onto this 

20   replacement project and we've estimated that to be about 

21   a six-month project. 

22       Q.  You also had some questions about the CMIP 

23   interface.  A number of questions, in fact.  Can you 

24   tell me how it was that PAETEC came to be using the CMIP 

25   interface? 
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 1       A.  Yes.  When the EBTA function was provided, Qwest 

 2   stipulated that that protocol be used, and that's what 

 3   they were providing their -- they provided CMIP as the 

 4   protocol to their EBTA platform. 

 5       Q.  Was that a decision that Qwest made or one that 

 6   PAETEC made? 

 7       A.  To my knowledge, that was a decision that Qwest 

 8   made. 

 9       Q.  If you would refer to your direct testimony, 

10   Exhibit CH-3, which is actually under tab two of that 

11   notebook.  You recognize that is excerpted from the 

12   interconnection agreement? 

13       A.  Yes. 

14       Q.  I'm going to refer you to section 12.2.2.  Tell 

15   me when you have that. 

16       A.  Okay. 

17       Q.  Does that provision refer specifically to this 

18   CMIP protocol? 

19       A.  Yes, in 12.2.2.3 it states MEDIACC interface 

20   will use CMIP protocol. 

21           MR. MERZ:  Nothing further. 

22           Thank you, sir. 

23           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

24           I did have one clarification question that I 

25   wanted to ask. 
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 1           On cross-examination, you discussed with 

 2   Ms. Anderl suggestions that PAETEC may have made to 

 3   Qwest/CenturyLink about modifications to the XML 

 4   platform with MTG.  When were those discussions and when 

 5   were those suggestions made?  And it doesn't have to 

 6   be -- I don't need a specific date, but can you give me 

 7   a month and a year? 

 8           THE WITNESS:  I believe we reviewed those 

 9   specs -- it would have been late spring, early summer of 

10   2011. 

11           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  Thank you.  That's 

12   helpful. 

13           With no other questions, I believe the witness 

14   is dismissed. 

15           Thank you. 

16           MR. MERZ:  Mr. Hansen is excused from the 

17   hearing then? 

18           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  That's fine.  Yes. 

19           MR. MERZ:  Thank you. 

20           THE WITNESS:  Thank you. 

21           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you so much. 

22           Mr. Merz, I believe the next witness is 

23   Ms. Johnson? 

24           MR. MERZ:  That's correct, Your Honor. 

25                        BONNIE JOHNSON 
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 1           Witness herein, having been first duly sworn on 

 2   oath, was examined and testified as follow: 

 3           THE WITNESS:  I do. 

 4           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you.  You can be 

 5   seated. 

 6           Mr. Merz, your witness. 

 7           MR. MERZ:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

 8                      DIRECT EXAMINATION 

 9   BY MR. MERZ: 

10       Q.  Good morning. 

11       A.  Good morning. 

12       Q.  Please state your name and spell both your first 

13   and last names. 

14       A.  My name is Bonnie Johnson, B-O-N-N-I-E, 

15   J-O-H-N-S-O-N. 

16       Q.  By whom are you employed, Ms. Johnson? 

17       A.  Integra Telecom. 

18       Q.  You have caused to be filed in this case both 

19   direct and rebuttal testimony.  Is that correct? 

20       A.  That's correct. 

21       Q.  Your direct testimony has been marked as hearing 

22   Exhibit BJJ-1T.  Is that correct? 

23       A.  That's correct. 

24       Q.  And the exhibits to that have been marked as 

25   hearing exhibits BJJ-2 through BJJ-73.  Is that right? 



0144 

 1       A.  That's correct. 

 2       Q.  Those exhibits are actually referred to within 

 3   your written testimony as BJJ-1 to BJJ-71.  Is that 

 4   correct? 

 5       A.  That's correct. 

 6       Q.  Your rebuttal testimony has been marked as 

 7   BJJ-74T.  Is that correct? 

 8       A.  That's correct. 

 9       Q.  Your rebuttal testimony includes exhibits that 

10   have been marked as hearing exhibits BJJ-75 through 

11   BJJ-82.  Is that correct? 

12       A.  Yes. 

13       Q.  Those exhibits are referred to within your 

14   testimony as BJJ-2A, BJJ-8B and BJJ-72 through 77.  Is 

15   that right? 

16       A.  That's correct. 

17       Q.  Ms. Johnson, do you have any corrections to your 

18   testimony? 

19       A.  I have one minor correction.  It's to my direct 

20   testimony, page 74, line three, and that should say 2009 

21   instead of 2008. 

22       Q.  With that correction, Ms. Johnson, is your 

23   testimony true and accurate to the best of your 

24   knowledge? 

25       A.  Yes. 
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 1           MR. MERZ:  Your Honor, the witness is available 

 2   for cross-examination. 

 3           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

 4           Ms. Anderl? 

 5           MS. ANDERL:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

 6                       CROSS-EXAMINATION 

 7   BY MS. ANDERL: 

 8       Q.  Good morning, Ms. Johnson. 

 9       A.  Good morning. 

10       Q.  My name is Lisa Anderl.  I'm an attorney 

11   in-house for CenturyLink/Qwest.  I'm going to ask you 

12   some questions this morning. 

13           You're employed by Integra.  Is that correct? 

14       A.  That's correct. 

15       Q.  Did you negotiate the Integra settlement in the 

16   merger document? 

17       A.  I was not directly involved with the 

18   negotiations, but I was in the background. 

19       Q.  Do you have an IT background at all? 

20       A.  Not over and above participating in Qwest or now 

21   CenturyLink's CMP. 

22       Q.  Now, in your job responsibilities with Integra, 

23   have you developed a familiarity with the operations 

24   port systems that Integra uses? 

25       A.  Integra uses internally or -- 
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 1       Q.  Yes. 

 2       A.  Okay.  A very, very high level. 

 3       Q.  What about the operation support items that 

 4   belong to Qwest that Integra uses? 

 5       A.  That we interface with, I'm more familiar with 

 6   those. 

 7       Q.  Okay.  Great. 

 8           Do you know how Integra submits trouble reports 

 9   or trouble tickets to CenturyLink or Qwest in the 

10   Legacy/Qwest territory? 

11       A.  Yes.  We use CEMR, C-E-M-R, the GUI interface. 

12       Q.  Do you know what your volume of trouble tickets 

13   is on a monthly basis? 

14       A.  I don't. 

15       Q.  You heard me maybe ask Ms. Blanchard some 

16   questions about the number of transactions per ticket. 

17       A.  Uh-huh. 

18       Q.  Do you have any familiarity with Integra's 

19   experience in that area, so how many transactions it 

20   takes to open work and close a trouble ticket? 

21       A.  Somewhat, you know, familiar with the way that 

22   Ms. Blanchard described it.  That sounds about accurate 

23   to me.  You know, you've got a transaction to open it, 

24   to get one back, and then the transactions going back 

25   and forth as far as the, you know, working through the 
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 1   ticket to completion. 

 2       Q.  Have you ever submitted a trouble ticket through 

 3   CEMR? 

 4       A.  I have not. 

 5       Q.  Do you know what's generally involved in doing 

 6   that? 

 7       A.  I know what's generally involved. 

 8       Q.  Do you know how long it takes just to open a 

 9   ticket? 

10       A.  I don't.  I think it depends on the service, and 

11   what type of information you have to input into the 

12   ticket. 

13       Q.  So if it was a POTS service, would you be able 

14   to answer the question if it was more specific, as to 

15   POTS, how long a ticket would take to open? 

16       A.  Well, you know, with POTS, you know, you might 

17   run an MLT test -- metallic loop testing -- an MLT test 

18   because with POTS you can actually, you know, run a test 

19   on the ticket, whereas you wouldn't do that for a design 

20   ticket or for an unbundled loop, so it would vary. 

21       Q.  How is it that Integra learns from Integra's end 

22   user that they're experiencing trouble with their line? 

23       A.  The customer may contact Integra directly to 

24   communicate that they're having some type of trouble, or 

25   some -- also some of our circuits are monitored in our 
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 1   network operations center, NOC, and they may get an 

 2   alarm, so we might know that there's a trouble on a 

 3   circuit before the customer even knows. 

 4       Q.  So if the customer contacts you, it's generally 

 5   by phone? 

 6       A.  Yes. 

 7       Q.  And then in order -- well, maybe you've said 

 8   that you don't know, but do you know how CEMR works as 

 9   an interface?  Is it something that you manually type 

10   into, or -- 

11       A.  Yes.  I do know that. 

12       Q.  Okay.  Have you ever prepared or submitted 

13   trouble reports via fax? 

14       A.  It's not our policy to do that.  I don't -- I 

15   don't believe, if we're -- if there is some type of a 

16   situation where we would have to do that, I suppose we 

17   would, but it's -- I know it's not our normal process. 

18       Q.  And what about by phone?  Do you sometimes 

19   contact Qwest by telephone? 

20       A.  I believe that there are times when we contact 

21   by telephone versus using a ticket. 

22       Q.  Would that possibly be during times when the 

23   system is maybe down for maintenance or something? 

24       A.  That would be, you know, traditionally through 

25   the night, weekends. 
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 1       Q.  I see you have a couple of notebooks up there, 

 2   Ms. Johnson.  Do you have all of your testimony and 

 3   exhibits? 

 4       A.  Yes. 

 5       Q.  Could you take a look at the document that is 

 6   hearing Exhibit BJJ-3, which is tabbed as BJJ-2. 

 7       A.  Yes.  That's a chronology. 

 8       Q.  Okay.  That chronology starts in April of 2009. 

 9       A.  Correct. 

10       Q.  And goes up through -- it really goes up through 

11   October of last year, if you look at page 51.  Is that 

12   right? 

13       A.  Yes.  BJJ-28 to my rebuttal testimony actually 

14   is an updated chronology, but this one does, yes. 

15       Q.  And then after that it says additional documents 

16   moved to end? 

17       A.  Yes. 

18       Q.  In preparing that chronology -- did you prepare 

19   this? 

20       A.  Yes.  I was involved in preparing it, yes. 

21       Q.  And how did you decide what to include in this 

22   chronology? 

23       A.  We just made an attempt to try and include 

24   everything. 

25       Q.  So did you intentionally exclude any documents 
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 1   or events that you thought were relevant? 

 2       A.  No, no. 

 3       Q.  Ms. Johnson, we've talked about this before, but 

 4   in May of 2011, Qwest withdrew the CEMR retirement 

 5   change request.  Is that correct? 

 6       A.  That's correct. 

 7       Q.  Where is that reflected in your chronology? 

 8       A.  It, if you go to page 20, line 61, I discuss the 

 9   notice that Qwest sent.  It's also discussed in line 66, 

10   on page 22, in an e-mail exchange with Mr. Hunsucker, 

11   and that withdrawal notice is also hearing Exhibit 

12   BJJ-12 to my direct testimony, so I discuss in the 

13   description on page 7, the explanation of that exhibit 

14   on page 26, a May 2nd e-mail exchange on page 50, and on 

15   page 57 again in a May 19th e-mail exchange with 

16   Mr. Hunsucker. 

17       Q.  So Integra was well aware in May of 2011 that 

18   Qwest had withdrawn that change request? 

19       A.  Correct.  Actually, back in I believe it was, 

20   and I can look here, in the February or March time 

21   frame, before they withdraw it, they actually deferred 

22   it. 

23       Q.  Great. 

24           And before we withdrew it, and before we 

25   deferred it, did we also not in March modify that change 
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 1   request to change the description of MTG to no longer 

 2   refer to it as a replacement to MEDIACC? 

 3       A.  Yes.  But I think -- I think that's in the other 

 4   CR, the MTG CR where you modified that.  You may have 

 5   modified this one as well, but -- 

 6       Q.  Do you know if that's in your chronology at all? 

 7       A.  I know that I talk about -- I talk about that in 

 8   my direct testimony.  If you want to give me some time, 

 9   I could probably find that. 

10       Q.  Let's not do that right now.  I just wanted to 

11   still stay on the chronology. 

12       A.  Okay. 

13       Q.  It would have been somewhere in your timeline, 

14   it would have been somewhere around starting at line 29, 

15   kind of through line 47 is the month of March.  Is that 

16   right? 

17       A.  Yeah, 22 is the February CMP meeting on 2-16. 

18       Q.  Right.  I think I said line 29. 

19           So my question was is there any reference in 

20   this chronology to Qwest removing the reference to MTG 

21   as the replacement to MEDIACC. 

22       A.  On line 22, February monthly CMP meeting, Qwest 

23   reviewed the revised -- the title on the cover page had 

24   been changed.  Oh, okay.  That's about the Power Point. 

25       Q.  You know, Ms. Johnson, why don't we move on from 
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 1   that, because I don't want to make you read that whole 

 2   exhibit while we're waiting. 

 3       A.  Okay. 

 4       Q.  So maybe we can just kind of cut to the chase, 

 5   and I'll just ask you, do you agree that in March Qwest 

 6   did change the description of the MTG and remove the 

 7   reference to replacement of MEDIACC? 

 8       A.  I agree that they did that on the MTG CR. 

 9       Q.  Okay. 

10       A.  Yes.  At some point.  And I don't know if it was 

11   March. 

12       Q.  Okay.  And by May, Integra knew that the CRs 

13   were either withdrawn or deferred? 

14       A.  Correct. 

15       Q.  And do you know when Integra filed the complaint 

16   that started this docket? 

17       A.  I don't know exactly.  June maybe? 

18       Q.  So it was after May? 

19       A.  It was after May. 

20       Q.  Have you discussed the MEDIACC MTG issues with 

21   any folks in your IT department at Integra? 

22       A.  Yes. 

23       Q.  What was the nature of those discussions? 

24       A.  Usually related to, in some respects, the 

25   settlement discussions, which I don't think I can talk 
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 1   about here, and then -- am I right about that? 

 2           MR. MERZ:  That's correct. 

 3           MS. ANDERL:  We all agreed on that. 

 4           THE WITNESS:  Okay.  We all agree on that. 

 5           And, you know, some functional discussions with 

 6   Stephanie Pruell, who was our IT person that attends 

 7   CMP. 

 8   BY MS. ANDERL: 

 9       Q.  Can you spell that last name? 

10       A.  Sure.  P-R-U-E-L-L. 

11       Q.  If The Washington Commission allows 

12   Qwest/CenturyLink to go ahead with implementing MTG, do 

13   you know what Integra's plans are in connection with 

14   that?  Will you convert early or will you stay where you 

15   are? 

16       A.  We have no plans to -- you're talking about 

17   using CEMR with the MTG interface versus the current 

18   MEDIACC -- 

19       Q.  Exactly. 

20       A.  -- interface? 

21           And it's my understanding that that is optional, 

22   and that you can request to do that or not request to do 

23   that, and we have no plans at this time to do that prior 

24   to. 

25       Q.  Prior to the 30 months that we've all been 
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 1   talking about? 

 2       A.  That's correct. 

 3       Q.  And so Integra at least, MTG will not replace 

 4   MEDIACC until after the settlement period expires? 

 5       A.  That's correct.  Unless, of course, MEDIACC 

 6   experiences catastrophic failure as CenturyLink or Qwest 

 7   has indicated they're concerned about. 

 8       Q.  Right.  And so assuming MEDIACC stays 

 9   operational into the future as it has in the past, it 

10   won't have been retired prior to the 30-month period. 

11   Is that right? 

12       A.  That's my understanding, yes. 

13       Q.  And is it also your understanding -- I think 

14   you've said this, but I just want to be clear, 

15   Qwest/CenturyLink is not forcing anyone to convert to 

16   the MTG, the CEMR MTG early? 

17       A.  That is my understanding, yes. 

18           MS. ANDERL:  That concludes my questions for 

19   this witness.  Thank you. 

20           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Mr. Merz, redirect? 

21           MR. MERZ:  I do not have any redirect questions. 

22           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  I assume staff did not 

23   indicate that they had any cross. 

24           MS. CAMERON-RULKOWSKI:  Correct, Your Honor. 

25           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you.  I have no 
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 1   clarification questions, so the witness is excused. 

 2           THE WITNESS:  Thank you. 

 3           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

 4           I believe, Mr. Merz, Mr. Denney is the next 

 5   witness up? 

 6           MR. MERZ:  Correct.  Could we just take a very 

 7   short -- 

 8           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  That's fine. 

 9           (A break was taken from 11:47 a.m. to 11:49 p.m.) 

10           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  We'll go back on the record. 

11           If you'd like to introduce your first witness. 

12           MR. MERZ:  Thank you, Your Honor.  We would like 

13   to call Douglas Denney to the stand. 

14           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Raise your right hand. 

15                        DOUGLAS DENNEY 

16           Witness herein, having been first duly sworn on 

17   oath, was examined and testified as follow: 

18           THE WITNESS:  Yes. 

19           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you.  You can be 

20   seated. 

21           Mr. Merz? 

22                      DIRECT EXAMINATION 

23   BY MR. MERZ: 

24       Q.  Good morning, Mr. Denney. 

25       A.  Good morning. 
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 1       Q.  Please state your name and spell both your first 

 2   and last names. 

 3       A.  Name is Douglas Denney, D-O-U-G-L-A-S, 

 4   D-E-N-N-E-Y. 

 5       Q.  You have caused both direct and rebuttal 

 6   testimony to be filed in this case.  Is that correct? 

 7       A.  Yes. 

 8       Q.  Your direct testimony has been marked as hearing 

 9   Exhibit DD-1T.  Is that correct? 

10       A.  That's correct. 

11       Q.  And your rebuttal testimony has been marked as 

12   DD-2CT.  Is that correct? 

13       A.  That's correct. 

14       Q.  And your rebuttal testimony includes five 

15   exhibits.  Is that correct? 

16       A.  Yes. 

17       Q.  Those exhibit have been marked as hearing 

18   exhibits DD-3, DD-4C, DD5-C, DD-6C, and DD-7.  Is that 

19   right? 

20       A.  That's correct. 

21       Q.  And those exhibits are also referred to within 

22   your testimony as DD-1 through DD-5.  Is that correct? 

23       A.  Correct. 

24       Q.  Do you have any corrections to either your 

25   direct or rebuttal testimony? 
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 1       A.  I do have, unfortunately, five corrections. 

 2   They're all deletions, though, so I think they're all 

 3   pretty simple.  The first would be in my direct 

 4   testimony, on page 44, starting at line five, after the 

 5   semicolon, it refers to the March 10th, 2011 settlement 

 6   agreement with Integra in Washington, Integra merger 

 7   agreement.  That should be stricken. 

 8           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  So just that clause? 

 9           THE WITNESS:  Yes. 

10           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  "The March 2011 settlement 

11   agreement with Integra in Washington," and then the 

12   parens? 

13           THE WITNESS:  Yes, that should be deleted. 

14           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

15           THE WITNESS:  The other changes are in my 

16   rebuttal testimony.  The first is on page 25, line 11. 

17   I refer to the Colorado performance assurance plan. 

18   That should -- we can just delete "Colorado."  The 

19   performance assurance plan.  The -- and then I have CPAP 

20   in parenthesis on that line.  We can delete the C, 

21   though the plans are different for this particular 

22   aspect, they're -- this testimony -- the rest of the 

23   testimony is the same for that. 

24           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay. 

25           THE WITNESS:  And then on page 26, in the first 
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 1   line, we can delete the C from CPAP.  And then the last 

 2   one is on page 32. 

 3           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  And I believe you submitted 

 4   a revised page 32.  Is that correct? 

 5           THE WITNESS:  That is correct.  But I believe 

 6   that in that revision -- there are two footnotes, 115 at 

 7   the bottom of the page. 

 8           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  I see. 

 9           THE WITNESS:  I'm not sure how Bill Gates 

10   managed that, but the first one referring to this 

11   Colorado staff testimony, that one should be deleted. 

12           And that's it. 

13           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  Thank you. 

14   BY MR. MERZ: 

15       Q.  So with those corrections, Mr. Denney, is your 

16   direct and rebuttal testimony true and accurate to the 

17   best of your knowledge? 

18       A.  Yes. 

19           MR. MERZ:  Mr. Denney is available for cross. 

20           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  At this time we'll go ahead 

21   and take our lunch recess.  I assume an hour sounds 

22   okayish? 

23           Then we will be back here at about five to 1. 

24   Thank you. 

25           (A luncheon recess was taken from 11:55 a.m. to 
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 1           1:00 p.m.) 

 2           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  So we're go back on the 

 3   record, and I believe before the lunch recess we were 

 4   going to pick up with cross-examination of the witness. 

 5   Is that correct, Mr. Merz? 

 6           MR. MERZ:  That is correct, Your Honor. 

 7           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  Thank you.  I believe 

 8   Mr. Denney is going to be cross-examined by Mr. Goodwin. 

 9           MR. GOODWIN:  Yes.  Thank you, Your Honor. 

10                       CROSS-EXAMINATION 

11   BY MR. GOODWIN: 

12       Q.  Good afternoon, Mr. Denney.  I wanted to talk 

13   with you first about the errata that you filed. 

14       A.  Okay. 

15       Q.  And the purpose of the errata was to clarify 

16   that Integra is not seeking changes to the PAP, or the 

17   performance assurance plan, as part of this case. 

18   Correct? 

19       A.  That is correct. 

20       Q.  And that's because in the merger settlements the 

21   parties agreed that the PAP should not change for three 

22   years as part of those agreements? 

23       A.  Well, not exactly.  The merger settlement said 

24   parties would not propose changes for 18 months, and 

25   then it said that CenturyLink or Qwest would not seek to 
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 1   withdraw it for three years.  And so I -- I went a 

 2   little too far putting that proposal into my testimony 

 3   and so I struck it out when I realized that. 

 4       Q.  The joint CLECs are not seeking that type of 

 5   relief in this case.  Correct? 

 6       A.  That's -- we're not making a proposal -- we're 

 7   not making a proposal regarding the performance 

 8   measures, yes. 

 9       Q.  You are here today testifying on behalf of 

10   Integra and the joint CLECs in this case.  Right? 

11       A.  Yeah, I believe -- that's right.  I know I'm 

12   here for Integra, and I know -- I mean, the joint CLECs 

13   have worked together on this.  I believe that's right. 

14       Q.  But you're not testifying on behalf of all CLECs 

15   in general? 

16       A.  That's correct. 

17       Q.  It's possible that different CLECs might have a 

18   different view as to whether or not MTG should be 

19   offered as a general proposition, or a different view of 

20   the merger settlements than Integra has.  Correct? 

21       A.  Yes.  Certainly other carriers may have a 

22   different view or desires, but I think the merger 

23   settlement agreement controls regardless of what other 

24   carriers' preferences are. 

25       Q.  There are some users of CEMR or MEDIACC who are 



0161 

 1   not parties to this case and who are not parties to the 

 2   merger agreements, though, probably.  Right? 

 3       A.  Yes, that's the case.  Certainly they had an 

 4   opportunity to be involved in the merger cases and this 

 5   docket as well. 

 6       Q.  But you're not purporting to speak on their 

 7   behalf? 

 8       A.  That's right. 

 9       Q.  In your work background, I noticed most of it 

10   has to do with cost and interconnection issues.  I take 

11   it you were not an IT or information technology 

12   professional? 

13       A.  Right.  I'm not an IT professional.  My work is 

14   broader than just cost and interconnection, I mean, 

15   that's primarily what I've done, but pretty much any 

16   type of policy issues that arise up kind of between the 

17   companies I get involved in. 

18       Q.  But you haven't worked with IT groups or -- as 

19   part of your job function has not included information 

20   technologies.  Correct? 

21       A.  Right.  My job -- right.  The latter part -- we 

22   worked with the IT groups as we do all the business 

23   units, and all the units at our company, but I'm not an 

24   IT professional, I don't -- I don't directly do work for 

25   the IT department. 
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 1       Q.  And you don't work with OSS or operations 

 2   support systems.  Correct? 

 3       A.  I don't -- on a regular basis, I do not work 

 4   with those systems.  I have -- I have been into, you 

 5   know, the IMA system or the CEMR system.  There are 

 6   occasions where I need information that's contained in 

 7   them, but I don't work with them on a daily basis.  I 

 8   don't place our trouble reports, you know, things like 

 9   that. 

10       Q.  You're not part of the work group that does that 

11   work.  Correct? 

12       A.  That's correct. 

13       Q.  Integra, just to clarify, Integra does not use 

14   MEDIACC except as MEDIACC is part of CEMR.  Right? 

15       A.  That's correct.  We use CEMR, which relies on 

16   MEDIACC. 

17       Q.  We've talked a lot about e-bonding.  MEDIACC is 

18   an e-bonded computer-to-computer interface, meaning that 

19   many, maybe not all, but many reports can be handled 

20   automatically.  Correct? 

21       A.  I mean, if you connect to MEDIACC through an 

22   e-bonded, you know, business to business, or e-bonded 

23   system, then there are a number of the transactions that 

24   can take place on an automatic basis.  You can also 

25   connect to MEDIACC through CEMR, which is what most 
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 1   CLECs do. 

 2       Q.  Now, CEMR is not e-bonded, it is a GUI or 

 3   graphical user interface, so that every CMIP must be 

 4   manually entered by that CLEC personnel.  Right? 

 5       A.  Yes.  In order for CLEC to enter data into CEMR, 

 6   as I understand it, I mean, you need to -- it's a, you 

 7   know, web-based application.  You would pull it up and 

 8   you would enter, type in the data that you need to type 

 9   in.  There isn't -- there isn't an automatic mechanism 

10   like exists with MEDIACC where, you know, one system 

11   could talk to another system to populate that 

12   information. 

13       Q.  And other methods that some CLECs use to 

14   communicate and manage troubling reports include things 

15   like faxes or telephone calls without using one of these 

16   systems.  Right? 

17       A.  Right.  The faxes is a pretty rare -- is a 

18   pretty rare occurrence across all CLECs when you look 

19   through the number of troubles that come in through fax, 

20   but telephone calls is more common, and that is another 

21   way that carriers could report a trouble. 

22       Q.  So currently, CLECs have a variety of choices or 

23   alternatives by which they can communicate and manage 

24   trouble reports with Qwest or CenturyLink; that would be 

25   MEDIACC, CEMR, telephone calls, faxes, and I suppose 
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 1   e-mails and other methods of communication.  Right? 

 2       A.  I'm not sure about the last thing, whether an 

 3   e-mail is considered, you know, it counts as a trouble 

 4   report.  I'd have to look through -- usually your 

 5   agreements outline the ways in which you can report 

 6   troubles.  There's details to those agreements, and I 

 7   don't recall offhand whether you could just send an 

 8   e-mail to the company to say I have a trouble.  But I 

 9   certainly know the -- I agree the fax, you could e-bond 

10   with MEDIACC, CEMR, and a phone call, are valid options 

11   to report a trouble. 

12       Q.  At least four different alternatives, and we 

13   don't know about the fifth.  Is that what we're saying? 

14       A.  That's correct. 

15       Q.  And just so we're clear, whether or not MEDIACC 

16   is working, Integra and other CEMR users have to do that 

17   manual entry into CEMR to communicate a trouble report. 

18   Right?  That's whether or not MEDIACC is working? 

19       A.  I'm not sure like the whether or not MEDIACC 

20   works -- because if MEDIACC is not working, and CEMR 

21   goes through MEDIACC, then the use of CEMR is somewhat 

22   useless then, because you can't go through MEDIACC.  So 

23   the CLECs may just call -- would call it in in that 

24   instance, and then you wouldn't be typing in information 

25   if you made a phone call.  So that's a -- whether or not 
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 1   MEDIACC is working, to get information into CEMR, it's 

 2   my understanding you need to type it into CEMR. 

 3       Q.  Right.  If MEDIACC is not working, do you know 

 4   whether or not that a trouble report can be communicated 

 5   by Integra or another CLEC to Qwest or CenturyLink by 

 6   the keyboard entry at a computer? 

 7       A.  You know, I'd have to -- if MEDIACC is down, and 

 8   then CEMR's ability to report the troubles would be 

 9   limited, because CEMR relies upon MEDIACC, which then 

10   interfaces with the CenturyLink back office systems. 

11   So -- but I don't know the answer to your question, 

12   whether you could enter that into CEMR.  If that's 

13   somehow, some point later it would work if MEDIACC is 

14   working, I didn't ask that question. 

15       Q.  My question is not at some point later, but at 

16   that moment, if MEDIACC is down, do you know whether a 

17   CEMR user can still enter that information and can 

18   communicate it to Qwest or CenturyLink without -- with 

19   just using the keyboard computer interface? 

20       A.  Right.  And I think because CEMR goes through 

21   MEDIACC, that if MEDIACC is down, there would be no -- 

22   you could use enter the information to CEMR, but it's 

23   not going to get reported to CenturyLink, because 

24   MEDIACC is down. 

25       Q.  You think or you know? 
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 1       A.  No, that's my understanding of it, right. 

 2       Q.  What is that understanding based on? 

 3       A.  Just discussions and work on this case, and how 

 4   the systems -- how the systems work and that, you know, 

 5   Qwest testimony is that, well, it says if MEDIACC is 

 6   down, CEMR, that's going to be a problem for CEMR. 

 7   That's in Ms. Albersheim's exhibit.  I'm not sure what 

 8   the number is here.  But there's a -- one of our 

 9   confidential exhibits talks about the impacts of MEDIACC 

10   going down on CEMR users.  And there's data responses 

11   that say that as well, that if MEDIACC is down, that 

12   CEMR users will be impacted. 

13       Q.  There's been a lot of talk about whether MEDIACC 

14   is stable.  Have you tested MEDIACC? 

15       A.  Have I tested MEDIACC? 

16       Q.  Yes. 

17       A.  No.  I mean, our company is not e-bonded with 

18   MEDIACC, so our ability to get to MEDIACC is through 

19   CEMR. 

20       Q.  Your testimony includes references to Bill Haas' 

21   statements in the merger dockets that at least PAETEC 

22   has seen no impacts of MEDIACC instability.  Correct? 

23       A.  That's correct.  Mr. Haas was talking 

24   historically that he had not seen -- his was -- Mr. Haas 

25   was responding to CenturyLink's claims that MEDIACC was 
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 1   unstable, and his statement was that he had not seen, 

 2   historically, instances of instability, you know, in 

 3   MEDIACC. 

 4       Q.  Joint CLECs does not believe that MEDIACC is 

 5   outdated.  Right? 

 6       A.  I mean, that's a tough question.  We think -- I 

 7   mean, MEDIACC should be able to work for the times that 

 8   you've committed to in your, you know, in the merger 

 9   settlement agreements, and there has been evidence 

10   that's come out during the case that CenturyLink hasn't 

11   taken all the action it should have to keep as up to 

12   date as possible, so we don't think that the MEDIACC 

13   system by itself is outdated. 

14           There are certainly components that CenturyLink 

15   has listed out that they've said are no longer 

16   supported, or that even that should be -- people are 

17   advising CenturyLink to update these components a long 

18   time ago.  So there are some, you know, I mean, there 

19   are some issues here as to whether CenturyLink has done 

20   the job to keep it, you know, as updated as it should 

21   be. 

22       Q.  Do you have Exhibit CH-7 up there with you? 

23       A.  Yes. 

24       Q.  Okay.  And this is the response to request 

25   No. 1-7 from Qwest/CenturyLink to joint CLECs.  You see 
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 1   the response to the question is MEDIACC outdated, the 

 2   first sentence is that joint CLECs do not believe 

 3   MEDIACC is outdated.  Do you see that? 

 4       A.  Yes. 

 5       Q.  Did you help prepare this response? 

 6       A.  Is there a list of respondents to the question? 

 7       Q.  I don't think you provided any. 

 8       A.  Okay. 

 9       Q.  If you don't recall, that's fine. 

10       A.  Yeah, I'm sure I saw the response before it went 

11   out.  There were a lot of data requests going out, so I 

12   don't know that I personally prepared that response, but 

13   generally I do read the responses before they are sent 

14   out. 

15       Q.  Do you have any reason to disagree with the 

16   response that was provided? 

17       A.  No.  And I think that's what I said too.  The 

18   MEDIACC itself is not updated, but we've seen through 

19   Qwest testimony there's a number of components of that 

20   have been, you know, being kept updated through time and 

21   that the Qwest hasn't done so, or CenturyLink. 

22       Q.  I don't see any mention of that in the response 

23   that was provided to that subpart A, any reference to 

24   the hardware or software.  Do you? 

25       A.  Well, do you know the date of these responses? 
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 1           MR. GOODWIN:  Go off the record for a moment 

 2   here, if that's all right, Your Honor. 

 3           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  That's fine. 

 4           (Discussion off the record.) 

 5   BY MR. GOODWIN: 

 6       Q.  Let's come back to that in just a little bit 

 7   while we're looking for the date. 

 8       A.  The date isn't that crucial.  Just the reason I 

 9   asked is over the course of time, there's various 

10   amounts of information became, you know, available.  And 

11   one of the things it says in here is, you know, is that 

12   CenturyLink hasn't demonstrated that this system is any 

13   older than some of its other systems. 

14           I know you've provided some information 

15   regarding -- regarding age of different systems, you 

16   know, maybe after that, after that point in time.  The 

17   answer qualifies what the -- what they believe the 

18   definition, what we believe the definition kind of 

19   "outdated" is.  If it says you're talking about how old 

20   the system is, you haven't shown it's older than the 

21   other systems.  If you're talking about stability, you 

22   haven't shown that it's less stable than, you know, than 

23   it has been historically. 

24           So I think the answer kind of qualifies that 

25   sentence, but I do know you've also recorded that some 
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 1   of the components have not been -- have not been updated 

 2   as has been recommended by, you know, some of the 

 3   manufacturers, and that's -- I guess that's just an 

 4   additional concern. 

 5       Q.  I think in Bonnie Johnson's exhibits, there's a 

 6   number of communications that took place in the winter, 

 7   between 2010 and the early months of 2011 regarding the 

 8   age and lack of support associated with the MEDIACC 

 9   components.  Correct? 

10       A.  That's correct. 

11       Q.  Those communications about the age of the 

12   hardware components certainly took place before the case 

13   was even filed, much less before the time that these 

14   discovery responses were presented.  Correct? 

15       A.  That's not necessarily the case, because I know 

16   there are quite a few cases where, you know, when I'm 

17   reading through testimony, you know, I see CenturyLink 

18   hasn't responded to this question yet, and those 

19   responses may have come in, you know, much later in the 

20   case.  So I can't -- I can't say that that's -- that all 

21   of this was -- all the discovery was not done before we 

22   filed, you know, before we filed direct testimony. 

23       Q.  Right.  But the conversations that we just were 

24   referring to took place in late 2010 and early 2011, 

25   before the case was even filed.  Right? 
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 1       A.  The age of all the systems? 

 2       Q.  Yes. 

 3       A.  No, I don't think you've supplied -- you didn't 

 4   supply that information at that early of a stage, 

 5   because that kind of came after some point in the -- it 

 6   was after there was some filings in Minnesota that -- 

 7   because I knew we didn't know it at the time we were 

 8   filing our Minnesota, you know, case.  You said you 

 9   hadn't complied a full list to determine whether these 

10   areas are unique to MEDIACC or not.  So I think a lot of 

11   that information came in later. 

12       Q.  But you knew the age of the MEDIACC system, and 

13   the fact that the MEDIACC system was not -- or certain 

14   elements of hardware within the MEDIACC system were not 

15   supported at that time, in the early 2011 time frame. 

16   Right? 

17       A.  Right.  We had -- I mean, we had some statements 

18   from CenturyLink saying that, and I know over the course 

19   of time more details became, you know, available on kind 

20   of component by component, you know, software and 

21   hardware basis as to whether it's supported by best 

22   efforts, whether there are replacements available, 

23   there's a number of those that were outlined. 

24       Q.  Getting back to the discovery response, in terms 

25   of the time that it was provided, if I told you it was 
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 1   October 11th, 2011, when those discovery responses were 

 2   provided, would that refresh your recollection as to 

 3   when you reviewed those prior to them being served and 

 4   provided to CenturyLink? 

 5       A.  I don't know, it doesn't spark my recollection, 

 6   but, I mean, if that's when they were filed, that's 

 7   fine. 

 8       Q.  But that sounds about right to you? 

 9       A.  I just -- I don't know when, you know, when they 

10   were served or filed. 

11       Q.  You'd agree that MEDIACC has been sufficiently 

12   stable for the joint CLECs' needs? 

13       A.  Generally I believe -- generally that's been the 

14   case historically, yes.  There are some periods where, 

15   you know, the system outages bounce around a bit, or 

16   maybe, you know, lower than some points than others, but 

17   generally that's been the case, yes. 

18       Q.  But joint CLECs have not experienced stability 

19   issues with MEDIACC that you would consider to be 

20   outside the norm for system availability.  Correct? 

21       A.  That's correct.  We haven't seen -- we haven't 

22   seen a spike or a rise in this system -- when you talk 

23   about MEDIACC really our -- what we see is directly a 

24   CEMR, since that's what we're dealing with, and, I mean, 

25   2011 outages were a little bit higher than in 2010, but 
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 1   we haven't seen anything that would, so far, that would 

 2   indicate the system is unstable, historically. 

 3       Q.  But there were fewer outages in 2010 than in any 

 4   year since 2003.  Correct? 

 5       A.  That's correct. 

 6       Q.  And since the merger, you haven't seen any 

 7   significant increase in outages or decrease in the 

 8   performance of the MEDIACC or CEMR systems.  Would you 

 9   agree? 

10       A.  I would agree with that. 

11       Q.  Now, the standards set up in the performance 

12   assurance plan, or PAP, is set out in a performance 

13   indicator definition or PID.  Correct? 

14       A.  That's correct. 

15       Q.  And the standard is called gateway availability. 

16   That pertains to the measurement of MEDIACC's and CEMR's 

17   performance.  Right? 

18       A.  That's correct. 

19       Q.  And the standards that were set up in that PID 

20   and PAP were the subject of litigation between the CLECs 

21   and at that point Qwest over what would constitute an 

22   acceptable level to the commission of access to the 

23   Qwest repair systems.  Right? 

24       A.  Right.  I mean, there's a time period when the 

25   PAPs were -- the performance plans -- were being worked 
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 1   out and standards were being set.  Sometimes these were 

 2   based on parity plus a statistical kind of a measure for 

 3   statistical significance outside of parity, and 

 4   sometimes they were set as a benchmark, which is the 

 5   case for these gateway availability measures. 

 6           The only thing I'm careful of, I always get 

 7   nervous when people say this is the acceptable standard, 

 8   because to me it's the standard by which if you're below 

 9   indicates there is a problem; that generally it invokes 

10   something through the performance assurance plan. 

11   Historically it would be payments for the tier two, tier 

12   two fund. 

13           There's always that -- just like with the parity 

14   measures, there's this area in between where you kind of 

15   say, well, you could be worse than parity, but it's not 

16   significant enough to matter. 

17           So I don't think -- I don't view the benchmarks 

18   as this standard as, you know, as an acceptable standard 

19   as much as I view it as this is the point where it's so 

20   bad that you need -- you've invoked kind of the payment 

21   process in the performance assurance plans. 

22       Q.  Well, 99.25 percent level was the level that was 

23   approved by all 14 of the Legacy/Qwest state 

24   commissions.  Right? 

25       A.  That's correct. 
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 1       Q.  I guess maybe we're talking about a semantic 

 2   game here.  That 99.25 percent, is it fair to say that 

 3   it kind of marks the line between acceptable and 

 4   unacceptable? 

 5       A.  I would say it marked -- right.  It marks the 

 6   line that this is clearly unacceptable if you're below 

 7   that line, and that's why there are payments that are 

 8   associated with that. 

 9       Q.  And if the performance is 99.3, which is greater 

10   than 99.25, at least to the commission that level of 

11   performance is acceptable such that no payments are 

12   required.  Correct? 

13       A.  I think to the commission there are no payments 

14   that are triggered by that.  But, I mean, what I often 

15   look at with performance plans is if you've been 

16   hitting, you know, 99.99 percent for a long period of 

17   time and now suddenly you're at 99.26, and you've 

18   dropped, you know, a pretty significant amount over 

19   time, that raises some questions to me, and, you know, 

20   we may raise those issues with, you know, with 

21   CenturyLink to find out what's going on. 

22           That doesn't make it acceptable because you 

23   didn't make a payment.  An example of that is one of the 

24   things we did with the performance plans is we took 

25   these -- this measure, at least for MEDIACC, out of the 
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 1   automatic payment system, so that you would have to 

 2   miss -- you would have to fail that measure for three 

 3   consecutive months before it would get kicked back into 

 4   the plan and make payments. 

 5           That doesn't mean CLECs thought three months of 

 6   MEDIACC failure was acceptable.  That's not the case at 

 7   all.  It was just the CLECs thought, well, based on 

 8   historical performance MEDIACC has done fairly well, 

 9   such that the incentive it was provided by the payments 

10   could be removed, the direct incentive could be removed 

11   like on a monthly basis.  So I think it's a little more 

12   than semantics, the word "acceptable" saying this is 

13   just acceptable and we can close our eyes to that. 

14       Q.  But in your answer, which was really long, you 

15   said the CLECs didn't find it acceptable, but the 

16   commission does find it -- performance at 99.3 percent 

17   would be acceptable in the commission's eyes, vis-a-vis 

18   their order in the performance indicator definition. 

19   Right? 

20       A.  I'm trying to think back to the last time I read 

21   those orders, but I don't -- what I remember in the 

22   orders was the commission set up some standards by which 

23   if you fell below payments would be made.  I do not 

24   recall in the performance plans or the orders that the 

25   commission said here is the list of this is all 
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 1   acceptable if you don't. 

 2           And to go with my -- with that in our settlement 

 3   agreement, we had a provision that says you will meet or 

 4   exceed, CenturyLink will meet or exceed its performance 

 5   premerger -- post merger performance compared to 

 6   premerger performance.  Well, you can pass the 

 7   benchmarks, but if your performance goes down under the 

 8   current agreements, that's not -- that's not acceptable, 

 9   because you've committed to meeting or exceeding 

10   premerger performance.  And the commission -- the 

11   commission has approved those agreements as well, so you 

12   could say the commission raised the bar by your argument 

13   in terms of what's acceptable. 

14       Q.  And I appreciate what you're saying there, but 

15   if you could just stay focused on the questions that I'm 

16   asking you.  And I asked you about the context of the 

17   PID and the PAP.  So if you could, just -- your attorney 

18   will, of course, have opportunity to engage in redirect 

19   if he wants to fill out the record a little bit more -- 

20   if you could just focus on my questions.  Okay? 

21           But, anyway, let's get back to this issue of the 

22   standard.  You don't propose a different standard for 

23   what's acceptable performance in terms of stability or 

24   availability of the MEDIACC interface in your testimony, 

25   do you? 
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 1       A.  No, I do not. 

 2       Q.  Since the merger, you have not observed any 

 3   decline in the service quality provided by MEDIACC or 

 4   CEMR.  Right? 

 5       A.  Just looking at the data recently, and it 

 6   bounces around, but I have not seen a noticeable decline 

 7   in those -- in the two gateway measures that we've 

 8   talked about. 

 9       Q.  Right.  So when you talked before in one of your 

10   answers, you said, well, if there was -- performance was 

11   always at 99.99, and it went down to 99.3, that might be 

12   something.  You -- without looking at the specific 

13   numbers, you haven't seen that type of change in the 

14   performance post merger.  Right? 

15       A.  I mean, I've seen -- when you look at the last 

16   year, there is one month where the performance was below 

17   the 99.25 percent, and there was another month where it 

18   was at exactly 99.25 percent.  But if you look at over 

19   the year, and you look at the monthly data, I don't see 

20   any trend. 

21           That's usually what I would look for in terms of 

22   is there problems coming up, is there more instability. 

23   I don't see any trend pointing to greater instability 

24   when I look at the data.  But the data bounces -- the 

25   data bounces around.  Sometimes it's, you know, higher 
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 1   than historical average, sometimes it's lower.  But I 

 2   don't see a trend that it's trending to be worse. 

 3       Q.  Whatever the current condition of MEDIACC is, 

 4   and we've talked about different things in terms of 

 5   stability, whether the hardware or software components 

 6   are still supported by their manufacturers and things 

 7   like that, whatever the current condition is at MEDIACC, 

 8   it was not caused by their merger.  Right? 

 9       A.  I don't know that I have a basis to agree with 

10   that or disagree with that. 

11       Q.  Did the merger cause the servers or the software 

12   to age? 

13       A.  They didn't cause them to age, but I do know 

14   companies that sometimes believe they're going to be 

15   purchased may skimp on spending in areas where they 

16   should be spending to make themselves more, you know, a 

17   better acquisition target.  I'm not making that claim 

18   here.  That's why I said I don't have a basis to know 

19   one way or another, but that's why I can't answer your 

20   question. 

21       Q.  Did the merger cause the companies who built or 

22   provided the hardware or software associated with 

23   MEDIACC to stop making it or supporting it? 

24       A.  No, and certainly that part I can agree with you 

25   on, that the merger didn't impact those software vendors 
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 1   or the hardware vendors. 

 2       Q.  And the MTG system that we're talking about, it 

 3   was not created as a result of the merger, it was 

 4   actually initiated by Legacy/Qwest in 2008.  Right? 

 5       A.  Right.  You initiated a system, I believe you 

 6   called it CTG in 2008, and I think MTG from the CMP 

 7   meetings that I sat through, Qwest said they were 

 8   building it from scratch, and this was during, kind of 

 9   during the merger times.  So the degree to which that's 

10   influenced by the merger, because I understand there's 

11   some plans to use that across the companies, I can't 

12   say. 

13       Q.  But the MTG system, when it was reintroduced in 

14   2010, was introduced by Legacy/Qwest Corporation, not by 

15   CenturyLink, Inc., or any other CenturyLink affiliate at 

16   that time.  Right? 

17       A.  I agree that it was introduced by Legacy/Qwest. 

18       Q.  And not CenturyLink? 

19       A.  Yes.  CenturyLink was not -- did not introduce 

20   the notice that came out in November 2011.  It was 

21   introduced by Qwest.  The merger was ongoing at the 

22   time, so -- 

23       Q.  You meant 2010? 

24       A.  Oh, right, correct.  Sorry.  Thank you. 

25       Q.  Let's talk about failover a little bit.  You 
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 1   talk about failover in your testimony.  Have you ever 

 2   written a failover plan or worked with a failover plan? 

 3       A.  No, I have not. 

 4       Q.  Have you written a disaster recovery plan or 

 5   worked with a disaster recovery plan? 

 6       A.  No. 

 7       Q.  You talk about how MEDIACC can't automatically 

 8   switch over to MTG in the event of a failure.  I 

 9   understand that, but I want to ask you a couple of 

10   questions about failover. 

11           First, your complaint asks this commission to 

12   keep Qwest and CenturyLink from developing or 

13   implementing MTG until at least October 2013.  Correct. 

14       A.  The complaint in this case? 

15       Q.  Yes. 

16       A.  Yes, I believe that's correct in the complaint. 

17   In my testimony I've laid out kind of three proposals, 

18   and two of them would allow some, you know, some 

19   development prior to that time, but we lay out three 

20   proposals.  One of them is that you should just focus 

21   your efforts on updating MEDIACC. 

22       Q.  Right.  But those three proposals, they were 

23   raised in your rebuttal testimony filed in December of 

24   2011.  Right? 

25       A.  Yes. 
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 1       Q.  And they were not raised in your direct 

 2   testimony or your complaint.  Correct? 

 3       A.  Right.  Those proposals were developed in 

 4   response to the various information that came in during 

 5   the course of this docket. 

 6       Q.  That rebuttal testimony, CenturyLink filed 

 7   testimony at that same time, same day.  Right? 

 8       A.  Yes.  That's correct. 

 9       Q.  And there was no opportunity in the procedural 

10   schedule for CenturyLink to offer responsive testimony 

11   to that proposal that you made for the first time in 

12   your rebuttal testimony.  Right? 

13       A.  Well, I mean, you've seen the process in 

14   Colorado, which I believe was filed prior to that, and I 

15   know I tried to take the opportunity to respond to 

16   things you'd raised in Colorado before they came up here 

17   to try to advance the arguments along.  So I think you 

18   could have done that in your rebuttal testimony. 

19           And one of the proposals is based on the PAETEC 

20   proposal, which was raised in the direct testimony.  And 

21   that's the proposal that you develop MTG to speak both 

22   the CMIP language and the XML language, and you did 

23   respond to that, I believe, in your responsive 

24   testimony. 

25           And the third proposal had been made, you know, 
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 1   in other places prior to that time.  That would be kind 

 2   of the early testing proposal.  So I think you had -- I 

 3   mean, you had an opportunity to respond to that as well. 

 4       Q.  Now, if you end up asking and receiving the 

 5   order of this commission to prevent -- let's back up a 

 6   second.  So we have -- what was requested in the 

 7   complaint says don't implement MTG at all.  Right? 

 8       A.  Essentially, right.  You made a commitment, and 

 9   you should live by that. 

10       Q.  Right.  And then there was a request for a 

11   preliminary injunction that asked for that same thing, 

12   don't implement MTG at all. 

13       A.  I believe that's correct. 

14       Q.  And then in your rebuttal testimony, you had 

15   these three proposals, and parts of some of those 

16   proposals would involve actually implementing MTG before 

17   the October 2013 time frame.  Right? 

18       A.  Right.  The third proposal I discussed would 

19   consider the implementing.  The second one is really to 

20   develop it as a back -- as a pure back-up. 

21       Q.  Right.  So some of the proposals that are before 

22   the commission at this point are inconsistent with other 

23   proposals.  Right?  You can't both implement MTG and not 

24   implement it? 

25       A.  I agree you can't do both of those.  You can't 
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 1   do both of those things. 

 2       Q.  Okay. 

 3       A.  But I wouldn't say the proposals are 

 4   inconsistent because there are options that we've put 

 5   forward as to ways to try to resolve the case, and it's 

 6   three different options that are out there.  The fact 

 7   that they're different doesn't make them inconsistent. 

 8       Q.  But they are at least mutually exclusive? 

 9       A.  Yes, they are. 

10       Q.  If it is that you end up requesting, and the 

11   commission grants your request to prevent the 

12   implementation of MTG, it might take longer to restore 

13   the ability of CLECs to interface with 

14   Qwest/CenturyLink's trouble report or repair systems if 

15   MEDIACC should experience a catastrophic failure. 

16   Correct? 

17       A.  Longer than -- 

18       Q.  Longer than if MTG were allowed to be 

19   implemented on the schedule that Qwest has proposed. 

20       A.  Unfortunately, that's where we are today because 

21   CenturyLink hasn't taken the actions that it needed to 

22   take to abide by the settlement agreement. 

23       Q.  So the answer to my question is basically yes? 

24       A.  Yeah, that's what I said. 

25       Q.  Now getting back to failover.  Would you agree 
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 1   there's a difference between failover capabilities for 

 2   systems as a whole and failover capabilities for network 

 3   elements or hardware elements of the system? 

 4       A.  Yes. 

 5       Q.  How would you characterize that difference? 

 6       A.  I think the system failovers, or the idea behind 

 7   that is if some component of the system experiences 

 8   trouble that there will be automatic mechanisms in place 

 9   by which other components will work to fill in that gap, 

10   and the system will continue to function seamlessly to 

11   the users of that system. 

12           Failover for a particular component might be, 

13   you know, you have a spare part that's available.  If a 

14   certain piece of hardware goes down that part would be, 

15   you know, implemented.  You know, I don't know if it 

16   would be seamlessly or not in that case, but perhaps you 

17   could set it up that way so that if, you know, if one 

18   piece of connection isn't working, you have a backup 

19   piece of hardware, like a hard drive or something that 

20   would automatically, you know, perform the functions 

21   that were being performed before.  And you can do that 

22   on a component-by-component basis or you can -- and 

23   there's also typically I think the failovers that we 

24   talked here has been more on a system basis. 

25       Q.  Now, in order for it to qualify as failover, at 
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 1   least as you are using that term, does the switch from 

 2   the failed component or system over to the new component 

 3   or system have to be automatic or could it be a manual 

 4   failover? 

 5       A.  Hmmm.  I mean, our expectation is that it would 

 6   be automatic, because that's the way it works on the 

 7   kind of the systems you use for your retail customers 

 8   that there's automatic failover capabilities. 

 9       Q.  Which retail systems are you talking about, and 

10   what are the failover capabilities that you're 

11   discussing? 

12       A.  It's in one of my exhibits here, so I need to 

13   find that. 

14       Q.  Did you find what you were looking for? 

15       A.  I'm looking in confidential Exhibit DD-4C, 

16   hearing Exhibit DD4-C. 

17       Q.  So that's the one that is marked DD-3 to your 

18   prefiled testimony? 

19       A.  Yes.  No, DD-2. 

20       Q.  Oh, yes.  It's rebuttal. 

21           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  And given that this is a 

22   confidential exhibit list, just be very careful about 

23   what we disclose on the record. 

24           MR. GOODWIN:  Right. 

25           THE WITNESS:  There at least there's listed a 
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 1   number of your retail systems. 

 2   MR. GOODWIN: 

 3       Q.  And if you could just point me to the page that 

 4   you're referring to that talks about the failover 

 5   capabilities that you're discussing. 

 6       A.  Okay.  Then the failover capabilities, I 

 7   believe, are in -- that's in my -- those are the systems 

 8   that were listed there, and the failover capabilities 

 9   are talked about in my testimony, based on the -- they 

10   were really based on testimony by the Colorado 

11   commission staff review of those systems, 

12   Ms. Notarianni's review. 

13       Q.  So again what systems are we talking about?  Or 

14   is it that your testimony is solely based on what 

15   Ms. Notarianni said in Colorado? 

16       A.  Well, I don't know if it's solely based on that, 

17   because there's been a number of data responses on this. 

18   The systems are listed in that exhibit that I just 

19   pointed to, to answer to the question what systems are 

20   we talking about. 

21       Q.  How do they failover is my question. 

22       A.  I understand there's automatic -- my 

23   understanding is there are automatic system failovers 

24   for these that if the -- some component goes down, that 

25   it would be basically seamless to the end user that it 
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 1   will continue to function, you know, as it always 

 2   functioned. 

 3       Q.  Is that for the whole system?  You said failover 

 4   for the system. 

 5       A.  Yes. 

 6       Q.  You mean in the whole system, or individual 

 7   components? 

 8       A.  For, no, for the system is my understanding. 

 9       Q.  So you're not testifying as to individual 

10   components, your testimony is to failover for the whole 

11   system? 

12       A.  Correct. 

13       Q.  We talked about the difference between failover 

14   that happens automatically and that which might happen 

15   manually.  If there is a failover where something has to 

16   manually be done to switch from one server to another, 

17   would you call that failover, or backup, or something 

18   else? 

19       A.  To me, that's more of a recovery, kind of a 

20   recovery plan rather than just a system failover plan. 

21       Q.  Okay.  So in this hypothetical that we've kind 

22   of laid out where something fails, and then it's -- a 

23   server fails, and then it's manually pointed to another 

24   server, you call that disaster recovery? 

25       A.  I think it's -- right.  I think that's -- would 
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 1   be considered disaster recovery. 

 2       Q.  Okay.  I just want to make sure we're talking on 

 3   the same terms. 

 4       A.  I'm trying to respond to the things that, you 

 5   know, CenturyLink has said, which is they've said 

 6   MEDIACC has no, you know, failover capability, and so 

 7   we're trying to gather all the information we have and 

 8   trying to answer consistently in the way we've been 

 9   using them through the case. 

10       Q.  Right.  But in terms of talking about the 

11   MEDIACC system, the MEDIACC application sits on a server 

12   called EBCO1.  Right? 

13       A.  That is my understanding, yes. 

14       Q.  And then if EBCO1 fails the MEDIACC application 

15   can be switched over to the EBC02 server, but that is 

16   not automatic, it is manual.  Right? 

17       A.  That's correct. 

18       Q.  So therefore in your mind that would be a 

19   disaster recovery step as opposed to a failover, using 

20   the term that we've discussed today.  Right? 

21       A.  I think that's right.  And what CenturyLink said 

22   in response to that in a data request, which is in 

23   DD6-C, but this part of the request is not confidential, 

24   because it's also in another part of my exhibit, filed 

25   nonconfidential, it says MEDIACC is currently on a 
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 1   15-year-old technology that does not support failover 

 2   capabilities. 

 3       Q.  And the difference then between what we've 

 4   called disaster recovery and failover is just the amount 

 5   of time that it takes to do the manual failover versus 

 6   the amount of time that it takes to do the automatic 

 7   failover? 

 8       A.  I'm not sure that it's just the amount of time. 

 9   We're probably getting into the IT areas that I don't 

10   understand fully, but it is something that has to do 

11   about clustering the systems, and the way that they're 

12   actually designed that allows for, you know, allows for 

13   failover.  So I don't think it is just the amount of 

14   time that it takes. 

15           Part of your answer in explaining this, this is 

16   is CenturyLink answer, it says the current operating 

17   system servers and software platform do not have the 

18   capability to perform a failover or clustering, which to 

19   me means -- it's not just the amount of time.  I think 

20   it's the design, the way that system is designed. 

21       Q.  No.  My question is for MEDIACC to keep running, 

22   if there was an automatic failover, it would happen in 

23   the period of time that the automated process took to 

24   move it from EBC01 to EBC02.  Right? 

25       A.  I think those are generally not visible to the, 
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 1   kind of to the end user. 

 2       Q.  But it may take some period of time. 

 3       A.  In an automatic -- I think in the automatic 

 4   failovers they don't.  I think they're -- it's like you 

 5   have two connections.  If one is down you just route -- 

 6   it just routes the other connection, so the amount of 

 7   time it takes light to travel from here to wherever your 

 8   server is located is the amount of time we're talking 

 9   about. 

10       Q.  It also takes whatever amount of time that the 

11   system takes to recognize that there's a failure in the 

12   first system and to verify there's a failure in the 

13   first system and to process what's supposed to happen 

14   next and to make it happen.  All those steps take some 

15   amount of time.  Right? 

16       A.  But I think in the world of computer programming 

17   and things, these times are measured in, you know, 

18   microseconds, not -- 

19       Q.  You understand this from where? 

20       A.  I think there is a piece in the testimony 

21   talking about the failover that says it's not visible to 

22   the end user.  That means the time -- if some component 

23   goes down, the end user doesn't experience an issue with 

24   that.  To me that means, you know, these -- the 

25   computers did their rerouting or refixed the system and 
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 1   you don't see that there was -- you don't know that that 

 2   happens, you as the end user. 

 3       Q.  So then the difference between moving it from 

 4   EBC0 to EBOC2 automatically in what you've called a 

 5   failover system, and manually, the difference for the 

 6   CLEC is the time that it takes to do the manual work to 

 7   switch it over.  Right?  Otherwise the functions are the 

 8   same? 

 9       A.  Right.  There's a manual -- there's currently a 

10   manual process I believe that CenturyLink must undertake 

11   to switch from the EBOC1 to EBOC2. 

12       Q.  Right.  We've talked about that. 

13       A.  Right. 

14       Q.  The question is for the CLEC user, is the 

15   difference solely the amount of time -- the difference 

16   between a failover and disaster recovery solely the 

17   amount of time that it takes to manually switch from 

18   EBOC1 to EBOC2? 

19       A.  I mean, assuming you're able to make that 

20   switch, I think that is what would be visible to the 

21   CLEC. 

22       Q.  Now, the retail systems that we've talked about 

23   are systems that provide information to MEDIACC.  Right? 

24       A.  Well, that's one of the functions they serve.  I 

25   believe they provide information to the Qwest employees 
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 1   that are processing troubles for their -- for some of 

 2   the Qwest end user or CenturyLink end user customers. 

 3       Q.  MEDIACC is not a repair management system, is 

 4   it?  It's an interface between users like PAETEC and 

 5   Qwest repair systems.  Right? 

 6       A.  Right.  MEDIACC is the mechanism by which you 

 7   access Qwest back office repair systems. 

 8       Q.  Right.  And so there is not a Qwest system to 

 9   access Qwest's back office systems.  Right?  MEDIACC has 

10   mediated access to that? 

11       A.  There's not a Qwest system to -- I didn't 

12   understand that question. 

13       Q.  Let me rephrase.  There is no Qwest system that 

14   accesses the Qwest back end systems other than MEDIACC, 

15   the interface.  Right? 

16       A.  Right.  MEDIACC is the process by which you can 

17   get access to those back end systems, and CEMR is -- 

18       Q.  Qwest or CenturyLink doesn't require that 

19   interface.  Right?  Because -- 

20       A.  You do require us to use that interface.  I 

21   don't know of any other mechanism by which you allow 

22   us -- 

23       Q.  Oh, I understand.  Let me rephrase. 

24           Qwest doesn't require that interface for its own 

25   use for its retail customers.  Right? 
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 1       A.  You do use that interface for some of your 

 2   retail customers, you've testified to, so I don't know 

 3   whether if it's customers that want to -- I don't know 

 4   what the requirements are in that regard, but I think 

 5   for a large portion of your -- of your customers, you 

 6   know, that may not manage their own troubles or 

 7   something, you wouldn't -- it's my understanding you 

 8   don't go through MEDIACC to do that. 

 9       Q.  So for those large customers that use MEDIACC, 

10   they are using MEDIACC to interface with Qwest systems, 

11   the Qwest systems that perform and effectuate the 

12   repairs.  Right? 

13       A.  Yes. 

14       Q.  Now, whatever the differences are between the 

15   Qwest system and the MEDIACC interface, those have not 

16   resulted in impacts to Integra or other CLEC operations, 

17   because MEDIACC has been stable.  Right? 

18       A.  I don't know if I would go so far as to what you 

19   said, that -- I agree historically MEDIACC has been 

20   stable, and CLECs have been able to use that to process 

21   their trouble reports.  What I don't know is what the 

22   difference would be for CLECs if they had direct access 

23   to the systems that like as CenturyLink does compared to 

24   using MEDIACC.  That was kind of the first part of your 

25   question. 
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 1       Q.  Yes, in fact, the question of whether CLECs 

 2   should have direct access or instead have mediated 

 3   access to Qwest back end systems, such as repair, you 

 4   know CenturyLink's back end systems for repair, that was 

 5   something that was litigated in the Section 271 process 

 6   ten years ago.  Right? 

 7       A.  Yes. 

 8       Q.  And the result of all those proceedings was that 

 9   CLECs like Qwest, now CenturyLink, are not required to 

10   provide direct access, but instead are to provide 

11   mediated access to repair systems.  Right? 

12       A.  That's correct.  Part of your question I wasn't 

13   sure of was whether that results in a difference in 

14   terms of, you know, operations. 

15       Q.  But the lack of -- or the difference in failover 

16   or backup or disaster recovery systems between the Qwest 

17   retail systems and the mediated access system that CLECs 

18   use has not resulted in a lack of access to Qwest repair 

19   systems.  Right?  Because MEDIACC has been stable. 

20       A.  Yes.  I agree with that. 

21       Q.  If MTG were implemented, that would have 

22   failover capabilities that MEDIACC currently lacks. 

23   Right? 

24       A.  It would have some capabilities that MEDIACC 

25   currently lacks, but what it doesn't -- so it doesn't 
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 1   help carriers, though, who, you know, who currently are 

 2   electronically bonded.  I mean, they aren't bonded with 

 3   MTG.  But you do have -- it does have greater failover 

 4   capabilities, is my understanding, than MEDIACC. 

 5       Q.  Let's talk about the settlement agreement.  You 

 6   agree the language of the settlement agreement is 

 7   important? 

 8       A.  Yes. 

 9       Q.  And that settlement agreement that we're talking 

10   about was presented to the commissions and entered into 

11   by the parties to resolve -- 

12           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Excuse me.  May I interject 

13   and just clarify which settlement agreement you're 

14   referring to? 

15           MR. GOODWIN:  Actually, for that matter, both 

16   settlement agreements that we've talked about today that 

17   are in BJJ-4 and BJJ-5, which are tabbed in the pretrial 

18   testimony as BJJ-3 and 4 respectively. 

19           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  So you're not referring to 

20   the staff public counsel settlement agreement that was 

21   filed in Washington. 

22           MR. GOODWIN:  No, not in this case. 

23   BY MR. GOODWIN: 

24       Q.  Those two settlement agreements that we've just 

25   discussed with counsel here, those were presented and 



0197 

 1   entered into to resolve a number of issues raised in the 

 2   merger application filed by Qwest and CenturyLink back 

 3   in 2010.  Right? 

 4       A.  That's correct. 

 5       Q.  And the ultimate request before the commission 

 6   in that case was whether or not the merger of Qwest and 

 7   CenturyLink was not inconsistent with the public 

 8   interest.  Right? 

 9       A.  You know, I'd have to check that that's the 

10   standard in Washington.  I didn't look at that before 

11   coming here.  Generally that's -- something roughly -- 

12       Q.  Let me rephrase and I'll ask that without 

13   reference to a legal standard. 

14           The reason that there were settlement 

15   negotiations was because the commission was considering 

16   whether the merger of Qwest and CenturyLink was a good 

17   idea according to the legal standards that the 

18   commission applies to such cases.  Right? 

19       A.  Yes, I agree with that. 

20       Q.  So the question was whether the merger was a 

21   good idea, again applying the standards that the 

22   commission applies to such applications? 

23       A.  Yes.  That was the question that faced with this 

24   commission, yes. 

25       Q.  And it was the settlement agreements that are 



0198 

 1   BJJ-4 and 5 in this case that resolved the disputes that 

 2   the parties had about whether the merger satisfied the 

 3   legal standards that the commission applies in those 

 4   cases.  Right? 

 5       A.  That's mostly right.  I think they resolve the 

 6   issues with respect to those particular parties, so it 

 7   addressed the parties that entered into these 

 8   agreements, those agreements address the concerns of 

 9   those parties.  The commission had a broader, kind of a 

10   broader scope to look at.  So I think in the Integra 

11   agreement it says that, you know, from our perspective 

12   the merger is in the public interest, which means that 

13   it satisfied -- with that agreement that it satisfied, 

14   you know, our concerns that we had raised with the 

15   merger. 

16       Q.  With that clarification.  But it was the 

17   concerns that the parties had, the settling parties had 

18   with respect to the merger.  Right? 

19       A.  Yes, that's correct. 

20       Q.  Now, the negotiations that led to the Integra 

21   settlements took place over a period of months with a 

22   number of meetings.  Correct? 

23       A.  That's correct. 

24       Q.  And the settlement addressed a number of issues, 

25   not just the OSS issue that we're litigating here today? 
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 1       A.  That's correct. 

 2       Q.  And Integra was represented by several persons, 

 3   including counsel and business subject matter experts, 

 4   either directly or indirectly, in the negotiations? 

 5       A.  I always get caught up on the word "several," 

 6   what that implies.  But there were a few people -- there 

 7   were a few people involved, and I don't know that I can 

 8   count.  There were maybe four people who were directly 

 9   involved, and then obviously we rely on, you know, 

10   others, you know, such as Ms. Johnson, you know, and 

11   others on different sets of the issues to get to that. 

12   But it's not a huge number of -- I don't think of it as 

13   several.  I thought it was pretty small, kind of a small 

14   group that were working those issues. 

15       Q.  But it's four that were directly involved in the 

16   negotiations and then a number of other people that you 

17   would go to to get information to support your 

18   negotiations and understanding of the issues? 

19       A.  Right.  And help, you know, help with crafting 

20   language that we thought was, you know, that we felt was 

21   clear and captured what it is that we were expecting. 

22       Q.  Integra thought carefully about all the language 

23   that was agreed upon.  Correct? 

24       A.  Let me just qualify that, because there's two 

25   agreements out there.  I mean, Integra only thought 
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 1   about the language in the Integra merger settlement 

 2   agreement.  We played no part in the joint CLECs 

 3   settlement agreement.  That was negotiated completely 

 4   without any involvement from anyone, you know, at 

 5   Integra, so we did not have a hand in that. 

 6       Q.  Sure. 

 7       A.  In that language. 

 8       Q.  But at least as far as the Integra agreement is 

 9   concerned, Integra thought carefully about the language 

10   that was contained in that agreement.  Right? 

11       A.  Yes, we did. 

12       Q.  And ultimately agreed that the language in that 

13   settlement should control the obligations that were 

14   addressed in that settlement agreement.  Right? 

15       A.  That's correct. 

16       Q.  And the agreement is clear to you and to 

17   Integra.  Correct? 

18       A.  We thought it was, and then we ended up here, 

19   kind of in -- in the dispute about what that language 

20   means. 

21       Q.  Now, there's some terms that we've talked about. 

22   If you would turn to that Exhibit BJJ-4, which is 

23   tab three to Bonnie's prefiled testimony.  If you would 

24   turn to that. 

25       A.  I've done that. 
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 1       Q.  Oh, you're there already? 

 2       A.  Yeah.  I opened that before I sat down. 

 3       Q.  All right.  There's some terms there that we've 

 4   talked about in this case, use and offer and retire and 

 5   replace and integrate, all those terms that have come 

 6   into play in our dispute. 

 7       A.  Right.  I think those are the five big terms 

 8   that we've discussed, yes. 

 9       Q.  None of those terms have a specialized technical 

10   meaning, they all have an ordinary meaning, and at least 

11   as far as you understand it shouldn't be interpreted 

12   outside, you know, with some sort of technical gloss to 

13   them that's not readily apparent from the agreement and 

14   its context? 

15       A.  I think especially the latter point that those 

16   terms as they're used in the agreement, in our view, you 

17   know, told you how we were using those terms, and they 

18   have their ordinary meanings. 

19       Q.  Well, first of all let's look at paragraph 12, 

20   and there's some language at the beginning.  The first 

21   sentence says "the merged company," which means Qwest 

22   and CenturyLink together.  Right? 

23       A.  Yes. 

24       Q.  The merged company will use and offer to 

25   wholesale customers the Legacy/Qwest operational support 
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 1   systems for at least two years, and actually threw 

 2   subsequent agreement that two-year period was amended to 

 3   30 months.  Right? 

 4       A.  Correct. 

 5       Q.  So for at least 30 months, whichever -- well, at 

 6   least 30 months, and thereafter.  So the thereafter that 

 7   is in that sentence addresses the period after the 30 

 8   months.  Right? 

 9       A.  No, I don't think that's the case for that 

10   "thereafter." 

11       Q.  What is the "thereafter" referring to? 

12       A.  Saying you're going to use these systems and 

13   provide, you know, as you use these systems, provide a 

14   level of service quality which is at least -- you know, 

15   which is not, you know, not material less it says here 

16   than provided by Qwest prior to the closing date. 

17       Q.  What does the "thereafter" refer to? 

18       A.  The closing date, I believe.  Yeah.  The closing 

19   date. 

20       Q.  So "thereafter" refers to the closing date, even 

21   though there's the time mentioned at least two years, or 

22   until July 2013, whichever is later, that comes in 

23   between the term "closing date" and the "thereafter"? 

24       A.  Right.  The two years refers to the time which 

25   you're going to use these -- which you're going to use 
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 1   these systems, that the time at which you've committed 

 2   to providing, you know, service quality that is at least 

 3   as good as, you know, starts from the -- starts from the 

 4   closing date. 

 5       Q.  And then in the next sentence, it says after the 

 6   period noted above.  Do you see that? 

 7       A.  Right. 

 8       Q.  What is the period noted above?  That's the 

 9   30-month period? 

10       A.  Because that's the only period I think we talk 

11   about. 

12       Q.  And then that sentence continues, it says, "The 

13   merged company will not replace or integrate Qwest 

14   systems without first establishing a detailed transition 

15   plan and complying with the following procedures."  You 

16   see that language? 

17       A.  Yes. 

18       Q.  So the subsections A, B, C, and D that are 

19   discussed in your testimony, and that are in that 

20   agreement, they all begin to apply after the 30-month 

21   period.  Right? 

22       A.  That's correct. 

23       Q.  And the "will not replace or integrate Qwest 

24   systems" language in the introductory paragraph to part 

25   12 or paragraph 12 also applies after the 30-month 
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 1   period.  Right? 

 2       A.  Well, that says you will not replace or 

 3   integrate the systems without first doing these 

 4   following steps.  The part before that says, you know, 

 5   that you're going to use and offer these systems for 

 6   that, you know, for the 30-month period. 

 7       Q.  Yes.  But the will not replace or integrate 

 8   without first establishing a plan and following the 

 9   procedures, all those requirements apply after the 

10   30-month period.  Right? 

11       A.  The A, B, C and D subparts there apply after the 

12   30 -- you know, are intended that after the 30-month 

13   period where you will not, you're not going to change 

14   out, you're going to use and offer these systems that 

15   you have, you're going to -- the company is going to use 

16   these systems, you're going to offer those systems to 

17   wholesale customers for the 30 months, then after the 

18   30-month period you will implement the following steps 

19   if you intend to replace or integrate a system. 

20       Q.  Right.  And those, after that 30-month period, 

21   those requirements, like, for example, subparagraph C, 

22   stay in effect until, as paragraph C suggests, only 

23   until completion of merger-related OSS integration and 

24   migration activity.  Do you see that language? 

25       A.  Yes, I see that language. 
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 1       Q.  So the A, B, C and D paragraphs, those remain in 

 2   place from 30 months following the merger, which would 

 3   be October 1, 2013, until merger-related OSS integration 

 4   and migration activity is complete.  Right? 

 5       A.  No, not exactly, because that sentence is 

 6   referring to this part, part C here, which is dealing 

 7   with the testing kind of the new system. 

 8       Q.  So that your testimony is that the only part C 

 9   expires on the completion of merger-related OSS 

10   integration and migration activity.  Is that right?  Am 

11   I understanding what you're saying? 

12       A.  I'd have to look at the other paragraph. 

13   Certainly your change management process doesn't expire 

14   at the end of, you know, merger-related activity. 

15   That's an ongoing commitment that's created through the 

16   271 processes.  So that sentence says -- the 

17   requirements of this paragraph, which is that CI, that's 

18   how that sentence starts that you read me, will remain 

19   in place until completion of the merger-related OSS 

20   integration and migration activity. 

21       Q.  So this paragraph, that reference is only to CI 

22   and not to paragraph 12 as a whole? 

23       A.  Right.  That's my understanding of that piece 

24   there.  Because certainly CMP does not expire at the end 

25   of merger-related activity. 
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 1       Q.  Now, just so we're clear, the record is clear, 

 2   you were part of the team that negotiated the Integra 

 3   settlement.  Right? 

 4       A.  Yes, I was. 

 5       Q.  The agreement does not say words like Qwest OSS 

 6   cannot change.  Right?  It says the words that it says. 

 7   Right? 

 8       A.  It says the words that it says. 

 9       Q.  It doesn't say freeze, it doesn't say you have 

10   to offer it exactly in the same way, it just says 

11   continue to use and offer.  Right.  "Use" is the word 

12   that it uses. 

13       A.  It says the merged company will use and will 

14   offer to CLECs customers and Legacy/Qwest OSS for at 

15   least the 30 months that we've established.  And there's 

16   a lot of testimony -- I mean, those are what the words 

17   say, and those are what they mean.  And there's a lot of 

18   testimony in the merger cases where parties explain how 

19   they viewed that language to mean as well.  And during 

20   the merger proceedings there didn't seem to be a 

21   disagreement on what all that language meant. 

22       Q.  But the commission should not add or subtract 

23   words from the agreement in order to interpret it. 

24   Agreed? 

25       A.  That's correct. 
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 1       Q.  Assuming that there's no unrecoverable failure 

 2   of MEDIACC before the 30-month period expires, you do 

 3   not dispute that Qwest and CenturyLink will continue to 

 4   offer MEDIACC to CLECs until that time.  Correct? 

 5       A.  I mean, I do -- I do somewhat dispute that, 

 6   because, I mean, we don't -- I think you've 

 7   significantly changed the way you offer this system by 

 8   throwing out this threat of unrecoverable failure. 

 9           So to say -- if at some point in the future our 

10   threats tended to be false, then we didn't really -- 

11   they didn't really mean anything isn't right.  They do 

12   mean something.  You've talked about unrecoverable 

13   failures, you've talked about, you know, "very unstable" 

14   I think are words you've used.  All those words.  And 

15   that's changing the offer of how CLECs have seen this 

16   system.  They saw MEDIACC as kind of a stable system 

17   that they could rely upon, and you've changed that. 

18       Q.  So your testimony is that it's still offered, 

19   it's just that the offer is changed because of the 

20   specter of possible failures of MEDIACC?  Is that fair? 

21       A.  Somewhat fair.  The offer -- how well it's 

22   offered when there's -- you say it could fail tomorrow, 

23   is -- is question as to whether that's really offering 

24   it.  If you get lucky and it doesn't fail, then you say 

25   we made it, I mean, that doesn't -- you know, that 



0208 

 1   doesn't -- it doesn't make sense to me. 

 2           If I get robbed on the street and they say my 

 3   money or my life -- your live, you have a choice. 

 4   Right?  You can take your money or your life.  But do 

 5   you really have a choice?  I mean, that's what you've 

 6   done in a sense with this system.  You've said this 

 7   system is going to fail, beware, CLECs beware, this 

 8   system is going to fail, now you're saying, oh, no, 

 9   we're going to offer it for 30 months, don't worry. 

10       Q.  Assuming that there's no failure, though, does 

11   the way in which Integra will use CEMR change simply 

12   because Qwest and CenturyLink said that MEDIACC is old 

13   and may experience problems in the future? 

14       A.  Things have changed in the company by having to 

15   look at these other systems, determine what's going 

16   to -- you know, they have to figure out what's going to 

17   happen if the system goes down, how long is it going to 

18   take to move over to those systems.  So things have 

19   changed as a result of this.  And I don't know what's 

20   going to happen in the next three years with respect to 

21   MEDIACC. 

22       Q.  Well, here I'm talking specifically about the 

23   mechanics of the use; that is the fact that Qwest and 

24   CenturyLink had made statements does not change the way 

25   that Integra enters trouble tickets or is able to track 
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 1   and manage them through CEMR.  Right?  Still able to do 

 2   that? 

 3       A.  Right.  Your threats of failure have not changed 

 4   the way tickets are entered into CEMR. 

 5       Q.  And those functions, assuming that no 

 6   unrecoverable failure occurs during the 30-month period, 

 7   those functions will continue to be offered to Integra 

 8   and other CLECs during that period.  Right? 

 9       A.  That's where I keep running into problems with 

10   your question, because you're saying assuming there's no 

11   problems when you've been saying there's going to be 

12   problems, and now you're saying assuming there's going 

13   to be no problems, wouldn't you be okay.  It doesn't 

14   make sense to me.  You've said there's going to be 

15   problems.  So those are things the companies need to 

16   prepare for, and they need to plan for. 

17       Q.  Is MEDIACC being offered to CLECs today? 

18       A.  Yes.  And you've changed the way that that's -- 

19   what that offer was from before in our view. 

20       Q.  And again assuming no unrecoverable failure of 

21   MEDIACC during the 30-month period, Integra will use the 

22   same functions and operations of CEMR as before the 

23   merger.  Right? 

24       A.  That's correct, but I have no way of knowing 

25   what's going to happen in the next 30 months, and based 
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 1   on your witnesses' testimony, there's a risk of 

 2   catastrophic failure, that the system is very unstable, 

 3   and that's the risk we're faced at today, regardless of 

 4   what actually happens in the next 30 months.  That's the 

 5   reality -- we don't live in the reality of already 

 6   knowing the future. 

 7       Q.  Turn to page 39 of your direct testimony. 

 8   Actually, you might want to back up to page 38, because 

 9   on page 39 there's a quote of testimony.  Right? 

10       A.  Mr. Gates' testimony? 

11       Q.  Yes.  Mr. Gates' testimony from the merger 

12   proceedings in I believe Minnesota.  Right? 

13       A.  That's correct. 

14       Q.  What that quote is actually, it is a quote of 

15   Mr. Gates quoting Linda Notarianni.  Right? 

16       A.  That's correct.  And Ms. Notarianni is the 

17   telecommunications section chief, it's says there, 

18   former OSS Qwest witness, in Colorado. 

19       Q.  And it also includes a footnote reference to her 

20   experience in testifying on behalf of Qwest and US West. 

21   You put that in your testimony. 

22       A.  Yes, I did. 

23       Q.  And in that testimony, Ms. Notarianni was 

24   testifying in support of the Colorado settlement 

25   agreements, including the Integra agreement.  Right? 
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 1       A.  Yes. 

 2       Q.  And the staff settlement agreement, in Colorado, 

 3   anyway, incorporated and referred to the Integra 

 4   settlement agreement? 

 5       A.  Yes, it did. 

 6       Q.  And in support of those settlements, 

 7   Ms. Notarianni testified that changes made by 

 8   CenturyLink to Qwest's back office systems or other 

 9   things could cause problems, and the settlement 

10   addressed those potential problems.  Right?  Her 

11   testimony speaks for itself, but that's basically what 

12   it says.  Right? 

13       A.  Well, I mean it doesn't say that here.  I think 

14   that was -- I mean, really a high level general thrust 

15   of her -- she did support the, you know, Integra 

16   settlement agreement which was, you know, adopted by the 

17   Colorado staff with some of the conditions on their own 

18   and so she did think that the agreements, you know, 

19   would care for some of the problems that might arise 

20   with changes coming up to the OSS systems. 

21       Q.  Right.  And then again at page 73 of your direct 

22   testimony you quoted her again.  Right? 

23       A.  Yes, I did. 

24       Q.  And in introducing that quote, again you 

25   identified her as the Colorado commission's 



0212 

 1   telecommunications sections chief, made a point to 

 2   observe that before working the commission she worked 

 3   for Qwest for more than 19 years, where she held various 

 4   management positions within the network information 

 5   technologies and wholesale divisions.  Right? 

 6       A.  Was this in my previous footnote? 

 7       Q.  That's quoting your testimony from 73 to 74 of 

 8   your direct. 

 9       A.  That sounds right to me.  I just didn't see 

10   where you were -- oh, I see now where you were reading 

11   that.  Yes. 

12       Q.  Now, in the parallel case to this one in 

13   Colorado, Ms. Notarianni also offered testimony. 

14   Correct? 

15       A.  Yes, she did. 

16           MR. GOODWIN:  Actually, Your Honor, I have a 

17   question before I introduce this exhibit, and this is 

18   directed towards counsel as well.  We have copies of the 

19   transcript of the Colorado proceeding.  I'm really only 

20   interested in introducing a few pages of that; however, 

21   I don't want to be accused of offering -- we have made 

22   copies of the entire transcript, and I don't want to be 

23   introducing something out of context.  So I would offer 

24   it to the parties and to Your Honor as to which side I 

25   should error on, economy of size of the exhibits or 
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 1   completeness. 

 2           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Does staff or the parties 

 3   have any preference? 

 4           MS. CAMERON-RULKOWSKI:  I would suggest that we 

 5   be given complete copies for right now, so that we can 

 6   see what the questions are, and see what the context is, 

 7   and then if we know what the context is, we could simply 

 8   talk about admitting just a few pages that you're 

 9   interested in. 

10           MR. GOODWIN:  Okay.  The trees are already dead, 

11   so we can just mark and introduce the whole copy, I 

12   don't care. 

13           MR. MERZ:  I think that the thought is -- that's 

14   been suggested, let's just see what you're doing and 

15   then make a decision based on that makes sense to me. 

16           MR. GOODWIN:  Okay. 

17           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  I'm fine with that. 

18           Actually, for this I just need one.  If you'll 

19   hand one to Brian. 

20           MS. ANDERL:  Oh, you bet. 

21           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  This is I believe the 

22   transcript from Colorado from -- 

23           MR. GOODWIN:  Last week. 

24           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Last week.  Okay.  Thank 

25   you. 
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 1           MR. GOODWIN:  Just because I was amazed by it, 

 2   let the record reflect that our court reporter e-mailed 

 3   the transcript at 3:14 in the morning on the day 

 4   following the hearing. 

 5           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Very impressive. 

 6           MS. ANDERL:  In fairness, though, we should say 

 7   that there were two court reporters that day. 

 8           MR. GOODWIN:  I thought that was crazy. 

 9   Anyway -- 

10           THE WITNESS:  Before you get started -- 

11           MR. GOODWIN:  Do you have that? 

12           THE WITNESS:  I just wonder, could someone fill 

13   my water bottle for me before we get -- 

14           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Actually, maybe now would be 

15   a good time to take a midafternoon break. 

16           MR. GOODWIN:  Okay.  Yes.  Fine. 

17           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  Let's take a 

18   ten-minute break.  We'll be off the record. 

19           (A break was taken from 2:26 p.m. to 2:35 p.m.) 

20           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  We'll go back on the record. 

21   I believe Mr. Goodwin, you were proceeding. 

22           MR. GOODWIN:  Yes, Your Honor.  Thank you. 

23   BY MR. GOODWIN: 

24       Q.  Would you turn to page 241 of the transcript. 

25       A.  Okay. 
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 1       Q.  And at 241, line nine, is where the ALJ in 

 2   Colorado began asking questions of Ms. Notarianni? 

 3       A.  Yes. 

 4       Q.  Would read the question, the first two questions 

 5   and answers? 

 6           MR. MERZ:  Your Honor, I will object.  I don't 

 7   know if this is going to be offered.  It needs to be 

 8   offered.  And here's the struggle that I have, is, you 

 9   know, obviously the hearing itself is a snapshot of the 

10   case.  Ms. Notarianni had prefiled testimony that isn't 

11   going to be offered here, I assume, and she had a number 

12   of recommendations, and so I guess I do object to just 

13   this narrow snapshot of the case being offered, 

14   particularly because Ms. Notarianni isn't here, and this 

15   is in Colorado. 

16           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Mr. Goodwin? 

17           In GOODWIN:  Two things:  One, this is how she 

18   testified in Colorado; two, I think it's relevant 

19   because he made it relevant here in Washington, so how 

20   she testified in Colorado is relevant here. 

21           And then, secondly, to the extent that Mr. Merz 

22   believes that the testimony that was offered at the 

23   hearing is incomplete, then he's free to offer his own 

24   examination that makes that more complete. 

25           If Your Honor wants, we can offer it as a late 
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 1   filed exhibit to include all of the testimony she 

 2   presented in that proceeding.  I don't have any 

 3   objection to either course of action. 

 4           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Mr. Merz? 

 5           MR. MERZ:  And if Ms. Notarianni's written 

 6   testimony in Colorado would be offered, then we wouldn't 

 7   have the same objection, wouldn't have any objection, 

 8   and I would be fine with the entire transcript coming 

 9   in, as well as Ms. Notarianni's prefiled. 

10           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  And who's going to be 

11   providing me with copies of that, Ms. Notarianni's 

12   complete testimony? 

13           MR. GOODWIN:  We'll do it. 

14           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay. 

15           MR. GOODWIN:  We'll provide it as a late filed 

16   exhibit after the hearing.  We did not bring copies 

17   today. 

18           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  I'm fine with that. 

19   Mr. Merz, are you all right -- 

20           MR. MERZ:  That's acceptable. 

21           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  -- and, staff, do you have 

22   any objection to the admission of the entire transcript 

23   and Ms. Notarianni's testimony. 

24           MS. CAMERON-RULKOWSKI:  It does seem like a lot 

25   of paper, but I don't have any basis for an objection. 
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 1           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  All right.  Thank you.  I am 

 2   fine with that. 

 3           Actually, I believe since this commission is 

 4   allowed to take administrative notice of other 

 5   proceedings and other commission's proceedings, that we 

 6   probably could get the transcript in, but noting 

 7   Mr. Merz's objection, based on having a complete record 

 8   of Ms. Notarianni's testimony, I'm willing to allow that 

 9   as an exhibit. 

10           I assume that would be a cross-examination 

11   exhibit for Mr. Denney? 

12           MR. GOODWIN:  Yes. 

13           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  So why don't we do this 

14   then.  We'll have as cross, we'll have DD-8, and that 

15   will be the transcript of the Colorado proceeding, and 

16   then I will assign a number in advance of DD-9 for the 

17   complete testimony of Ms. Notarianni. 

18           MR. MERZ:  There was one round, but I just 

19   remind counsel, there was a correction, make sure that 

20   you have that the subsequent correction of the testimony 

21   that would need to be included as well. 

22           MS. ANDERL:  Didn't they do that on the record? 

23           MR. GOODWIN:  No, they filed.  They did both. 

24           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  When could we expect to have 

25   that? 
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 1           MR. MERZ:  One other issue that I'm just 

 2   reminded of.  The exhibits to Ms. Notarianni's testimony 

 3   I believe were confidential.  I don't know of any reason 

 4   why they couldn't be offered here in a confidential 

 5   basis, but obviously the protective order in Colorado 

 6   would have said that that information could only be used 

 7   for purposes of the Colorado proceeding. 

 8           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Well, I have a problem then, 

 9   because I don't know what this confidential information 

10   is, and if it's confidential information from a 

11   different party who's not here -- 

12           MR. MERZ:  It's Qwest's confidential 

13   information. 

14           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Is that acceptable for 

15   Qwest? 

16           MS. ANDERL:  We would like to include it as 

17   confidential, but, yes, of course, and we'll -- I mean, 

18   we would I guess waive the provisions of the Colorado 

19   protective order to the extent that it would prohibit us 

20   from using it in this docket, as long as it's protected 

21   in this document. 

22           MR. MERZ:  That sounds fine, yes. 

23           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  When would I be able to 

24   expect to receive Ms. Notarianni's testimony? 

25           MR. GOODWIN:  Monday. 
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 1           MS. ANDERL:  Monday. 

 2           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  That's fine. 

 3           I believe I have admitted the transcript now.  I 

 4   have a hard time admitting something that's not in 

 5   evidence at this time, but if there are no objections, 

 6   then I'm willing to go forward with that. 

 7           MS. CAMERON-RULKOWSKI:  Your Honor, I believe 

 8   that we may have a copy of this testimony.  I'm happy to 

 9   pass my copy over to other counsel table and see if 

10   that's something that we could -- 

11           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Why don't we go off the 

12   record for a moment and verify that that is the correct 

13   version.  If it is, then maybe we could have it filed 

14   today. 

15           Let's go off the record. 

16           (Discussion off the record.) 

17           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  After a discussion off the 

18   record, is there a motion for admission of DD-8 and 

19   DD-9?  DD-8 being the transcript of the Colorado 

20   proceeding from January 24th, 2012, and DD-9 being the 

21   testimony of Lynn Notarianni from the Colorado 

22   proceeding? 

23           MR. GOODWIN:  Yes.  Your Honor, I so move. 

24           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay. 

25           MR. GOODWIN:  With the clarification as agreed 
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 1   to with counsel that there is a correction that was 

 2   filed outside of the hearing to Ms. Notarianni's 

 3   testimony, and we will file that as well. 

 4           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you.  I appreciate 

 5   that. 

 6           And are there any objections to the admission of 

 7   the exhibits? 

 8           MR. MERZ:  No objections, Your Honor.  Thank 

 9   you. 

10           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you.  Then so 

11   admitted. 

12           (Exhibit DD-8 and DD-9 were admitted.) 

13           MR. GOODWIN:  And with the admission of those 

14   exhibits, Your Honor, I pass the witness. 

15           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

16           Mr. Merz? 

17           MR. MERZ:  I do not have any redirect for the 

18   witness. 

19           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  I did have one question, and 

20   it's clarification, and I've waited until now to ask it 

21   because I was not sure who would be the best of the 

22   witnesses to ask it of; however, having worked on the 

23   settlement, I think that you would probably be in the 

24   best position to provide the answer. 

25           When did Integra become aware that there might 
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 1   be some stability issues with MEDIACC and CEMR? 

 2           THE WITNESS:  Well, the first time that we heard 

 3   any reference regarding stability was testimony by 

 4   Mr. Hunsucker in the merger proceedings in Arizona, 

 5   which was maybe around, I think it was around 

 6   December 10th, within a couple of days at least of that, 

 7   because it was right after the notice that was released, 

 8   that Qwest had said they were going to retire CEMR and 

 9   MEDIACC.  Had no mention in it of instability.  And 

10   Mr. Hunsucker was asked about that on the stand in 

11   Arizona, and he said that he was told that the system 

12   was very unstable and that some of the components were 

13   old and needed to be replaced, and that was his 

14   rationale.  And that was the first time we'd heard the, 

15   you know, the instability argument. 

16           Remember, Qwest first initially had the notice, 

17   you heard about earlier today, back in 2008, you know, 

18   where they'd first -- you know, started down this path. 

19   And there was no mention in any of the records that I 

20   could find back then or any of the CMP discussions of 

21   instability at that time either. 

22           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  So Integra knew as of 

23   approximately December of 2010 during the merger 

24   proceeding that there were issues, that was after they 

25   had reached a settlement agreement, correct -- 
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 1           THE WITNESS:  Correct, because -- 

 2           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  -- with Qwest/CenturyLink? 

 3           THE WITNESS:  Correct.  Because the settlement 

 4   agreement was early in November that we reached that. 

 5   The notice that said something was going to change, the 

 6   first notice I think came out a couple days after we'd 

 7   signed the settlement agreement, but the, I think -- 

 8   when I first kind of became aware of it was this more 

 9   detailed December, you know, notice that indicated the 

10   retirement and replacement of -- 

11           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Right.  And I guess my 

12   concerns lie -- my concerns stem from the commission's 

13   standpoint, because the merger proceeding was still 

14   going on at that point, and I know the joint CLECs had 

15   raised the issue that it was Qwest's responsibility to 

16   alert the commission to the fact that there might be 

17   some instability in the OSS.  My question would be why 

18   didn't Integra alert the commission at that time that 

19   they had just discovered that there was a potential for 

20   these, I guess a catastrophic failure, in quotes? 

21           THE WITNESS:  Right.  I don't think the words 

22   "catastrophic failure" came yet at that point.  So the 

23   word was just that the system was very unstable.  So 

24   first, you know, I was the witness in the merger 

25   proceedings, and I had participated in, you know, 
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 1   actively negotiating the settlement, and one of the 

 2   conditions in that settlement agreement was that, you 

 3   know, Integra will support, you know, basic -- you know, 

 4   we withdraw our objections to the merger, and then we 

 5   will not do anything, the way I kind of read it.  And 

 6   I'm not sure these were the exact words, but Integra is 

 7   not going to do anything to undermine this merger as a 

 8   result of this settlement agreement. 

 9           And I -- and so while the issue came up, I 

10   didn't -- I was pretty nervous about saying -- getting 

11   up and saying here's, you know, here's this -- now, some 

12   of the hearings had already happened -- but saying, hey, 

13   here's this problem, here's this problem, and here my 

14   settlement agreements -- I could just imagine we'd be 

15   having a different discussion about violations of the 

16   settlement agreement at that time. 

17           There was also I think in at least some of our 

18   minds that this had to be a mistake because it was a 

19   clear violation of the settlement agreement, and that 

20   this would get -- and all the assurances that 

21   CenturyLink and Qwest were giving to the commissions 

22   across these proceedings and other agreements that they 

23   subsequently entered into reaffirming these things that 

24   this was going to get re- -- this would be resolved, 

25   that this would all be -- this would be done, and that 
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 1   we would have the, you know, the 24 months, which that 

 2   changed then to the 30 months. 

 3           But that's why -- I did get asked about it on 

 4   the stand by the joint CLECs, I got asked about it in 

 5   Arizona, and I did say that I -- you know, from what I'd 

 6   seen of it, and I'd just seen that, you know, for a 

 7   couple days, that it looked, it did look like it 

 8   violated the merger agreement, but I didn't feel that I 

 9   was really in a position to proactively get up there and 

10   say that.  That made me very -- that made me very 

11   nervous. 

12           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  That's fine.  That's fine. 

13   Thank you. 

14           I have no further clarification questions, so 

15   with that, the witness is dismissed.  You're excused -- 

16   oh, I'm sorry. 

17           MS. CAMERON-RULKOWSKI:  Your Honor, staff had 

18   reserved time to cross-examine Mr. Denney. 

19           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  You did.  That's right.  I 

20   apologize.  Please go ahead. 

21           MS. CAMERON-RULKOWSKI:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

22   You actually asked one of our questions so it worked out 

23   just fine. 

24           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Very good. 

25                       CROSS-EXAMINATION 
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 1   BY MS. CAMERON-RULKOWSKI: 

 2       Q.  Good afternoon, Mr. Denney. 

 3       A.  Good afternoon. 

 4       Q.  I just have a few questions for you. 

 5           In your testimony you refer to the joint CLEC 

 6   merger agreement, and this is that agreement that's 

 7   Exhibit BJJ-5. 

 8       A.  Yes. 

 9       Q.  Now, the CLECs did not file this agreement in 

10   the Qwest/CenturyLink merger proceeding in Washington 

11   state.  Correct? 

12       A.  I'm trying to remember if it was one of the -- 

13   there were a number of agreements attached to the 

14   commission's -- the commission's order that incorporated 

15   a number of agreements, and I don't remember whether the 

16   timing was such that this one was included in that order 

17   or not.  So -- because the joint CLECs agreement, 

18   Integra really had no part of that, so I'm not as 

19   familiar with the timing as when -- what states it got 

20   filed in. 

21       Q.  I understand. 

22           You do refer to the agreement on your testimony, 

23   in your responsive testimony on page 25, and so that is 

24   my reference point, at least one of them.  You may 

25   recall that Judge Friedlander took official notice of 
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 1   this agreement in the merger proceeding, but the 

 2   agreement itself was not as a whole adopted by the 

 3   Washington State Commission, was it? 

 4       A.  I'll have to take your representation on that. 

 5   I don't have that -- order No. 14 was it?  I don't have 

 6   that with me. 

 7       Q.  If I were to -- well, I have a copy of order 14, 

 8   and if the judge would be so kind as to give you a 

 9   moment to refer to it, perhaps we could take a few 

10   minutes. 

11           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Sure.  Why don't you 

12   approach the witness and if you have a copy of it, maybe 

13   you can share it with him. 

14           MS. CAMERON-RULKOWSKI:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

15           I don't want to make an improper suggestion, but 

16   all of the settlement agreements are attached at the end 

17   of the order, you might recall. 

18           THE WITNESS:  I'm looking through those.  I'm 

19   almost to the last one. 

20           So, I mean, I agree that that agreement is 

21   not -- 

22           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  That's fine.  Go ahead. 

23   BY MS. CAMERON-RULKOWSKI: 

24       Q.  Mr. Denney, please go ahead and answer the 

25   question, if you're ready now. 
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 1       A.  Okay.  And so that agreement is not included as 

 2   part of the commission's order, order 14.  My 

 3   understanding of the agreement when it was made was that 

 4   it was made available across the, you know, kind of 

 5   across the Qwest region, and so it was, you know, 

 6   applicable to CLECs who opted into it or wanted to take 

 7   advantage of those in every -- in every state. 

 8       Q.  Right.  Your testimony is not suggesting, 

 9   though, that the Washington Commission could enforce a 

10   term in that agreement when the Washington Commission 

11   never adopted it, is it? 

12       A.  I think -- that's maybe a legal question. 

13   That's a little bit beyond my ability.  If the agreement 

14   is -- I'm not sure who would have jurisdiction over the 

15   disputes of an agreement in that situation, so if a 

16   dispute arose as a result of that agreement, it may be 

17   that the -- you know, that the commission would be the 

18   proper authority to look at that, but I'm going to 

19   have -- I would have to talk to, you know, counsel 

20   about, you know, how something would work in that 

21   particular situation. 

22       Q.  Is Integra asking that this commission enforce 

23   any particular terms in that agreement that don't appear 

24   in the Integra agreement or the staff public counsel 

25   agreement that were filed with the Washington Commission 
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 1   during the Qwest/CenturyLink merger proceeding? 

 2       A.  There are additional terms.  I think some of 

 3   them haven't come up yet.  There's some additional 

 4   testing requirements.  And the data that CenturyLink is 

 5   supposed to provide before you enter into a test 

 6   environment regarding the volumes, that issue hasn't 

 7   come, so I don't think that's an issue right now of 

 8   dispute, but it's something, I mean, certainly both 

 9   Integra and joint CLECs expect CenturyLink to do. 

10           There is a term in that agreement, in Section C 

11   of the -- 1-C of that joint CLEC agreement, that is 

12   talking about some additional conditions that they added 

13   to Section 12 of the Integra agreement.  One of them has 

14   to do with functional equivalency requires provision of 

15   functionality equivalent data flowing into the CLECs 

16   system sufficient to enable the CLEC to maintain its 

17   existing level of back office system automation. 

18           I think those are kind of points that Mr. Hansen 

19   was getting at earlier today, that they would -- that 

20   PAETEC would be unable to do if this system or, you 

21   know, the systems changed out to MTG. 

22       Q.  So the points that you just raised contained in 

23   the joint CLEC agreement, is it Integra's contention 

24   that the Washington Commission should enforce those? 

25       A.  I do think they should enforce those agreements. 
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 1   It was something that was offered up through all of the 

 2   Qwest territory.  I think the main agreement, but we 

 3   know here, you know, is the Integra agreement which has 

 4   a number of provisions that stands, you know, stands on 

 5   its own with respect to the case, but I think these 

 6   additional provisions are important in -- and I would 

 7   think the commission would be the body that would 

 8   oversee disputes regarding those additional commitments, 

 9   but that's the thing that I would really want to talk 

10   to, you know, counsel about. 

11       Q.  Let's move on.  In your testimony, you refer to 

12   the term "integrate," which is used in condition 23 of 

13   the staff public counsel settlement agreement, and 

14   Integra's settlement condition 12.  And I think we've 

15   talked about that a little bit earlier today.  You agree 

16   that OSS integration in the language of these conditions 

17   could refer to the integration of Legacy/Qwest OSS into 

18   CenturyLink's EASE.  Right? 

19       A.  So let me be clear.  Your question is whether 

20   under these agreements is CenturyLink allowed to use the 

21   Legacy/Qwest systems and the Legacy/CenturyLink 

22   territory.  Is that what you're -- 

23       Q.  No.  My question is actually quite simple. 

24           And just for the court reporter, EASE is 

25   E-A-S-E, all capital letters. 
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 1           My question is simply when we're talking about 

 2   the word "integration" in these conditions, you agree 

 3   that it could refer to the integration of Legacy/Qwest 

 4   OSS into EASE, that's one of the possible meanings of 

 5   "integrate."  Correct? 

 6       A.  That would be one of the possible meanings of 

 7   "integrate," but I think the conditions that we've laid 

 8   out here are conditions on the OSS in the Legacy/Qwest 

 9   territory, so I don't think that would apply. 

10           And maybe I need to look at the staff, you know, 

11   conditions more carefully, but at least in the Integra 

12   agreement, it's the Legacy/Qwest operational support 

13   systems in Section 12 that the time periods and the 

14   restrictions and requirements apply to. 

15           And so I understand EASE to be a 

16   CenturyLink/Legacy -- a Legacy/CenturyLink system 

17   pre-Qwest, so I do think they are able under this 

18   agreement to make changes to those Legacy -- the 

19   non-Qwest systems. 

20       Q.  One of the concerns that I think we've heard 

21   testimony on today from the merger proceeding was that 

22   the Qwest OSS might be done away with and switched over 

23   to CenturyLink's EASE.  My question is simply the word 

24   "integrate" in this condition would refer to that 

25   situation.  Correct? 
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 1       A.  Right.  I think maybe I was hearing you 

 2   backwards.  If EASE were used into the Legacy/Qwest 

 3   territory, I think that would be a violation.  Under the 

 4   time periods outlined here, if that were done now, that 

 5   would be a violation of the settlement agreement.  That 

 6   would be an integration of a system into the 

 7   Legacy/Qwest OSS. 

 8       Q.  Yes, like I said, it's a -- 

 9       A.  Okay. 

10       Q.  -- it really was meant as a simple question. 

11       A.  I was hearing the other direction, which is that 

12   moving into the -- moving a Qwest OSS into CenturyLink, 

13   which is why I answered as I did, not the other way 

14   around. 

15       Q.  Do you also degree that integration could refer 

16   to the integration of Legacy/Qwest OSS into an entirely 

17   new system? 

18       A.  Yes.  Integrate, bringing in an entirely new 

19   system into the Qwest/Legacy OSS.  I kind of view 

20   "integrate" as the combining of one thing with another 

21   thing, so any shape that that would take place would be 

22   integration. 

23       Q.  Thank you. 

24           MS. CAMERON-RULKOWSKI:  I have no further 

25   questions for Mr. Denney. 
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 1           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

 2           Did Mr. Merz have any redirect? 

 3           MR. MERZ:  I do not.  Thank you, Your Honor. 

 4           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

 5           MR. GOODWIN:  I just have one follow-up question 

 6   based on the question of Your Honor. 

 7           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  That's fine. 

 8           MR. GOODWIN:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

 9                   FURTHER CROSS-EXAMINATION 

10   BY MR. GOODWIN: 

11       Q.  Judge Friedlander was talking with you about why 

12   didn't you raise objections after you gained knowledge 

13   of the MEDIACC and MTG issues.  Do you recall that 

14   testimony? 

15       A.  Yes. 

16       Q.  There's nothing in the settlement agreements 

17   that we've discussed here today and nothing in any 

18   commission rule or other legal requirement that would 

19   have prevented Integra from complaining that they 

20   thought the merger settlements were going to be 

21   breached.  Correct? 

22       A.  There is a provision -- let me find it here -- 

23       Q.  My question is specifically directed at whether 

24   or not these merger settlement agreements are going to 

25   be breached, not whether the -- not to oppose the 



0233 

 1   merger.  The question is is there anything in the merger 

 2   settlements that says you can't claim that they're being 

 3   breached.  Was there any other legal requirement in the 

 4   Washington rules or any other legal requirement that 

 5   you're aware of that prevented Integra from saying the 

 6   merger settlements will be breached? 

 7       A.  We're getting into these future questions.  I 

 8   think at the time that there wasn't -- we didn't know 

 9   the merger settlement was going to be breached.  We felt 

10   the notice that you sent out was a violation of that 

11   disagreement, and that would get fixed by getting rid of 

12   that -- getting rid of that notice. 

13           There are provisions in here about how Integra 

14   needs to represent the settlement agreement, which has, 

15   as you mentioned, a lot of issues were covered through 

16   that agreement as part of the ongoing proceedings, and 

17   it was my view that saying, getting up on the stand and 

18   saying they're already -- they're already showing 

19   indications they're going to breach this agreement went 

20   against the provision that said -- or asking the 

21   commission to approve this in the public interest, and 

22   we've thought these things -- we thought that would get 

23   worked at the time -- I thought it was a mistake, it 

24   would get worked out, it would get fixed at that time. 

25           And I think that would have thrown -- that would 
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 1   have put all of that into jeopardy, and, you know, by 

 2   saying that. 

 3       Q.  Maybe my question got somewhere lost in there. 

 4   My question is is there anything in the merger 

 5   settlement agreement which prevented you from claiming 

 6   that it would be breached, or was being breached or 

 7   might be breached. 

 8       A.  Those words aren't in the settlement agreement, 

 9   but -- 

10       Q.  That's all I have. 

11       A.  -- I just -- just go back to what I said before. 

12   I won't repeat it. 

13           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  Thank you. 

14           With that, the witness is excused. 

15           Thank you. 

16           THE WITNESS:  Thank you. 

17           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  I believe up next is 

18   Mr. Hunsucker, and Mr. Goodwin, if you want to introduce 

19   your witness. 

20           MR. GOODWIN:  Yes, Your Honor.  We call 

21   Mr. Michael Hunsucker. 

22                       MICHAEL HUNSUCKER 

23           Witness herein, having been first duly sworn on 

24   oath, was examined and testified as follow: 

25           THE WITNESS:  Yes, I do. 
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 1           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you.  You can sit 

 2   down. 

 3           Mr. Goodwin? 

 4                       DIRECT EXAMINATION 

 5   BY MR. GOODWIN: 

 6       Q.  Good morning, Mr. Hunsucker.  Could you state 

 7   your name and spell it for the record, please. 

 8       A.  Sure.  Good afternoon. 

 9           My name is Michael Hunsucker, M-I-C-H-A-E-L, 

10   last name is spelled H-U-N-S-U-C-K-E-R. 

11       Q.  I'd like the record to reflect that it is no 

12   longer morning. 

13       A.  I tried to be subtle in correcting you, 

14   Mr. Goodwin. 

15       Q.  You have what has been marked, and I believe 

16   admitted, as Exhibit MH-1T in front of you? 

17       A.  Yes, I do. 

18       Q.  That's 15 pages without exhibits? 

19       A.  Correct. 

20       Q.  If I asked you the same questions that are 

21   presented in that prefiled testimony here on the stand 

22   today under oath, would your answers be the same? 

23       A.  Yes, they would. 

24       Q.  Do you have any corrections to your testimony? 

25       A.  No, I do not. 
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 1           MR. GOODWIN:  Then I present the witness for 

 2   cross-examination. 

 3           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  Thank you. 

 4           I think what I'm going to do, I'm going to allow 

 5   Mr. Merz first, and then Ms. Giles, and then staff. 

 6           So, Mr. Merz, if you'd like to cross-examine the 

 7   witness. 

 8           MR. MERZ:  Thank you. 

 9                       CROSS-EXAMINATION 

10   BY MR. MERZ: 

11       Q.  Good afternoon, sir. 

12       A.  Good afternoon. 

13       Q.  I'd like to talk to you first about the Integra 

14   settlement agreement, which you can find, it's been 

15   marked as hearing Exhibit BJJ-4, but it's under 

16   tab three in Ms. Johnson's testimony. 

17           It looks like you may have it here. 

18       A.  I do have it here, yes. 

19       Q.  You were directly involved in negotiating this 

20   agreement.  Is that correct? 

21       A.  Yes, I was. 

22       Q.  You are familiar with its terms? 

23       A.  Yes. 

24       Q.  I'd like you to look at page 6.  I'm looking at 

25   section four of the agreement, which refers to rates 



0237 

 1   generally. 

 2       A.  Okay, I see that. 

 3       Q.  The general purpose of this provision regarding 

 4   rates is its an agreement that CenturyLink and Qwest 

 5   would not increase rates in the interconnection 

 6   agreements during a specific period of time.  Is that 

 7   right? 

 8       A.  Yes. 

 9       Q.  The specific period of time is the longer of 

10   either the unexpired period of a CLEC's ICA or 36 

11   months.  Is that right? 

12       A.  Let me -- yes, that's correct. 

13       Q.  Now, Section 4-A permits the merged company to 

14   initiate a cost case before the expiration of 36 months. 

15   Is that right? 

16       A.  O.  Let me see exactly where -- you said 4-A? 

17       Q.  Correct.  On page 7. 

18       A.  Yes, it does say that we can initiate a cost 

19   docket before the expiration of the 30-month period. 

20       Q.  But there are certain requirements that apply to 

21   that permission to initiate a cost docket before 36 

22   months.  Correct? 

23       A.  Yeah, I'm not sure what requirements you're -- 

24       Q.  I'll be -- 

25       A.  -- referring to, because it's been a long time 
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 1   since I've looked at this specific section. 

 2       Q.  What the agreement provides is that a cost 

 3   docket can't be initiated until at least 18 months after 

 4   the merger close.  Is that right? 

 5       A.  Yes, that's correct. 

 6       Q.  And it also provides that rates that would be 

 7   approved in such a cost docket can't actually take 

 8   effect until 36 months after the ICA extension period. 

 9   Is that right? 

10       A.  That's correct. 

11       Q.  Now, the purpose of that provision as you 

12   understand it is that that allows new rates to go into 

13   effect immediately upon the expiration of the specified 

14   period if a cost case has been completed prior to that. 

15       A.  Prior to the 36 months, yes, that's right. 

16       Q.  Now, look also at Section 2-A, which relates to 

17   modifications to the QPAP.  Do you have that there? 

18       A.  On page 3? 

19       Q.  Yes, correct. 

20       A.  Yes. 

21       Q.  And there the agreement provides that the merged 

22   company will not seek to eliminate or withdraw the QPAP 

23   for at least three years after closing.  Correct? 

24       A.  I'm reading this again.  Bear with me just one 

25   second. 
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 1       Q.  Sure, sure. 

 2       A.  I'm not seeing your reference. 

 3       Q.  I'm looking at the next-to-the-last sentence of 

 4   Section 3-A.  Yes, the next-to-the-last sentence of 3-A. 

 5       A.  I couldn't find it, I'm sorry.  The merged 

 6   company will not seek to eliminate or withdraw for at 

 7   least three years, yes. 

 8       Q.  The immediately preceding sentence says that 

 9   notwithstanding that 36-month period, the parties may 

10   seek modifications after 18 months, modifications to the 

11   QPAP.  Is that right? 

12       A.  That's correct.  Modifications to the terms and 

13   conditions. 

14       Q.  And so what the parties did in both Section 4 

15   and Section 2 is they negotiated a specific time frame 

16   that would apply to the rates that were in effect and 

17   the QPAP as it was then in effect.  Is that right? 

18       A.  Correct. 

19       Q.  And they also agreed to terms under which Qwest 

20   and CenturyLink could seek to make changes earlier than 

21   those timeframes provided that certain conditions were 

22   met.  Correct? 

23       A.  I'm not sure I agree completely with that 

24   statement.  There was a time period that was earlier 

25   than we could go in to seek the modifications, but they 
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 1   still couldn't be implemented during that time period. 

 2   There was a certain wait period that we agreed to. 

 3       Q.  Fair enough.  And so what you agreed was that 

 4   Qwest essentially could begin taking regulatory actions 

 5   that would allow those changes to go in effect as soon 

 6   as the defined time period had expired. 

 7       A.  Yes.  I would agree with that. 

 8       Q.  Section 12, which is the provision that we spent 

 9   a lot of time talking about in this case, restricts the 

10   merged company's ability to make certain changes to 

11   Qwest's OSS.  Is that right? 

12       A.  Yes.  That's correct. 

13       Q.  And that refers to a time period of two years, 

14   or July 2012, and that was later extended to 30 months. 

15   Is that right? 

16       A.  There was a period that we would continue to 

17   offer and use the Legacy/Qwest OSS, and it was 

18   originally until July 1, 2013, then we agreed to extend 

19   that for a 30-month period. 

20       Q.  That extension is found in the joint CLECs 

21   agreements.  Is that right? 

22       A.  Yes, that's correct. 

23       Q.  There is no language in Section 12 to permit 

24   CenturyLink to initiate a change earlier in order that 

25   that change can take effect immediately upon expiration 
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 1   of the 30-month period, is there? 

 2       A.  I think there is. 

 3       Q.  What language would you be referring to? 

 4       A.  If you look at paragraph 12-A, it says the 

 5   merged company will provide notice to the wire line of 

 6   the effective changes at least 270 days before replacing 

 7   or integrating the system.  The date by which we can 

 8   replace and retire the system is that 30-month period. 

 9   So again this says we can give 270 days notice before 

10   that takes place. 

11       Q.  I'd like you to refer to your direct testimony 

12   now at page 7. 

13       A.  Okay. 

14       Q.  I'm looking specifically at line seven where you 

15   say that the company will follow all required steps 

16   outlined in the settlement agreements if and when the 

17   company decides to retire or replace any OSS.  Do you 

18   see that? 

19       A.  Yes, I do. 

20       Q.  And, in fact, CenturyLink has made the decision 

21   that it will retire MEDIACC.  Correct? 

22       A.  Yes.  And this was a generic statement around we 

23   would follow those required steps to replace any OSS. 

24   So it was just a generic statement about all the OSS 

25   systems.  But you're right, as we sit here today, we 
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 1   have decided that MTG will be the replacement system for 

 2   MEDIACC, but that will occur after we meet all the 

 3   conditions in all the settlement agreements and not 

 4   before October 2013. 

 5       Q.  And you were here earlier today when Ms. Anderl 

 6   asked Ms. Johnson about a modification to the change 

 7   request that removed a reference to MTG as the 

 8   retirement for MEDIACC.  Do you recall that 

 9   cross-examination testimony? 

10       A.  Yes. 

11       Q.  And even though that reference was removed from 

12   the CR, that doesn't change the fact that MTG is, in 

13   fact, going to be the replacement for MEDIACC.  Right? 

14       A.  It doesn't change the fact that our plans are to 

15   replace that system, but it also doesn't change the 

16   terms that are in all the settlement agreements that we 

17   have to meet before that can take place.  You know, as 

18   I've said, we're committed to meeting all those steps in 

19   that retirement -- in those settlement agreements before 

20   we retire or replace MEDIACC with MTG. 

21       Q.  But my point is that removing the reference in 

22   the MTG as the replacement for MEDIACC didn't change the 

23   fact that MTG will be the replacement for MEDIACC, did 

24   it? 

25       A.  Again, it doesn't change our plans to move to 
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 1   MTG as the replacement system. 

 2       Q.  It was a change that really doesn't have any 

 3   effect, did it? 

 4       A.  I'm not sure I understand that question, 

 5   "doesn't have any effect." 

 6       Q.  Well, Ms. Johnson was asked questions this 

 7   morning about a change to the CR that removed a 

 8   reference to MTG as the replacement to MEDIACC, and I 

 9   understand that reference was removed, but that removal 

10   didn't change CenturyLink's plans with regard to 

11   replacing MEDIACC with MTG. 

12       A.  I agree with that, yes. 

13       Q.  Now, in your direct testimony at page 8, line 

14   18, you talk about how you first became aware of the 

15   issue of retirement of MEDIACC.  Is that right? 

16       A.  That's correct. 

17       Q.  You first learned that during the Arizona merger 

18   hearing on about -- I think it was December 20th.  Is 

19   that right? 

20       A.  Yeah, that's correct.  I know Mr. Denney said 

21   the 10th, but it was actually the 20th that we were in 

22   Arizona for that hearing. 

23       Q.  Now, you were the witness who testified on 

24   behalf of the joint applicants, Qwest and CenturyLink, 

25   regarding wholesale OSS issues in all of the merger 
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 1   cases.  Isn't that right? 

 2       A.  Yes. 

 3       Q.  And I was actually the lawyer that asked you 

 4   questions in Arizona about this issue of MEDIACC's 

 5   retirement.  Is that right? 

 6       A.  Yes, that's correct. 

 7       Q.  Did you review the transcript of your testimony 

 8   in Arizona in preparation for your testimony here today? 

 9       A.  I reviewed that section of the testimony, 

10   because you provided it to me last week in Colorado. 

11       Q.  We talked about it a little bit in Colorado, and 

12   you recall at that time that I had asked you 

13   specifically about CEMR, and what you told me was that 

14   you had been informed by people at Qwest that CEMR was 

15   very unstable.  Is that right? 

16       A.  Yeah, I think what I told you, that I was 

17   informed by the Qwest folks that the system was 

18   unstable, and that the use of the word "very" was 

19   something that I used, it was not something that the 

20   Qwest folks actually told me. 

21       Q.  And I wondered about that, because I think you 

22   would agree with me that you at the time of that 

23   testimony were not an expert in Qwest OSS systems, were 

24   you? 

25       A.  No, I'm not.  I was not at that time, nor am I 
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 1   really today. 

 2       Q.  And so my question is if Qwest people were 

 3   telling you that the system was unstable, why would you 

 4   then say at the hearing that the system was -- that you 

 5   had been told that the system was very unstable? 

 6       A.  Yeah, and I don't know that I have a good answer 

 7   to that question.  Those were the words that I used at 

 8   the time, and as I said last week, and as I say here 

 9   today, the words they used were "unstable," and I used 

10   the word "very" in front of it. 

11       Q.  Just to be clear, we were talking specifically 

12   about CEMR, but the same concern about stability applied 

13   to MEDIACC as well.  Is that right? 

14       A.  Yes, that's true. 

15       Q.  You don't recall who told you about the system 

16   being unstable? 

17       A.  No.  As I recollect on that, we were in joint 

18   planning meetings, merger planning meetings, and it was 

19   individuals from the Qwest policy division, but I can't 

20   remember exactly which one mentioned that to me. 

21       Q.  It wasn't an IT person? 

22       A.  No, there was no IT people in those meetings, so 

23   no, it was not an IT person. 

24       Q.  Did you ever talk with an IT person prior to the 

25   March approval about the stability of the MEDIACC and 
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 1   CEMR systems? 

 2       A.  No, I did not, because at that point in time 

 3   we -- you know, my expectation, this was not -- or the 

 4   realization was this was not a merger-related change 

 5   that was being proposed by Qwest.  This was something 

 6   they were doing on their own in preparation for moving 

 7   to the MTG or CTG, whatever they referred to it at that 

 8   point in time.  It was not something, you know, as I've 

 9   said, was a merger-related issue, because at that point 

10   they were running their business, and I had no ability 

11   to influence their business decisions prior to the 

12   merger closing on April 1st. 

13       Q.  You did know on December 20th that your company 

14   had entered into an agreement to continue to use and 

15   offer Qwest/Legacy OSS for a period after the merger. 

16   Is that right? 

17       A.  Yes. 

18       Q.  And you knew you that CEMR and MEDIACC were in 

19   fact both Qwest/Legacy systems.  Is that right? 

20       A.  Yes. 

21       Q.  You knew that CLEC were relying on the 

22   settlement agreement and the promise that they would be 

23   able to continue to use MEDIACC and CEMR for a period 

24   after the merger? 

25       A.  Yes.  I understood that.  And post merger 
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 1   closing we remedied that situation by withdrawing the CR 

 2   to retire MEDIACC.  And as we've discussed earlier, 

 3   we're committed to leaving that system in place for the 

 4   30 months. 

 5       Q.  You were concerned when you first heard about 

 6   the instability of CEMR and MEDIACC that you had just 

 7   entered into this agreement with the joint CLECs and you 

 8   were concerned about whether your company would be able 

 9   to fulfill its end of that agreement, weren't you? 

10       A.  I was concerned about whether that was 

11   consistent with the settlement agreement, but again I 

12   couldn't influence what Qwest was doing for their 

13   company at that point in time to try to be proactive 

14   with their CLEC customers and provide a new system and a 

15   new alternative for maintenance and repair. 

16       Q.  But what you could do, though, was gather 

17   information to determine whether the company would be 

18   able to meet its merger commitments.  Correct? 

19       A.  Sure, I could have done that, yes. 

20       Q.  There was nothing that prevented you from doing 

21   that, no legal reason, no practical reason, was there? 

22       A.  There was no legal reason.  I think the 

23   practical reason again was I couldn't control the 

24   decisions being made by Qwest for their company. 

25       Q.  And my question is not whether you could control 



0248 

 1   the decisions, but whether you could find out whether 

 2   the company would likely be able to meet its merger 

 3   commitments.  That's something you could have 

 4   investigated and chose not to.  Correct? 

 5       A.  Yes, I guess I could have investigated that. 

 6       Q.  And you chose not to? 

 7       A.  I don't know that I chose not to.  I did not. 

 8   It wasn't a conscious decision to choose one over the 

 9   other at that time. 

10       Q.  Did you ever ask anyone else to perform such an 

11   investigation? 

12       A.  No. 

13       Q.  Did you do anything to investigate the 

14   consequences to the CLECs if either MEDIACC or CEMR were 

15   to fail? 

16       A.  No, I did not. 

17       Q.  Did you understand, though, that those 

18   consequences would be significant? 

19       A.  I had concerns about the consequences.  I don't 

20   know that I had a real appreciation for the significance 

21   of those consequences. 

22           MR. MERZ:  Your Honor, I have a 

23   cross-examination exhibit that I'd like to speak with 

24   Mr. Hunsucker about. 

25           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  I will mark this 
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 1   exhibit for identification purposes as MH-2. 

 2           (Exhibit MH-2 was offered.) 

 3   BY MR. MERZ: 

 4       Q.  Mr. Hunsucker you have in front of you a 

 5   document marked as MH-2.  You recognize this as a 

 6   response by Qwest and CenturyLink to an information 

 7   request propounded by the joint CLECs.  Correct? 

 8       A.  Yes. 

 9       Q.  And this response discusses what analysis, 

10   examination, investigation, was done before entering 

11   into the Integra settlement agreement regarding whether 

12   the company could continue to use and offer Qwest OSS 

13   for at least 24 months.  Is that right? 

14       A.  Yes.  I need to read this. 

15       Q.  Sure.  Take your time. 

16       A.  Okay. 

17       Q.  So my question is does this response describe 

18   the investigation, if any, that was done by Qwest and 

19   CenturyLink before the companies entered into the 

20   Integra agreement regarding whether the company could 

21   continue to use and offer Legacy/Qwest OSS for at least 

22   24 months after the merger? 

23       A.  That was the question that was asked, and this 

24   was our response, yes. 

25           MR. MERZ:  Your Honor, the joint CLECs offer 
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 1   Exhibit MH-2. 

 2           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  Are there any 

 3   objections? 

 4           MR. GOODWIN:  None, Your Honor. 

 5           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  So admitted.  Thank 

 6   you. 

 7           (Exhibit MH-2 was admitted.) 

 8   BY MR. MERZ: 

 9       Q.  My question about this exhibit actually relates 

10   to the very last sentence of the response there, where 

11   it says "these determinations assumed."  Do you see 

12   that? 

13       A.  Yes. 

14       Q.  It says, "These determinations assumed that post 

15   merger Qwest would not be prohibited from maintaining or 

16   upgrading Legacy/Qwest systems."  My question is MTG is 

17   not either maintaining or upgrading a Legacy/Qwest 

18   system, is it? 

19       A.  I'm not sure that I could answer that from a 

20   technical standpoint.  I think it could be considered an 

21   upgrade to a Legacy/Qwest system if there's risk of 

22   instability in MEDIACC, and we're solving that through 

23   implementing MTG, then, you know, that could be viewed 

24   as an upgrade of the system.  And again this was all 

25   premised on the fact that we didn't believe there was -- 
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 1   there was no integration with a CenturyLink system. 

 2   This was purely a Qwest replacement or implementation of 

 3   a new system in addition to MEDIACC that we, you know, 

 4   would leave up for the 30-month period. 

 5       Q.  So you believe that MTG could be viewed as 

 6   upgrading a Legacy/Qwest system.  Is that right? 

 7       A.  Yeah, from a nontechnical standpoint, it's just 

 8   like buying a new car.  If you're buying a new car, in 

 9   my view that's an upgrade to the situation, and that's 

10   what we were -- are trying to do with the MTG system. 

11       Q.  Going to your direct testimony at page 10.  I'm 

12   looking at line two, where you say the company didn't 

13   need to investigate which systems might experience a 

14   force majeure event.  Do you see that? 

15       A.  Yes. 

16       Q.  What did you mean by force majeure there? 

17       A.  Well, I think the -- let me read.  You know, a 

18   force majeure is something that could be construed as an 

19   act of God, hurricane, tornado, flood, anything of that 

20   nature. 

21       Q.  Does the settlement agreement contain a force 

22   majeure clause? 

23       A.  I don't recall specifically if that's in the 

24   settlement agreement or not. 

25       Q.  Is it your understanding that the concept of 
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 1   force majeure would apply to excuse a party's own 

 2   negligence? 

 3       A.  No.  And I was not trying to suggest here that 

 4   it would excuse a party's own negligence, but if a 

 5   system goes down and we need to understand the cause of 

 6   why it goes down, and it could be, you know, failure of 

 7   the hardware, software, it could be something outside 

 8   the control of the company. 

 9       Q.  In your direct testimony at page 9, line six, 

10   the question is if you had known about the MTG project, 

11   would you have proceeded with the merger settlement 

12   agreement, and the answer you give there is yes, you 

13   would have.  Is that right? 

14       A.  Yes. 

15       Q.  You go on to say that the settlement agreement 

16   didn't prohibit an alternative system.  Is that right? 

17       A.  Correct.  The development and optional 

18   availability of a new system. 

19       Q.  Then you say the original MTG project that 

20   needed clarification is that MEDIACC would not be 

21   replaced for 30 months.  Do you see that? 

22       A.  Yes. 

23       Q.  That wasn't a clarification, that was a change 

24   of the plan that Qwest had previously announced, was it 

25   not? 
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 1       A.  Change, clarification, I mean whatever the right 

 2   word is, the thing that happened was we came back after 

 3   the merger closing and said we are not going to replace 

 4   and retire the MEDIACC system. 

 5       Q.  Now, you agree with me, do you not, that the 

 6   announcement in December of 2010 that MEDIACC was going 

 7   to be retired in the end of 2011, that that announcement 

 8   violated the merger conditions of the Integra settlement 

 9   agreement? 

10       A.  Based on our review, after the merger closing, 

11   that's exactly why we pulled the retirement of the 

12   MEDIACC system.  We agreed to leave it up for the period 

13   that we committed to in the settlement agreement. 

14       Q.  But you didn't review that issue before the 

15   merger closed, whether or not that announcement violated 

16   the merger settlement agreement? 

17       A.  There was some review during that period, but 

18   not to the extent of actually changing it, because again 

19   we could not change the direction that Qwest was taking 

20   as a stand-alone company until the merger closed. 

21       Q.  But what you could have done is you could have 

22   said to the CLECs:  CLECs, we understand Qwest has made 

23   this announcement, but understand that if the merger 

24   closes, we're not going to take that action, we're not 

25   going to retire MEDIACC at the end of 2011. 
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 1       A.  And that's what we did at post merger closing. 

 2           But I think the other thing is the CLECs could 

 3   have come to us and said we think this is a violation of 

 4   the merger agreement.  That did not happen either.  It 

 5   happened in a February time frame when we got some 

 6   notification from Integra. 

 7       Q.  Right.  What was the response to that? 

 8       A.  The response at that point in time was they had 

 9   to continue to operate as two separate companies.  Per 

10   federal laws and regulations, we did not want to be 

11   accused of making -- of any gun jumping or making 

12   decisions on behalf of another company. 

13       Q.  You are aware that Integra expressed concern 

14   about the retirement of MEDIACC, and at that point Qwest 

15   and CenturyLink took the position that the retirement in 

16   December 2011 of MEDIACC would not violate the 

17   settlement agreement? 

18       A.  You know, I don't recall whether we took that 

19   position premerger closing or not, to be honest. 

20       Q.  Would you refer to -- it's actually an exhibit 

21   to Ms. Johnson's testimony.  It was it marked as hearing 

22   Exhibit 19, but you'll find it under tab 17 to her 

23   testimony. 

24       A.  Okay.  I have it. 

25       Q.  The first page of that exhibit is an e-mail from 
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 1   Karen Clauson, who's a lawyer at Integra, to Daphne 

 2   Butler and Linda Gardner at -- Daphne Butler at Qwest 

 3   and Linda Gardner at CenturyLink.  Is that right? 

 4       A.  Yes, that's correct. 

 5       Q.  And in her e-mail, Ms. Clauson expresses concern 

 6   that the plan to retire CEMR and MEDIACC would violate 

 7   the settlement agreement.  Is that right? 

 8       A.  I'll need a few minutes to read it. 

 9       Q.  Sure. 

10       A.  Yes, this letter is asking both -- is stating 

11   that both parties are, both Qwest and CenturyLink, are 

12   parties to the merger settlement agreement, and asking 

13   us to respond as to whether and how these proposed 

14   changes comply with the settlement agreement. 

15       Q.  And then the response to Ms. Clauson's request 

16   is the next page.  Is that right? 

17       A.  Yes. 

18       Q.  And the response comes from Ms. Butler, who's a 

19   lawyer at Qwest.  Is that right? 

20       A.  That's correct. 

21       Q.  And it's copied to Ms. Gardner, who's a lawyer 

22   at CenturyLink.  Correct? 

23       A.  Correct. 

24       Q.  Here Ms. Butler takes the position that the 

25   proposed changes comply with the settlement agreement 
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 1   and they're required in order for Qwest to meet its post 

 2   merger obligations regarding the PAPs and the ICAs.  Is 

 3   that right? 

 4       A.  Yes, that's the words here. 

 5       Q.  Ms. Butler, in the next paragraph, says that the 

 6   Section 12 procedures don't apply to replacement that 

 7   was initiated by Qwest well before the merger.  Is that 

 8   right? 

 9       A.  Yes. 

10       Q.  You don't agree with these statements by 

11   Ms. Butler, do you? 

12       A.  Do I personally agree with them?  Is that your 

13   question? 

14       Q.  Does your company agree with them? 

15       A.  I think at this point the answer is no.  We 

16   didn't agree -- we don't agree with these statements, 

17   and that's why we made the changes that we did post 

18   merger closing to remove MEDIACC from a retirement 

19   status. 

20       Q.  Well, did you agree back in February when this 

21   e-mail was sent, "You" meaning among your company. 

22       A.  I don't know.  I don't remember seeing this 

23   response, as I said, I don't recall. 

24       Q.  Ms. Garner never expressed any disagreement with 

25   this interpretation offered by Ms. Butler, did she? 
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 1           MR. GOODWIN:  Objection to the extent that that 

 2   calls for the disclosure of attorney-client privilege. 

 3           MR. MERZ:  And I'll rephrase to ask a better 

 4   question. 

 5           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Thank you. 

 6   BY MR. MERZ: 

 7       Q.  Did Ms. Gardner to your knowledge ever express 

 8   any disagreement to Integra or any other third party 

 9   with the interpretation offered by Ms. Butler of the 

10   settlement agreement? 

11       A.  I have no knowledge of whether she did or did 

12   not. 

13       Q.  And that's something that given her role at the 

14   company you would know if she offered that to some other 

15   third party, wouldn't you? 

16       A.  Not necessarily, no. 

17       Q.  Didn't she work for you? 

18       A.  No, she did not work for me.  She's a lawyer in 

19   the legal department.  She did not work for me. 

20       Q.  You weren't her client, or one of them? 

21       A.  I was one of her clients through the merger 

22   proceeding, yes. 

23       Q.  You were one of her clients in February 2011. 

24   Correct? 

25       A.  Yes. 
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 1       Q.  In your direct testimony at page 9, line four, 

 2   you say, "I did not have full visibility into all of the 

 3   Legacy/Qwest wholesale business plans and operations." 

 4   Is that right? 

 5       A.  Correct. 

 6       Q.  What did you mean, "full visibility"? 

 7       A.  I meant that I didn't have -- I didn't have a 

 8   lot of input into their wholesale business plans and 

 9   operations at Qwest.  Again, we were a stand-alone 

10   company at -- prior to the merger settlement, so I had 

11   some insight based on my work through the merger, but it 

12   was pretty limited. 

13       Q.  When you talk about visibility, aren't you 

14   referring to the degree to which you knew what Qwest's 

15   plans were? 

16       A.  Again, we're talking here about visibility into 

17   their business plans and operations. 

18       Q.  Right.  But "visibility" means what you knew 

19   about those plans and operations? 

20       A.  Yeah.  Make sure I answer that correctly.  I 

21   want to -- I did not have the ability to look into their 

22   systems or their business plans for purposes of, well, 

23   for any purpose for that point, because they were a 

24   stand-alone company. 

25       Q.  But you knew what those plans were, did you not, 
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 1   specifically with regard to MEDIACC and CEMR? 

 2       A.  I knew on December 20th when we were in the 

 3   Arizona hearing at that point, that's when I became 

 4   aware of their plans in regards to CEMR and MEDIACC, and 

 5   the retirement CR that was issued, I think the week 

 6   before. 

 7       Q.  And you knew in February what Qwest's position 

 8   was with regard to whether those plans would comply with 

 9   the settlement agreement? 

10       A.  Again, I don't recall this particular e-mail 

11   string that you put in front of me. 

12       Q.  In your direct testimony at page 9, line three, 

13   you talk about the requirements of federal law that 

14   Qwest and CenturyLink continue to operate as separate 

15   companies.  Is that right? 

16       A.  Yes. 

17       Q.  Now, you don't claim, do you, that there's any 

18   federal law that prevented you from obtaining the 

19   information necessary to determine whether the company 

20   could meet the commitments set out in the merger 

21   settlement agreement? 

22       A.  You may have to be more specific when you say to 

23   meet the commitment.  Which commitment are you referring 

24   to? 

25       Q.  Sure.  You're not saying that there was any 
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 1   aspect of federal law that prevented you from gathering 

 2   information to determine whether the company would be 

 3   able to meet its commitments to maintain CEMR and 

 4   MEDIACC for 30 months after the merger closed? 

 5       A.  No, I don't think so, but again, that's -- we're 

 6   still there where we're doing everything we can to meet 

 7   that commitment. 

 8       Q.  My question really just focuses on the 

 9   requirements of law.  You're not aware of any legal 

10   requirement that required you from -- prevented you from 

11   investigating whether the company could keep MEDIACC in 

12   place for 30 months? 

13       A.  I'm not aware of any, but that's more a legal 

14   question. 

15       Q.  Well, you told me in Colorado that you weren't 

16   aware of any requirement.  Correct? 

17       A.  No, I am not aware of any requirement. 

18       Q.  Go to your direct testimony at page 11.  At 

19   page 11, line six, you say that it was your 

20   understanding that the CLECs were concerned that 

21   Legacy/CenturyLink systems would be used in place of 

22   Legacy/Qwest systems.  Correct? 

23       A.  Correct. 

24       Q.  The joint applicants, Quest and CenturyLink, 

25   testified in the merger proceedings that the company 
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 1   didn't have any plans to create any new systems.  Isn't 

 2   that right? 

 3       A.  We said that we didn't have any plans to create 

 4   new systems, that's correct. 

 5       Q.  And in a brief that was filed with the 

 6   Washington Commission on January 21st, CenturyLink told 

 7   the commission that CenturyLink will have no immediate 

 8   need or be under any time pressure to make any 

 9   alterations to OSS in Qwest areas.  You recall that, 

10   don't you? 

11       A.  I don't recall the specific wording.  I don't 

12   recall that being in the brief.  I'm not saying that it 

13   wasn't, but I don't recall all the terms of the brief. 

14       Q.  It's quoted at Mr. Denney's direct testimony at 

15   page 75 if you want to look at that. 

16           MR. GOODWIN:  I guess I'll object that quoting 

17   Mr. Denney's -- or for Mr. Hunsucker to review 

18   Mr. Denney's quote of what was provided in a brief does 

19   not cure the problem of his lack of personal knowledge. 

20   I'm not sure that he can really testify one way or the 

21   other here. 

22           MR. MERZ:  Actually, I think that's a fair 

23   objection.  My question is going to be to ask him to 

24   review that language and assuming that was in fact -- 

25   and I believe we could determine that it was -- that 
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 1   that's what the brief said, does he agree or disagree 

 2   with the statement. 

 3           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  That's fine.  I'll allow it. 

 4   BY MR. MERZ: 

 5       Q.  So do you have Mr. Denney's testimony 

 6   at page 75, line ten? 

 7       A.  Yes, I do. 

 8       Q.  He has a quote there from a brief purportedly 

 9   filed by CenturyLink in Washington on January 21st.  Is 

10   that right? 

11       A.  Yes, that appears correct. 

12       Q.  And the quote that is set out there is that 

13   CenturyLink will have no immediate need or be under any 

14   time pressure to make any alterations to OSS in Qwest 

15   areas.  Do you see that? 

16       A.  Yes. 

17       Q.  Now, assuming that that was, in fact, the 

18   representation made by CenturyLink to the Washington 

19   Commission on January 21st, that representation was not 

20   consistent with what you had been told a month earlier 

21   about CEMR and MEDIACC being unstable, was it? 

22           MR. GOODWIN:  Objection.  Lack of foundation, 

23   because it's unfair for him to ask -- to make that 

24   assumption, that that -- I know for sure that our brief 

25   was more than one sentence long, and I don't know what 
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 1   the brief said right now, but I know it was more than 

 2   one sentence long, and if his question is limited to 

 3   whether he agrees or disagrees with this statement, this 

 4   sentence, that's a different question than whether he 

 5   agrees or disagrees or whether there was an 

 6   inconsistency with the brief as it was presented to the 

 7   commission, and I think his question kind of blurs those 

 8   distinctions. 

 9           MR. MERZ:  My question really is intended to be 

10   limited to the specific sentence that's quoted in 

11   Mr. Denney's testimony and whether that was consistent 

12   with his understanding at the time. 

13           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  As long as it's 

14   limited to that quote, then that's fine. 

15           THE WITNESS:  Okay.  Can you ask the question? 

16   I want to make sure where we're at. 

17           MR. MERZ:  I will. 

18   BY MR. MERZ: 

19       Q.  Assume for me that Mr. Denney has correctly 

20   quoted CenturyLink's brief to the Washington Commission 

21   on January 21st to the effect that CenturyLink will have 

22   no immediate need or be under any time pressure to make 

23   any alterations to OSS in Qwest areas.  That 

24   representation, the one that I've just read, was not 

25   consistent with what you knew a month earlier or what 
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 1   you'd been told a month earlier about CEMR and MEDIACC 

 2   being unstable. 

 3           MR. GOODWIN:  Objection.  His rephrasing of the 

 4   question doesn't cure my objection.  My objection isn't 

 5   that maybe Mr. Denney quoted this sentence incorrectly. 

 6   My assumption is that Mr. Denney has quoted him 

 7   correctly.  But it's improper for him to ask that 

 8   whether he agrees with that statement, assuming that he 

 9   quoted it correctly.  If he just wants to agree or 

10   disagree with that sentence standing alone as a 

11   sentence, but not as a representation of Qwest.  But I 

12   think it's unfair and it lacks foundation for him to 

13   represent that this was the representation of Qwest and 

14   CenturyLink in that brief, because it's not, because the 

15   brief was longer and had context with it that is not 

16   included here. 

17           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Mr. Merz? 

18           MR. MERZ:  I'm not even sure if I understand the 

19   objection, because the point is whether Mr. Hunsucker 

20   believes that the representation made to the commission 

21   as set out in Mr. Denney's testimony and is quoted from 

22   CenturyLink's brief was consistent with what CenturyLink 

23   itself knew about the stability of those systems. 

24           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Mr. Goodwin, does that cure 

25   your objection? 
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 1           MR. GOODWIN:  No.  Because he's still 

 2   characterizing this as the brief.  As long as he's 

 3   characterizing this as the brief, the representation in 

 4   the brief, then he's mischaracterizing the brief.  The 

 5   brief says what it says, so if he wants to ask whether 

 6   he agrees with the whole of the brief, fine.  If he 

 7   wants to ask whether he disagrees with this sentence, 

 8   fine, but if he's characterizing this sentence as a 

 9   brief he's -- 

10           MR. MERZ:  This sentence comes from the brief. 

11   We didn't just make it up.  This is something that 

12   CenturyLink told the Washington Commission that we 

13   believe CenturyLink knew at the time was not accurate. 

14           MR. GOODWIN:  If he can provide the context, 

15   then we would -- I would withdraw my objection, but 

16   there is no context, so he's asking him to testify 

17   whether he agrees with a brief without providing him a 

18   context for that brief. 

19           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  I think we need the brief. 

20   I think we're going to need to have the brief in 

21   evidence. 

22           MR. MERZ:  And I'd be happy to put it in.  I 

23   don't have it, but we can certainly supply it. 

24           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  That would be helpful.  I 

25   think if you can get that to us.  We're almost ready to 
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 1   recess for the day anyway.  If you will continue with 

 2   your line of questioning without -- maybe on a different 

 3   track I should say, and we will pick that part up 

 4   tomorrow when we have the brief in front of us. 

 5           MR. MERZ:  Let me just try one more question to 

 6   see if I can kind of circumvent this whole thing. 

 7           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  That's fine. 

 8   BY MR. MERZ: 

 9       Q.  Do you know, sir, whether CenturyLink 

10   represented to this commission prior to the merger but 

11   after your December testimony that there would be no 

12   need for there to be any alterations of OSS in Qwest 

13   territory?  Do you know whether CenturyLink made a 

14   representation like that in substance or in fact? 

15       A.  I haven't reviewed the brief in preparation for 

16   today.  I see the cite that you've provided here, but I 

17   don't -- I would have to understand the full context of 

18   how that sentence was used to be able to form an opinion 

19   one way or the other. 

20       Q.  Right.  I'm setting aside the brief.  I'm trying 

21   to see if we can avoid having to go down that path. 

22       A.  Okay. 

23       Q.  My question is whether you know, because of your 

24   involvement in the merger cases, whether CenturyLink 

25   represented to the commission before the merger approval 
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 1   but after your December testimony that there would be no 

 2   need to make changes in the Qwest territory, no 

 3   immediate need to make OSS changes in the Qwest 

 4   territory. 

 5       A.  Again, I don't recall without having to -- 

 6   without going and reviewing everything that was filed 

 7   during that time frame. 

 8       Q.  I'll move on. 

 9           In your direct testimony at page 10, line 11, 

10   you say that CenturyLink will continue to use and offer 

11   the Legacy/Qwest OSS systems for the required 30 months. 

12   Do you see that? 

13       A.  Yes. 

14       Q.  And then in your direct testimony at page 7, 

15   line five, you say CenturyLink intends to continue to 

16   use and offer MEDIACC for at least 30 months.  Is that 

17   right? 

18       A.  Correct. 

19       Q.  CenturyLink's ability to continue to use and 

20   offer MEDIACC for 30 months or until October 2013 

21   assumes that the system won't experience an 

22   unrecoverable failure before that date.  Is that right? 

23       A.  Well, I think our intention to use and offer any 

24   OSS is conditioned on the ability to keep it up and 

25   running for the period of time, for 30 months. 
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 1       Q.  But MEDIACC is different.  MEDIACC is more at 

 2   risk than any other Qwest system.  Isn't that what your 

 3   company has said? 

 4       A.  Well, I think we've said, you know, when I 

 5   testified in Arizona, I said it was unstable.  What 

 6   we've heard today from the CLECs is they believe the 

 7   system is stable.  We -- I believe we're using our 

 8   efforts to try to keep the system up and running.  Is 

 9   there a risk of failure?  The answer is yes.  But we're 

10   trying to do what we can to minimize that risk and all 

11   we're asking to do here is offer an optional system 

12   called MTG. 

13       Q.  And I just want to make sure it's clear.  I'm 

14   not just talking about any system.  Your statement that 

15   the company intends to continue to use MEDIACC assumes 

16   that there won't be an unrecoverable failure of MEDIACC 

17   before October 2013. 

18       A.  Yes. 

19       Q.  And MEDIACC is the system that Qwest has 

20   identified as most at risk.  Correct? 

21       A.  I think that's a fair representation.  I'd 

22   probably refer that analysis to Ms. Albersheim.  She 

23   understands the systems much better than I do. 

24       Q.  Final question.  You would agree with me if 

25   MEDIACC experiences an unrecoverable failure before 
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 1   October 2013 CenturyLink will be in breach of the 

 2   settlement agreement with Integra? 

 3       A.  If some future event happens that we can't 

 4   provide it, then at that point in time we would have to 

 5   look at why there was an unrecoverable failure, was it, 

 6   you know, system failure, was it some force majeure 

 7   event, whatever the cause is of that, then we'll come 

 8   back and visit that at that time, and we would determine 

 9   whether it was a -- something that was the 

10   responsibility of the company. 

11           MR. MERZ:  Now might be a good stopping point. 

12           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  Just so that I am 

13   clear on your line of questioning, Mr. Merz, are you 

14   intending tomorrow to continue cross-examination of this 

15   witness based on the brief that was filed? 

16           MR. MERZ:  You know, I want to review that.  I'm 

17   not certain.  That might be what I do.  I won't do 

18   anything other than that.  Maybe not the brief.  I'm 

19   trying to think of whether there's another way to do it. 

20   I don't want to necessarily offer a brief as an exhibit 

21   in the case.  I just want to give some thought on how to 

22   approach it. 

23           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  I want to be clear, though, 

24   that if you are going to pursue that line of 

25   questioning, you do need to provide the brief to the 
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 1   commission and the rest of the parties. 

 2           MR. MERZ:  Understood. 

 3           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Are there any procedural 

 4   questions or procedural issues that we need to deal with 

 5   before we adjourn for the day? 

 6           MS. ANDERL:  Your Honor, I guess we were hoping 

 7   that Mr. Hunsucker would be done today and be able to be 

 8   excused.  I didn't know if staff had questions or 

 9   whether you had questions, whether we would be bringing 

10   him back just for that question about the brief, and if 

11   we had no redirect, you know, kind of just wanted to 

12   know where we stood. 

13           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Staff? 

14           MS. CAMERON-RULKOWSKI:  Your Honor, staff had 

15   reserved time for Mr. Hunsucker, but Mr. Merz's 

16   cross-examination has resolved the questions that we 

17   had.  So we have no questions for Mr. Hunsucker at this 

18   moment.  If he happens to be here tomorrow morning, 

19   maybe as we reflect after today's hearing, perhaps we 

20   may realize that there's something we missed, but at 

21   this time, no. 

22           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay. 

23           Ms. Giles? 

24           MS. GILES:  Your Honor, I was prepared to cede 

25   my time. 
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 1           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  Let me review my 

 2   clarification questions for just a moment and see if 

 3   they would be better addressed by Ms. Albersheim. 

 4           MS. ANDERL:  Thanks, Your Honor.  Not to put any 

 5   undue pressure on, but we're worried about a blizzard in 

 6   Denver -- 

 7           MR. GOODWIN:  And Mr. Hunsucker is connecting 

 8   back through Denver for his flight. 

 9           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  A question I would have in 

10   order to pose the clarification questions I have to 

11   Ms. Albersheim instead would be did Ms. Albersheim 

12   participate in the September negotiations. 

13           MR. GOODWIN:  No.  Only Mr. Hunsucker, of the 

14   witnesses that we have here. 

15           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Sure, sure. 

16           Given the potential for a blizzard in Denver, I 

17   think I am prepared to excuse Mr. Hunsucker if, as long 

18   as Mr. Merz is -- 

19           MR. MERZ:  I'm not going to ask him any more 

20   questions.  I'm satisfied. 

21           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay. 

22           MR. MERZ:  I don't have any further questions 

23   for this witness. 

24           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  None of the parties 

25   are leaping out of their seats to say "I do," so -- 
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 1           MR. GOODWIN:  Can I ask him one question? 

 2           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  You may. 

 3           MR. GOODWIN:  Actually, it's going to be two. 

 4                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

 5   BY MR. GOODWIN: 

 6       Q.  Mr. Hunsucker, do you intend to be alive in 

 7   October of 2013? 

 8       A.  Yes. 

 9       Q.  Do you know whether you will be? 

10       A.  No. 

11           MR. GOODWIN:  That's it. 

12           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  We don't allow re-cross. 

13           MR. MERZ:  I wouldn't know where to start. 

14           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Okay.  So why don't we go 

15   ahead and adjourn for today. 

16           Do you parties wish to start earlier than 9:30? 

17           MR. MERZ:  If that's possible to do, we would 

18   really appreciate it.  I think that if we can start 

19   early we can likely be done by noon and we can make 

20   airplanes and the like. 

21           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Sure.  I get here at 7:30. 

22           MR. MERZ:  We only have like five minutes to 

23   travel.  I don't know how far folks have to come. 

24           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  Why don't we try for 

25   8 o'clock.  Would that work for everybody?  Is that a 
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 1   little early? 

 2           MS. ANDERL:  How about 8:30. 

 3           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  That's fine. 

 4           MR. MERZ:  I appreciate it.  Thank you. 

 5           JUDGE FRIEDLANDER:  That's fine for the 

 6   commission.  8:30. 

 7           We're adjourned for today.  Thank you. 

 8           (The proceedings were adjourned at 3:59 p.m., to 

 9   resume at 8:30 a.m., Friday, February 3, 2012.) 
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